
Regular Meeting
Thursday, January 13, 2022 6:00 PM

ALVIN COMMUNITY COLLEGE
3110 Mustang Road

Alvin, TX 77511

Agenda

1. Call to Order
2. Certification of Posting of Notice





3. Executive Session  
4. Call to Order
5. Pledge
6. Invocation
7. Citizen Inquiries
8. Board Chairman Report/Comments
9. Information Items

A. Personnel Action
1. Personnel Action (Replacement):  Administrative Assistant - Student 

Activities









2. Personnel Action (Replacement):  Campus Events Coordinator









B. Headcount Report





C. Resignation/Retirement Report





10. Consent Agenda
A. Minutes



 
 ALVIN COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

REGULAR MEETING OF NOVEMBER 18, 2021 
OFFICIAL MINUTES 

 
 
 

The Board of Regents of Alvin Community College met in a regular session on the 18th day of November 
2021 at 6:00 p.m., with the following members, administrative personnel, and guests present: 
   
 ‘Bel Sanchez  Chairman 
 Jody Droege  Vice-Chair 
 Patty Hertenberger Secretary 
 Jim Crumm  Regent 
 Kam Marvel  Regent  

Darren Shelton  Regent 
Jake Starkey  Regent 
Roger Stuksa  Regent 

 Andy Tacquard  Regent 
 Robert Exley  President, Alvin Community College 
 Jade Borne  Alvin Community College 
 Wendy Del Bello Alvin Community College 
 Nichole Eslinger Alvin Community College 
 Cindy Griffith  Alvin Community College 
 Kelly Klimpt  Alvin Community College 
 Karl Stager  Alvin Community College 
    
 
Alyssa Bullock 
Beth Nelson 
Brett Haduch 
Cherie Richie 
John Matula 
Jonathan Brush 
Mamie Precious Turay 
Ollie Day 
Querencia Joshua 
Sarah Farley 
Tammy Giffrow 

Akilah Martin 
Carols Ordonez 
Chris Eduardo 
Chris Rouche 
Jeff Parks 
Kevin Rogers 
LaVonna Miller 
Lilly Garcia 
Michael Coots 
Nadia Nazarenko 
Stacy Ebert 

Anita Exley 
Charlie Lootens 
Chris Majors 
Craig Fos 
Dennis LaValley 
Dick Tyson 
Ellena Siscos 
George Tacquard 
Kyle Marasckin 
Matt Graves 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Sanchez at 6:02 p.m.  
 
 

Certification of Posting of Notice 
Certification of the posting of the notice as listed in the agenda was acknowledged.  Dr. Exley certified that 
a notice of the meeting was posted in accordance with Title 5, Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. 

 
 
 
 

Executive Session 
• Private consultation with its attorney, when seeking the advice of its attorney in accordance with 

Section 551.071; Deliberate the evaluation of ACC employees, including, but not limited to, College 
President’s goals as related to President’s evaluation and contract, in accordance with Tex. Gov’t 
Code Section 551.074. 
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November 19, 2021 
 
The meeting was called back into session by Chair Sanchez at 7:00 p.m.  

 
 

• Pledge 
• Invocation   
 Invocation by Mr. Shelton. 

 
 
Citizen Inquiries 
Mr. Dick Tyson, Alvin resident, spoke on the topics of how well the Fall Festival and Veterans Day 
ceremonies were organized and attended, the redistricting that took place in Brazoria county that affected 
Alvin Community College and suggestion of forward thinking in the next Strategic Plan.  He also stated 
that he appreciated Dr. Exley’s time in speaking with him.   

 
 
Board Comments/Recognitions 
The Regents thanked the staff and faculty for all their efforts in making the Fall Festival, Veterans Day 
ceremony and Empty Bowls such successful events and how wonderful the ACC Foundation Gala was 
this year. 
 
The Empty Bowls event is held to help provide food for local seniors in need through the Alvin Meals on 
Wheels Program. The Art Department coordinated the crafting of approximately 400 bowls for the event 
and the dinner on November 9. Recognized were Art Department Chair Dennis LaValley, Instructor Alex 
Ordonez, Visual Arts Coordinator Cherie Richey and Art Department Assistant Kenneth Bartholomew. 
  
ACC hosts a Career Readiness Week providing students with assistance in seeking a job, including 
information on job interviews, resumes and more. The Job Fair, coordinated with local employers, was 
held on November 11, 2021. Recognized were: Career Services Specialist Sarah Farley and Student 
Activities Coordinator Querencia Joshua. 
  
The Fall Festival was cancelled due to COVID last year and with the construction on campus this year, the 
2021 Festival presented many obstacles. Despite challenges, the Festival held on October 30 was a 
resounding success. Recognized were: Event director, Student Activities coordinator Querencia Joshua, 
assistance by Student Advisor Amanda Smithson and Media Technology Specialist Kyle Marasckin. 
  
The Texas Commission on Law Enforcement Education agency conducted its 5-year audit of the ACC 
Law Enforcement Academy and found it to be an “exemplary” program with only one minor deficiency 
noted. Recognized were:  Law Enforcement Academy Director Kevin Rogers, Criminal Justice Instructor 
Craig Fos and Administrative Assistant Lavonna Miller. 
 
 
Approval of the Consent Agenda 
Chair Sanchez said that she would entertain a motion of approval of the Consent Agenda that included the 
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting of October 21, 2021; Personnel Action (Replacement): 
Faculty/Mathematics, Faculty/Mathematics, Faculty/Biology, Faculty/Licensed Vocational Nursing, 
Approval of the Records Management Officer, Appointment of the Election Clerk, Brazoria County 
Appraisal District – Resolution to Cast Votes, Accelerating Credentials of Purpose and Value Grant 
Program, Process Technology Equipment – JET Grant, Contract Renewal for Anthology, Comcast Internet 
Services, Contract for AED’s and Monitoring, Services from Facilities Sources, ACC Police Vehicle and 
Upgrade.  A motion to approve the Consent Agenda was made by Mr. Marvel. Seconded by Mr. Starkey.  
Motion passed unanimously. 
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President’s Report 
Dr. Exley gave a summary that included the following: 
 
Spring registration has opened and classes begin on January 18, for the sixth time ACC was ranked 
among the best community colleges in the country by the Aspen Institute, the ACC Foundation hosted its 
gala “Unlocking Futures” on November 12 in which proceeds from the event benefit student 
scholarships, staff and programs, the annual Veterans Day Ceremony was held November 11 at the 
Memorial Wall and Continuing Education Workforce Development Interim Dean and veteran Chris 
Roche served as guest speaker for the event. 
  
The Art Department and Student Activities hosted a Dia De Lost Muertos event on November 2 where 
Foreign Languages instructor Saul Olivares spoke about the significance of the holiday during the event.  
The Fine Arts programs will have several public performances during the holiday season including the 
Community Choir’s Christmas concert on November 30, the Community Band’s Christmas concert on 
December 12 and the Drama Department will begin performances of A Tuna Christmas starting on 
December 4.  This report was for information only. 
 
 
Student Report 
SGA President Ollie Day and Vice President Mamie Precious Turay reported that the first Student Body 
Meeting was held on October 27th in which the following items were discussed: the implementation of 
sanitation bins in the men's restrooms for trans men, mental health awareness, student involvement 
seminars, ways to improve advertising methods, and a program to help fund student transportation.  Other 
topics included ways to help raise student awareness, as well as widening the accessibility opportunities 
such as ASL/Braille supported tutorials/options for hard of hearing/seeing students, expanding ways of 
announcing events to students, and creating surveys for students to find clubs and organizations of interest 
to students. Some students expressed a desire to have the option of having their preferred names on school 
documents and rosters be implemented in the enrollment process, or in general.   SGA participated in the 
annual Fall Festival and raised $818.00 through the bounce houses and the rock wall. Abumere Alufohai 
was appointed as the SGA Parliamentarian on October 27th. The Thankful Thursday event showed 
appreciation to faculty and staff, as well as thanking the students. A Thanksgiving lunch was provided to 
all attendees and two gift baskets were raffled. This report was for information only. 
 
 
Annual College Data Report (2020-2021) 
Dr. Pam Shefman presented the annual college data report that compared Fall 2020 to Fall 2021 and 
included the impact of COVID.  Data included the following: ACC has had an increase in female students, 
increase in older students, number of out of district students increase, census data state report, highlighted 
dual enrollment, UHCL-Pearland has restarted classes this year, increase in TDCJ students, increase in 
internet courses, race and ethnicity of ACC students, total awards earned, and the increase of financial 
assistance in the form of Pell and use of CARES funds for students. This report was for information only.   
 
 
Annual Report on Board Member Trainings  
Dr. Exley reported that the new Board member required training was completed and that the BOTI 
conference was held this year and ACC had Regents in attendance.  This report was for information only. 
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Annual Title IX CEO Report   
Dr. Exley informed the Regents that he was pleased to announce that ACC had zero incidences this year 
for each of the required Title IX categories report.  This report was for information only.   
 
 
Consider Approval of Award of Landscaping and Tree Service Contracts 
The motion to approve an agreement with Bright View for the balance of this fiscal year and the next 
(2022-2023) and authorize negotiation for future annual renewals for up to three years with a final price of 
$80,066.19 per year and authorize the President to execute those contracts and a one-time purchase with 
Special Touch Landscaping not to exceed the amount of $32,000 was made by Secretary Hertenberger.  
Seconded by Mr. Starkey.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
Consider Approval of 2018 Maintenance Bond – Additional Corestone Construction Services 
The motion to approve a $192,345.51 in additional funds to Corestone Construction Service’s contracts 
was made by Mr. Shelton.  Seconded by Dr. Crumm.  Discussion of the motion followed. Regents voiced 
various concerns that included:  unexpected replacement of conduit underneath the sidewalks and related 
costs, the accountability of all those involved in the delays of the construction and getting the Student 
Center completed, accountably measures in the contract, the redirection of money for unforeseen 
conditions that were originally earmarked for classroom technology, any funds left for furniture and paint 
at the end of the contract, ADA compliance for restrooms, and theatre completion for upcoming play.  Mr. 
Stager talked about the exterior masonry work that will need to be done in the future.  Motion passed 
unanimously.   
 
Consider Approval of Resale of Trust Property 
The motion to approve the Resale of Trust Property Account # 0158-0103-120, Brazoria County Suit 
# 96258-T was made by Mr. Starkey.  Seconded by Mr. Stuksa.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
Financial Report Ending October 2021  
Mr. Starkey made the motion to approve the financial and investment report for October 2021.  Seconded 
by Mr. Stuksa.  Motion passed unanimously.     
 
 
 
Adjournment 
Meeting was adjourned at 8:11p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Dr. Patty Hertenberger, Secretary          ‘Bel Sanchez, Chair 
 
 



B. Consider Approval of Personnel Action 
(Replacement):  Instructor/Mathematics











C. Consider Approval of Personnel Action (Replacement):  Instructor/Speech









D. Consider Approval of Personnel Action 
(Replacement):  Instructor/Government









E. Consider Approval of Personnel Action (New):IT Director, Enterprise Business 
Solutions 











F. Consider Approval of Revisions to Local Board Policies in TASB Update 42
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ATTN(NOTE) GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THIS UPDATE 

Changes at Update 42 are based mostly on legislation from the 87th Regular Legislative Session but also 
include changes from the second special session and federal and state rulemaking authorities.  

Unless otherwise noted, references to legislative bills throughout these explanatory notes refer to Senate 
Bills (SB) or House Bills (HB) from the 87th Regular Legislative Session. All referenced bills have already 
gone into effect unless otherwise noted. 

A18(INTRO) INTRODUCTION 

This introduction has been updated with a margin note change to Abbreviations in Citations and additions 
to the table as well as a new table defining Abbreviations in Text.  

At TASB-Initiated Updates, language has been added to clarify that (LEGAL) policies are not subject to 
board adoption. 

At College District-Initiated Updates, the introduction has been amended to reflect current procedures for 
processing adopted policies and to indicate the college district is encouraged to review TASB Community 
Colleges Services’ legal tips and request review by the college district’s legal counsel prior to adopting a 
local policy. 

Additional amendments are to conform to TASB style.  

AFA(LEGAL) INSTITUTIONAL EFFECTIVENESS: PERFORMANCE AND INSTITUTION 
REPORTS 

SB 1677 eliminates the requirement that the chief executive officer of an institution of higher education 
annually report certain information to the institution’s board regarding Affordability and Access under Edu-
cation Code 51.4031. 

BAA(LEGAL) BOARD LEGAL STATUS: POWERS, DUTIES, RESPONSIBILITIES 

At Regulatory Exceptions, HB 17 prohibits a college district from adopting or enforcing a measure that 
limits, prohibits, or discriminates against certain regulations of Utility Services and Infrastructure based on 
the type or source of energy provided.  

A citation has been updated at Eminent Domain based on the attorney general's redesignation of the 
cited opinion number.  

Additional amendments are to conform with statute and TASB style and to update citations. 

BB(LEGAL) BOARD MEMBERS 

HB 1154 redesignates statutes, resulting in a citation update. 

BBA(LEGAL) BOARD MEMBERS: ELIGIBILITY/QUALIFICATIONS 

At Residence, SB 1111 repeals the requirement that residence, for purposes of the Texas Election Code, 
be determined in accordance with the common-law rule as enunciated by Texas courts and adds limita-
tions on establishing residence.   

Additional amendments are to conform with statute and TASB style. 

BBB(LEGAL) BOARD MEMBERS: ELECTIONS 

Revisions have been made throughout this legally referenced policy to reflect statutory changes from HB 
3107: 
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 At General Election Dates, minor wording changes have been made. 

 At Delivery or Submission of Election Documents, a document or paper may be delivered, submitted, 
or filed under the Texas Election Code by email. 

 At Election Order and at Contents, a list of information required for general or special elections has 
been added. 

 At Early Voting, notice requirements have been updated to delete the requirement that the election 
notice under Election Code 85.007 be forwarded to the Secretary of State or that the Secretary of 
State post the notice to its website. 

 At Notice to Candidates, a filing authority’s notice of filing period dates for an application for a place 
on the ballot must include a designated email address for filing the application. 

 At Single-Member Districts, at-large proposition language has been deleted. 

 At Temporary Branch, language has been added regarding temporary branch voting based on the 
population of the area. 

At Publication of Election Date and Location Online and at Publication of Filing Information Online, HB 
1154 redesignates statutes, resulting in a citation change. 

Revisions have been made in this policy to reflect statutory changes from SB 1 of the second special ses-
sion: 

 At Declaration of Election, a governing body of a college district must declare an unopposed candi-
date elected to an office on receipt of certification. 

 At Polling Place for Early Voting, language excluding certain temporary branch polling places from the 
definition of an eligible county polling place for purposes of early voting has been deleted. 

 At Voting System Standards, SB 1387 requires a voting system or voting system equipment approved 
for election use to be manufactured, stored, and held in the U.S. and sold by a company whose head-
quarters and parent company’s headquarters, if applicable, are in the U.S. 

At Multiple Voting Systems Permitted, a cross reference has been updated. 

BBBB(LEGAL) ELECTIONS: ETHICS 

This legally referenced policy has been updated to reflect Ethics Commission amendments to a rule re-
lated to political advertising by text message.  

BBC(LEGAL) BOARD MEMBERS: VACANCIES AND REMOVAL FROM OFFICE 

A citation has been updated at Holdover Doctrine based on the attorney general's redesignation of the 
cited opinion number.  

At Residency, clarifying changes have been made and a cross reference has been added.  

At Residence Defined, SB 1111 repeals the requirement that residence, for purposes of the Texas Elec-
tion Code, be determined in accordance with the common-law rule as enunciated by Texas courts and 
adds limitations on establishing residence.   

Additional amendments are to conform to TASB style. 

BBD(LEGAL) BOARD MEMBERS: ORIENTATION AND TRAINING 

At Cybersecurity Training, clarifying language has been added and HB 1118 amends the training program 
requirements to exclude individuals who have been granted military leave.  
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BBD(LOCAL) BOARD MEMBERS: ORIENTATION AND TRAINING 

As permitted by state law, recommended revisions to this policy reflect the choice of the board to desig-
nate the college district's chief executive officer (CEO) or the CEO’s designee to select a Cybersecurity 
Training program. The revisions also provide that the CEO may remove a board member’s access to the 
college district’s computer systems if the board member does not satisfy the training requirements, and, in 
compliance with law, that the CEO must periodically require the review of the college district’s compliance 
with the cybersecurity training requirements.  

Additional amendments are to conform to TASB style. 

BD(LEGAL) BOARD MEETINGS 

At Internet Posting, HB 1154 redesignates statutes, resulting in a citation change. 

Citations have been updated at Specificity of Agenda / Notice and Secret Ballot based on the attorney 
general's redesignation of the cited opinion numbers.  

BI(LEGAL) REPORTS 

SB 1677 eliminates the requirement that the chief executive officer of an institution of higher education 
annually report certain information to the institution’s board regarding affordability and access under 
Texas Education Code 51.4031. 

CAAB(LEGAL) STATE AND FEDERAL REVENUE SOURCES: FEDERAL 

At U.S. Department of Labor, a federal rule update has been reflected in this legally referenced policy. 

CAD(LEGAL) APPROPRIATIONS AND REVENUE SOURCES: BOND ISSUES 

At Posting Notice of Election, this legally referenced policy has been amended to conform with statute. 

CAI(LEGAL) APPROPRIATIONS AND REVENUE SOURCES: AD VALOREM TAXES 

SB 1438 amends the authority for a college district to adopt a tax rate that exceeds the voter-approved 
tax rate without an election if increased expenditures are necessary to respond to a disaster that has af-
fected the college district and the governor has declared any part of the area in which the college district 
is located as a disaster area. Because of these changes, some information from Election to Approve In-
crease was moved to the new Exception margin note.  

CAIA(LEGAL) AD VALOREM TAXES: EXEMPTIONS AND PAYMENTS 

SB 742 covers tax installment plans for both damaged and undamaged property in a disaster and Addi-
tional Penalties. 

Language at Goods-in-Transit has been amended to conform to TASB style and at Exception to conform 
to the statute. Also, language regarding Partial Payments has been moved for clarity. 

The following changes take effect on January 1, 2022: 

 At Total Appraised Value, SB 794 entitles certain disabled veterans to a homestead exemption.  

 SB 1438 repeals Texas Tax Code Section 11.35(c), which prohibits a person from claiming a tempo-
rary tax exemption for a property damaged in a declared disaster during the tax year the disaster was 
declared unless the governing body of the taxing unit adopts the exemption and repeals related sec-
tions. 
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 At Extension for Property in Disaster Area, HB 988 provides a date extension for the tax exemption 
for goods-in-transit. 

CAID(LEGAL) AD VALOREM TAXES: APPRAISAL DISTRICT 

SB 63 prohibits an individual from serving on an appraisal district board of directors if the individual has 
Prior Service or Involvement with Appraisals. Also, at Appraisal District Employment Restriction, an indi-
vidual is prohibited from being employed by the district if the individual has served as a member of the 
ARB for an appraisal district at any time during the preceding two years.  

At Prohibited Communications, HB 988 prohibits a college district board member, officer, or employee 
from communicating with the chief appraiser or an appraisal district employee to influence a property’s 
appraisal value unless the individual owns or leases the property. 

At Appraisal Review Boards, HB 2941 shifts the power to appoint and remove ARB members in all coun-
ties from the appraisal district to the local administrative judge. 

CAO(LEGAL) APPROPRIATIONS AND REVENUE SOURCES: PUBLIC FACILITIES 
CORPORATIONS 

SB 1942 provides that a public facility corporation created under Local Government Code Chapter 303 
must retain its Status as a Public Facility Corporation. 

CDA(LEGAL) ACCOUNTING: FINANCIAL REPORTS AND STATEMENTS 

At Financial Reports, the citation has been updated to reflect SB 1. 

CDC(LEGAL) ACCOUNTING: AUDITS 

This legally referenced policy has been updated with a link to the 2021 fiscal year Texas Higher Educa-
tion Coordinating Board publication Budget Requirements and Annual Financial Reporting Requirements 
for Texas Public Community Colleges, Fiscal Year 2021. 

CF(LEGAL) PURCHASING AND ACQUISITION 

At Companies that Boycott Israel, clarifying language has been added and the citation has been updated.  

At Companies that Boycott Energy Companies, SB 13 prohibits a college district from contracting with a 
company for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the company that it 
does not boycott energy companies and will not during the term of the contract. 

At Companies that Discriminate Against a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association, SB 19 prohibits a 
college district from contracting with a company for the purchase of goods or services unless the contract 
contains a written verification from the company that it does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or di-
rective that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association and will not discriminate 
against an entity or association during the term of the contract.  

At Contracts with Foreign-Owned Companies, SB 2116 prohibits a college district from entering into an 
agreement relating to critical infrastructure in Texas with a company if the company would be granted di-
rect or remote access to or control of the critical infrastructure, unless the access is allowed for product 
warranty and support services. 

HB 3774 adds forensic science performed by a forensic analyst or forensic science expert to the list of 
services that may be procured under Professional Services. 

SB 799 provides a procurement method for Certain Medical Services. Also, the contract notification 
threshold and amount of time required to report to the LBB for certain professional services has been in-
creased. Additionally, Contract-Related Fee Report requirements have been amended. 

https://reportcenter.highered.texas.gov/agency-publication/guidelines-manuals/annual-financial-reporting-manual-for-texas-public-community-colleges-2021/
https://reportcenter.highered.texas.gov/agency-publication/guidelines-manuals/annual-financial-reporting-manual-for-texas-public-community-colleges-2021/
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HB 1428 expands the Exceptions applicable to delinquent taxes to apply to a contingent fee contract for 
the collection of any obligation. 

SB 475 requires college districts to follow certain contracting procedures related to Cloud Computing Ser-
vices. In addition, at Data Security Controls for Vendors, certain contracted vendors must meet the col-
lege district’s security controls and periodically provide evidence that they meet the security controls. 

At Recycled Products, language has been amended to match new Texas Commission on Environmental 
Quality (TCEQ) regulations. 

CF(LOCAL) PURCHASING AND ACQUISITION 

To ease the college district’s response to emergencies, consistent with law, new recommended language 
at Emergency Exception reflects the board’s delegation of authority to the college district CEO to contract 
for the replacement, construction, or repair of equipment or facilities in the event of a catastrophe, emer-
gency, or natural disaster under certain circumstances. The CEO must report to the board any contracts 
made under the delegated authority at the next regular meeting. 

CFF(LEGAL) PURCHASING AND ACQUISITION: PAYMENT PROCEDURES 

HB 1476 addresses notices to a vendor of an error in an invoice related to a Disputed Payment. 

CFG(LEGAL) PURCHASING AND ACQUISITION: REAL PROPERTY AND 
IMPROVEMENTS 

At Eminent Domain, a citation and clarifying language have been added.  

Additional amendments are to conform to TASB style. 

CFH(LEGAL) PURCHASING AND ACQUISITION: FINANCING PERSONAL PROPERTY 
PURCHASES 

SB 58 amends the definition of Personal Property to include cloud computing services.  

Additional amendments are to conform with TASB style. 

CGA(LEGAL) SAFETY PROGRAM: INSPECTIONS 

Citations in this legally referenced policy have been updated to reflect the repeal and replacement of Ad-
ministrative Code provisions addressing Asbestos-Related Activity.  

CGC(LEGAL) SAFETY PROGRAM: EMERGENCY PLANS AND ALERTS 

HB 3597 provides that a document related to a community college’s multihazard EOP is subject to Public 
Disclosure if it enables an individual to verify that the plan addresses the five stages of emergency man-
agement instead of just four. 

CGE(LEGAL) SAFETY PROGRAM: MEDICAL TREATMENT 

SB 199 requires a college district that owns or leases an Automated External Defibrillator (AED) to in-
spect it monthly to verify it is placed in its designated location, reasonably appears ready for use, and 
does not reasonably appear damaged in a manner that would prevent operation. 

Additional amendments are to conform with TASB style. 
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CH(LEGAL) SITE MANAGEMENT 

At Energy or Water Conservation Measures, HB 3583 amends the definition of energy savings perfor-
mance contract into which a college district may enter. 

TCEQ's regulations on the Recycling Program have been updated. 

HB 2205 states that Pools or spas that comply with state law on August 31, 2021, may continue to be 
used, maintained, and repaired in accordance with state law in effect on that date.  

SB 1831 requires posting of Human Trafficking Signs at Cosmetology Facilities. 

At Display of National Motto, SB 797 requires a college district to display in a conspicuous place in each 
of its buildings a durable poster or framed copy that includes only the national motto “In God We Trust,” 
the U.S. flag centered under the motto, and a representation of the Texas flag. The requirement only ap-
plies if it is either donated for display or purchased from private donations and made available to the insti-
tution. 

CHA(LEGAL) SITE MANAGEMENT: SECURITY 

At Duty to Request and Render Aid, SB 2212 requires a college district police officer who encounters an 
injured person while on duty to immediately request EMS personnel and, while waiting for EMS personnel 
to arrive, provide the person treatment to the extent of the officer’s skill under certain circumstances. 

SB 69 provides that a college district police officer has a duty to stop or prevent another officer from using 
Excessive Force against a suspect under certain circumstances. College district police officers are also 
prohibited from intentionally using certain types of force. 

HB 929 requires that a college district police department's policy regarding Body-Worn Cameras include 
certain provisions regarding the use of those cameras and collection and storage of footage. 

At Personal Cameras, HB 1938 permits a college district police department that employs body-worn cam-
eras to apply to the governor’s office for a grant to defray data storage costs for body-worn camera re-
cordings. 

At Use of Drones, HB 1758 requires each college district police department that uses or intends to use a 
drone to adopt a written policy on use of force by a drone and submit the policy to TCOLE by January 1st 
each even-numbered year.  

At Custodial Interrogations, HB 375 expands Texas Penal Code Section 21.02 addressing continuous 
sexual abuse of a young child to also apply to continuous sexual abuse of a disabled individual. 

SB 741 and HB 781 authorize college district School Marshals to carry a handgun and store it in a secure 
location. Marshals are not required to store the handgun in a locked container. 

Additional amendments are to conform with TASB style. 

CHA(LOCAL) SITE MANAGEMENT: SECURITY 

Recommended revisions to this local policy address the HB 1758 provisions on college district peace of-
ficers’ use of force By Drone. The revisions reflect the decision not to authorize the use of force by drone. 
If the college district is considering authorizing the use of force by drone, contact the college district’s pol-
icy consultant. 

In addition, a recommended cross reference to DEC for new language from SB 1359 and HB 2073 ad-
dressing Peace Officer Leave has been added. 
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CHC(LEGAL) SITE MANAGEMENT: TRAFFIC AND PARKING CONTROLS 

Effective January 1, 2022, SB 792 amends provisions related to Parking Privileges of Disabled Veterans. 
Additional amendments are to conform to TASB style. 

Additional amendments are to conform with TASB style. 

CHF(LEGAL) SITE MANAGEMENT: WEAPONS 

This legally referenced policy has been updated to reflect HB 1927, which allows permitless carry of 
handguns with certain exceptions. The bill repeals Texas Government Code Section 46.035, which ad-
dresses carry by a handgun license holder and moves its provisions to other statutes. Though some of 
the transferred provisions have been modified, provisions addressing open carry by license holders at in-
stitutions of higher education have been moved with only the addition of provisions addressing carry as a 
participant in historical reenactments. Provisions in law addressing concealed carry specific to college dis-
tricts as educational institutions or institutions of higher education remain unchanged. 

The bill also modifies references throughout the law to a shoulder or belt holster to refer to any holster 
(similar provisions can be found in HB 2112 and SB 550). Other changes from this bill include: 

 The prohibition on carry by Persons Under 21 or Who Committed Certain Felonies with limited 
exceptions; 

 Amendments to provisions addressing carry at Board Meetings and the expansion of the applica-
ble exceptions; and 

 New Notice provisions under Penal Code 46.03 and 30.05. 

HB 957 removes firearm silencers from the list of Prohibited Weapons in Texas Penal Code Section 
46.05. The bill provides that an offense committed under Section 46.05 involving firearm silencers that 
occurs before the bill’s effective date may not be prosecuted after that date. 

At Exceptions, HB 1069 authorizes city or county first responders to carry a concealed or holstered hand-
gun while on duty. 

Beginning January 1, 2022, HB 1407 permits Open Carry by a handgun license holder if the license 
holder and handgun are in a motor vehicle and the handgun is in a holster. 

Additional amendments are to conform with statute and TASB style. 

CHF(LOCAL) SITE MANAGEMENT: WEAPONS 

At Other Weapons and Devices Prohibited, in response to the removal of firearm silencers from the legal 
definition of prohibited weapon in HB 957, recommended revisions to this local policy add firearm silenc-
ers to the college district’s locally developed list of prohibited weapons.  

CJ(LEGAL) TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT 

SB 1064 deleted language regarding the registration of government-owned vehicles.  

SB 1831 amends existing law requiring the posting of Human Trafficking Signs at Buses and Bus Stops. 
A citation to a new attorney general rule has also been added. 

Additional amendments are to conform to TASB style. 

CK(LEGAL) INSURANCE AND ANNUITIES MANAGEMENT 

At Designated Broker of Record, a citation to an attorney general opinion has been clarified. Also, at Dis-
closure of Interested Parties, a cross reference has been updated.  
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An additional amendment is to update a cross reference. 

CKB(LEGAL) INSURANCE AND ANNUITIES MANAGEMENT: LIABILITY INSURANCE 

SB 282 prohibits a college district from using public funds to pay Sexual Harassment Claims made 
against a member of the governing body, an officer, or an employee. 

Also, a citation has been updated at Liability Insurance based on the attorney general's redesignation of 
the cited opinion number. 

CKD(LOCAL) INSURANCE AND ANNUITIES MANAGEMENT: HEALTH AND LIFE 
INSURANCE 

At Eligibility of Employees Performing Services Outside Texas, recommended revisions to this local policy 
reflect the board’s decision to extend group benefits program eligibility under the Insurance Code to em-
ployees who perform services outside of the state. 

CM(LEGAL) FACILITIES CONSTRUCTION 

Revisions have been made throughout this policy to reflect statutory changes from HB 2581: 

 At Publishing Criteria, a college district is required, for certain construction contracts, to publish in its 
request for proposals or qualifications a detailed methodology for scoring each criterion used. 

 At Disclosure to Offeror upon Request, a person who submits a bid, proposal, or response to a re-
quest for qualifications for a construction contract is permitted to make a written request after the con-
tract is awarded to the governmental entity for documents related to the evaluation of the offeror’s 
submission. 

 At Enforcement Actions, the deadline is extended for a person to file an action for declaratory or in-
junctive relief from ten days to 15 calendar days after the contract is awarded. 

At Companies that Boycott Israel, clarifying language has been added and the citation has been updated.  

At Companies that Boycott Energy Companies, SB 13 prohibits a college district from contracting with a 
company for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the company that it 
does not boycott energy companies and will not during the term of the contract. 

At Companies that Discriminate Against a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association, SB 19 prohibits a 
college district from contracting with a company for the purchase of goods or services unless the contract 
contains a written verification from the company that it does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or di-
rective that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association, and will not discriminate 
against an entity or association during the term of the contract.  

At Contracts with Foreign-Owned Companies, SB 2116 prohibits a college district from entering into an 
agreement relating to critical infrastructure in Texas with a company if the company would be granted di-
rect or remote access to or control of the critical infrastructure, unless the access is allowed for product 
warranty and support services. 

A citation has been updated at Registered Engineer based on the Attorney General's redesignation of the 
cited opinion number.  

HB 3774 adds forensic science performed by a forensic analyst or forensic science expert to the list of 
services used when Procuring Professional Services. 

SB 799 provides a procurement method for Certain Medical Services. Also, the contract notification 
threshold and amount of time required to report to the LBB for certain professional services has been in-
creased. 
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HB 1477 requires Payment and Performance Bonds when authorizing a nongovernmental entity leasing 
public property from a college district to enter into a public work contract with a prime contractor, depend-
ing on the amount of the contract. 

CM(LOCAL) FACILITIES CONSTRUCTION 

To ease the college district’s response to emergencies, consistent with law, new recommended language 
at Emergency Exception reflects the board’s delegation of authority to the college district CEO to contract 
for the replacement, construction, or repair of equipment or facilities in the event of a catastrophe, emer-
gency, or natural disaster, under certain circumstances. The CEO must report to the board any contracts 
made under the delegated authority at the next regular meeting. 

CMB(LEGAL) FACILITIES CONSTRUCTION: COMPETITIVE SEALED PROPOSALS 

HB 2581 requires that, for a competitive sealed proposal for Civil Works Projects, a college district must 
assign a weighted value to price in a specified manner and following certain provisions, and must Make 
Evaluations Public, including scores, within seven days after the contract is awarded. A citation at Re-
quest for Proposals has been updated in response to the bill.  

Citations at Opening Proposals and Selection have been updated for clarity. 

CR(LEGAL) TECHNOLOGY RESOURCES 

HB 20 makes Impeding Electronic Mail Prohibited for email service providers. 

FAA rules related to registration, airman certification, and operation have been adjusted to include the eli-
gibility of a civil Small Unmanned Aircraft System to operate over human beings. 

CRA(LEGAL) TECHNOLOGY RESOURCES: WEBSITE POSTINGS 

HB 1154 redesignated several statutes, resulting in citation changes. 

SB 1677 repealed Required Internet Postings regarding employee compensation information.   

The Coordinating Board amended a regulation setting an August 1 deadline for Required Internet Post-
ings regarding course sequences. 

Additional amendments are for clarification and to conform to TASB style. 

CS(LEGAL) INFORMATION SECURITY 

Amendments are made throughout to conform to TASB style.  

At the Note at the end of the policy, a cross reference has been added to CF(LEGAL) for vendor contract-
ing requirements related to information security from SB 475.  

DAA(LEGAL) EMPLOYMENT OBJECTIVES: EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

SB 45 provides that a college district commits an unlawful employment practice if an employee is a victim 
of Sexual Harassment, as defined by the bill, and the employer or the employer’s supervisors or agents 
know or should have known about the conduct but fail to take immediate and appropriate corrective ac-
tion. 

At Access for Religious Organizations During Disasters, HB 525 provides that a religious organization's 
religious and other related activities are essential activities, including during a declared state of disaster. 
A college district may not prohibit a religious organization from engaging in activities or discharging its 
faith-based mission and purpose at any time. 

Additional amendments are to conform to TASB style. 
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DC(LEGAL) EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES 

At Pre-Employment Inquiry for Peace Officers and Telecommunications Officers, SB 24 requires a college 
district police department intending to hire a police or telecommunications officer to first obtain certain 
background information and records and provide confirmation to TCOLE that all applicable steps have 
been completed. These provisions apply to officers hired on or after January 1, 2022.  

Additional amendments are to conform to TASB style. 

DEA(LEGAL) COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS: SALARIES AND WAGES 

SB 1677 repeals the requirement that a college district post on its website Information Regarding Staff 
Compensation.  

Additional amendments are to conform to TASB style. 

DEC(LEGAL) COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS: LEAVES AND ABSENCES 

SB 1359 requires a law enforcement agency to adopt a policy permitting its officers who experience a 
traumatic event in the scope of employment to take Mental Health Leave.  

Under HB 2073, the college district board of trustees must adopt a Paid Quarantine Leave policy for col-
lege district peace officers and emergency medical technicians who are required to quarantine or isolate 
in response to a possible or known exposure to a communicable disease while on duty. 

DEC(LOCAL) COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS: LEAVES AND ABSENCES 

Recommended revisions to this local policy address SB 1359 requirements related to Mental Health 
Leave for Peace Officers and HB 2073 requirements related to Quarantine Leave for Peace Officers and 
Emergency Medical Technicians. SB 1359 allows peace officers to take time off after experiencing a trau-
matic event while on duty, and HB 2073 allows time off for peace officers and/or EMTs who are required 
to quarantine because of an exposure while on duty. 

DECB(LEGAL) LEAVES AND ABSENCES: MILITARY LEAVE 

This legally referenced policy has been updated to reflect amendments to federal statute, including the 
expansion of the definition of “service in the uniformed services” and the addition of the definition of “state 
active duty,” as those terms relate to Federal Military Leave—Reemployment.  

Also, at Paid Leave of Absence, HB 1589 entitles an eligible college district employee to up to seven ad-
ditional days of paid leave per year if the employee is on active military duty during a disaster. 

DGC(LEGAL) EMPLOYEE RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES: EMPLOYEE EXPRESSION AND 
USE OF COLLEGE FACILITIES 

A cross reference has been added in the Note for further information relevant to employee expression 
and facilities use. 

HB 1239 prohibits a college district or public official from issuing an order that closes or has the effect of 
closing Places of Worship. 

Additional amendments are to conform to TASB style. 
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DHB(LEGAL) EMPLOYEE STANDARDS OF CONDUCT: SEARCHES AND 
ALCOHOL/DRUG TESTING 

At Prohibition, this legally referenced policy reflects amendments to a federal rule language clarifying that 
a college district may not permit certain current and prospective employee-drivers to perform a safety-
sensitive function based on the results of a drug and alcohol clearinghouse query.  

A citation at Searches— General Rule has also been updated. 

DHC(LEGAL) EMPLOYEE STANDARDS OF CONDUCT: CHILD ABUSE AND NEGLECT 
REPORTING 

At Reporting Abuse and Neglect, HB 3379 requires a college district employee to report child abuse and 
neglect if the person has reasonable cause to believe child abuse or neglect has occurred or may occur. 
Prior law only required cause; therefore, the policy now reflects a heightened reporting threshold. 

DIAA(LEGAL) FREEDOM FROM DISCRIMINATION, HARASSMENT, AND 
RETALIATION: SEX AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE 

At Campus Peace Officers, SB 1371 resolves a conflict in statute, clarifying that a college district peace 
officer may only include the type of incident in a report of sexual harassment, sexual assault, dating vio-
lence, or stalking submitted by the officer to the Title IX coordinator if the victim completes a pseudonym 
form and may not reveal the victim’s identifying information. 

DIAA(LOCAL) FREEDOM FROM DISCRIMINATION, HARASSMENT, AND 
RETALIATION: SEX AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE 

Recommended revisions to this local policy address SB 1371, clarifying that a college district Peace Of-
ficer may only be required to disclose the type of incident in a report of prohibited conduct submitted by 
the officer to the Title IX coordinator if the officer receives information regarding the incident from an em-
ployee who chooses to complete a pseudonym form. 

Additional amendments are to conform to TASB style.  

DJ(LEGAL) ASSIGNMENT, WORK LOAD, AND SCHEDULES 

SB 1677 repeals the requirement that a college district include its established faculty academic workload 
rules and regulations in its operating budget.  

DK(LEGAL) PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

HB 1118 amends the Cybersecurity Training requirement to except college district employees on certain 
types of leave or alternative work authorization. 

Additional amendments are to conform with statute. 

DK(LOCAL) PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

As permitted by state law, recommended revisions to this policy reflect the board's choice to designate 
the college district's chief executive officer (CEO) or the CEO’s designee to select a Cybersecurity Train-
ing program. Revisions provide that the CEO may remove an employee’s access to the college district’s 
computer systems if the employee does not satisfy the training requirements. The revisions also provide, 
in compliance with law, that the CEO must verify and report cybersecurity training by college district em-
ployees and periodically require the review of the college district’s compliance with the cybersecurity train-
ing requirements.  
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DMD(LOCAL) TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT: RESIGNATION 

Recommended revisions to this local policy are based on best practices and require resignations submit-
ted by contract employees to be filed with the college district's CEO or other board designee but continue 
to permit the college district's CEO to delegate authority to accept at-will resignations to other administra-
tors. 

EBB(LEGAL) ALTERNATE METHODS OF INSTRUCTION: OFF CAMPUS 
INSTRUCTION 

At Workforce Education or Programs Requested by Employers, HB 4361 permits a college district to 
agree with an employer to provide credit or noncredit workforce education or a lower-division program to 
the college district’s students off-campus at a location requested by the employer without first obtaining 
the approval of a higher education regional council, regardless of whether the location is in the institu-
tion’s service region or area, consistent with the policy’s provisions. 

ECC(LEGAL) INSTRUCTIONAL ARRANGEMENTS: COURSE LOAD AND SCHEDULES 

SB 165 adds disaster declarations to the requirement that a college district permit a student to drop 
courses beyond the existing limit of six for Good Cause. College districts are also prohibited from count-
ing toward the course drop limit calculation a course dropped during the 2020 spring semester or summer 
term or the 2020–21 academic year due to a limit or prohibition on in-person class attendance in re-
sponse to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

In addition, language has been removed regarding Block Scheduling to reflect the repeal of Coordinating 
Board rules following the expiration of the underlying statute.  

ECC(LOCAL) INSTRUCTIONAL ARRANGEMENTS: COURSE LOAD AND SCHEDULES 

At Exceptions for Good Cause and Exception for COVID-19 Pandemic, recommended revisions to this 
local policy address the SB 165 requirements that college districts allow students to exceed the six-
course limit on the number of dropped courses in the event of certain disasters.  

EFA(LEGAL) CURRICULUM DESIGN: INSTRUCTIONAL PROGRAMS AND COURSES 

At Texas Common Course Numbering System, this legally referenced policy has been updated to reflect 
the repeal and replacement of the Administrative Code.  

Additional amendments are to conform to TASB style. 

EFAA(LEGAL) INSTRUCTIONAL PROGRAMS AND COURSES: ACADEMIC COURSES 

This legally referenced policy has been updated throughout to reflect the repeal and replacement of the 
Administrative Code course transfer, core curriculum, and field of study curricula provisions.  

EFB(LEGAL) CURRICULUM DESIGN: DEGREES AND CERTIFICATES 

Language has been added to this legally referenced policy to reflect recently adopted Coordinating Board 
rules addressing the development of a Recommended Course Sequence. Further information is available 
on the Coordinating Board’s Recommended Course Sequence website.  

EFBA(LEGAL) DEGREES AND CERTIFICATES: ASSOCIATE DEGREES AND 
CERTIFICATES 

At Academic Certificate, this legally referenced policy has been updated to reflect the repeal and replace-
ment of Administrative Code provisions.  

https://www.highered.texas.gov/institutional-resources-programs/public-universities-health-related-institutions/transfer-resources/recommended-course-sequence/
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EFBB(LEGAL) DEGREES AND CERTIFICATES: BACCALAUREATE DEGREES 

HB 885 permits Navarro College to offer a bachelor’s degree in nursing if approved under existing provi-
sions applicable to community colleges with larger taxable property valuations. 

HB 3348 removes previous Limitations and permits all college districts that are eligible to offer bachelor’s 
degrees to offer up to five degrees at a time. 

EG(LEGAL) ACADEMIC ACHIEVEMENT 

This legally referenced policy has been updated to reflect the repeal and replacement of the Administra-
tive Code Field of Study provisions.  

EGA(LEGAL) ACADEMIC ACHIEVEMENT: GRADING AND CREDIT 

At Course Credit for Entering Freshmen Students, beginning in spring 2022, SB 1227 prohibits a college 
district from requiring a College-Level Examination Program (CLEP) exam score to award credit in a 
lower-division course that is higher than the minimum recommended by the American Council on Educa-
tion, unless certain criteria are met.  

HB 33 amends existing provisions guiding the determination by a college district as to whether to grant a 
student Course Credit for Military Training toward a degree. The bill applies the same standards to credit 
awarded for a certificate. 

In addition, changes to language and citations in response to the repeal and replacement of Administra-
tive Code provisions have been made throughout the Transfer of Credit and Nondiscrimination sections.  

EGC(LEGAL) ACADEMIC ACHIEVEMENT: GRADUATION 

This legally referenced policy has been updated to conform with statute and TASB style. 

EI(LEGAL) TESTING PROGRAMS 

This legally referenced policy has been updated to reflect recently adopted Coordinating Board rules ad-
dressing exemptions to the Texas Success Initiative Assessment (TSIA) based on High School Equiva-
lency Examination scores.  

HB 4545 addresses the TSIA exemptions granted to students based on performance on End-of-Course 
Assessments adopted by the Texas Education Agency for Algebra II and English III.  

EJA(LEGAL) MISCELLANEOUS INSTRUCTIONAL POLICIES: OTHER 
INSTRUCTIONAL INITIATIVES 

A citation has been updated in this legally referenced policy in accordance with HB 3607. 

FA(LEGAL) EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITY 

At Access for Religious Organizations During Disasters, HB 525 provides that a religious organization’s 
religious and other related activities are essential activities, including during a declared state of disaster. 
A college district may not prohibit a religious organization from engaging in activities or discharging its 
faith-based mission and purpose at any time. 

Additional amendments are to conform with TASB style. 
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FC(LEGAL) ATTENDANCE 

SB 937 amends provisions requiring a college district to excuse a student’s absence due to “active” Mili-
tary Service to encompass all forms of “required” military service, including annual training, inactive drill 
time, and similar activities. 

FEB(LEGAL) FINANCING EDUCATION: WORK STUDY 

This legally referenced policy has been updated to reflect changes to Federal Work-Study Program regu-
lations made in response to Lutheran Church of Columbia, Inc. v. Comer, 137 S.Ct. 2012 (2017), and fed-
eral guidance.  

FFC(LEGAL) STUDENT WELFARE: STUDENT-SUPPORT SERVICES 

At Support for Transfer Students, this legally referenced policy has been updated to reflect the repeal and 
replacement of the Administrative Code course transfer provisions.  

FFDA(LEGAL) FREEDOM FROM DISCRIMINATION, HARASSMENT, AND 
RETALIATION: SEX AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE 

At Campus Peace Officers, SB 1371 resolves a conflict in statute, clarifying that a college district peace 
officer may only include the type of incident in a report of sexual harassment, sexual assault, dating vio-
lence, or stalking submitted by the officer to the Title IX coordinator if the victim completes a pseudonym 
form and may not reveal the victim’s identifying information. 

FFDA(LOCAL) FREEDOM FROM DISCRIMINATION, HARASSMENT, AND 
RETALIATION: SEX AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE 

Recommended revisions to this local policy address SB 1371, clarifying that a college district Peace Of-
ficer may only be required to disclose the type of incident in a report of prohibited conduct submitted by 
the officer to the Title IX coordinator if the officer receives information regarding the incident from a stu-
dent who chooses to complete a pseudonym form. 

Additional amendments are to conform to TASB style.  

FJ(LEGAL) STUDENT RECORDS 

SB 279 requires a college district to include contact information for the National Suicide Prevention Life-
line and the Crisis Text Line on each Student Identification Card and permits the inclusion of certain other 
health and safety information. 

FLA(LEGAL) STUDENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES: STUDENT EXPRESSION 
AND USE OF COLLEGE FACILITIES 

A cross reference has been added in the Note for further information relevant to student expression and 
facilities use. 

HB 1239 prohibits a college district or public official from issuing an order that closes or has the effect of 
closing Places of Worship. 

FLB(LOCAL) STUDENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES: STUDENT CONDUCT 

Recommended revisions to this local policy have been made to clarify language related to Prohibited 
Weapons and Devices to better match the corresponding language at CHF(LOCAL). 
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FLBD(LEGAL) STUDENT CONDUCT: TOBACCO USE 

SB 248 amends the definition of E-cigarette to include a consumable liquid solution or other material aer-
osolized or vaporized during the use of an electronic cigarette or other device described by the prior e-
cigarette definition. 

GA(LEGAL) ACCESS TO PROGRAMS, SERVICES, AND ACTIVITIES 

At Access for Religious Organizations During Disasters, HB 525 provides that a religious organization’s 
religious and other related activities are essential activities, including during a declared state of disaster. 
A college district may not prohibit a religious organization from engaging in activities or discharging its 
faith-based mission and purpose at any time.  

In addition, citations have been amended based on changes from HB 3607 and to conform to TASB style.  

GC(LEGAL) PUBLIC INFORMATION PROGRAM 

HB 1154 redesignates statutes, resulting in a citation change. 

GCA(LEGAL) PUBLIC INFORMATION PROGRAM: ACCESS TO INFORMATION 

SB 1 of the second special session requires Communications with Voting Systems Vendors to be public 
under the PIA unless a certain Exception applies. 

HB 1082 and SB 841 adds honorably retired college district peace officers and elected board members to 
the list of those individuals whose Personal Information and Contact Information must remain confidential.  

HB 2357, as well as HB 4173 from the 86th Legislative Session, make certain Crime Victim Information 
confidential.  

HB 3597 provides that a document related to a college district’s multihazard EOP is subject to public dis-
closure if it enables an individual to verify that the plan addresses the five stages of emergency manage-
ment instead of just four. 

In addition, some citations have been updated based on changes from HB 3607, citations and language 
have been amended to conform to TASB style, and a cross reference has been added at Contracting In-
formation.  

GCB(LEGAL) PUBLIC INFORMATION PROGRAM: REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

At Production of Public Information During Office Closure, SB 1225 requires a college district to make 
good faith efforts to continue to respond to public information requests when its administrative offices are 
closed, with certain exceptions. 

At Temporary Suspension of Requirements During Catastrophe, the bill also limits a college district’s au-
thority to initially suspend the PIA to only one instance for each catastrophe and permits only one exten-
sion of the suspension, resulting in a maximum possible suspension of 14 consecutive calendar days for 
any single catastrophe. A catastrophe does not include a period when staff is required to work remotely 
because the governmental body’s physical office is closed, but staff can still access information electroni-
cally. 

In addition, citations and language have been amended based on changes from HB 3607 and to conform 
to TASB style, and a cross reference has been added at Request to Contracting Entity. 

GCB(LOCAL) PUBLIC INFORMATION PROGRAM: REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

Recommended revisions to this local policy address the SB 1225 requirements related to the Suspension 
of Public Information During a Catastrophe.  
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GD(LEGAL) COMMUNITY EXPRESSION AND USE OF COLLEGE FACILITIES 

A cross reference has been added in the Note for further information relevant to community expression 
and facilities use. 

HB 1239 prohibits a college district or public official from issuing an order that closes or has the effect of 
closing Places of Worship. 

Additional amendments are to conform with TASB style. 

GG(LEGAL) RELATIONS WITH GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES AND AUTHORITIES 

At Cybersecurity Training for Contractors, SB 800 provides that contractors required by a state agency to 
complete a cybersecurity training program must verify completion by August 31st each year. Additional 
amendments are to conform with statute.   

GGC(LEGAL) RELATIONS WITH GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES AND AUTHORITIES: 
STATE GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITIES 

At Notice to the State Regarding Contracts, SB 1 requires college districts to report certain contract infor-
mation for certain contract values to the LBB. Citations were also updated in response to the bill. 

GGD(LEGAL) RELATIONS WITH GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES AND AUTHORITIES: 
FEDERAL GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITIES 

SB 780 authorizes a college district to enter into an intergovernmental support agreement with a branch 
of the U.S. armed forces to provide installation-support services to a military installation located in Texas. 

GH(LEGAL) RELATIONS WITH SCHOOLS AND DISTRICTS 

SB 1277 requires that Dual Credit Agreements between college districts and school districts designate an 
employee of either entity to provide academic advising to a student who enrolls in a dual credit course 
prior to the start of the course. The bill applies to agreements entered into or renewed on or after Septem-
ber 1, 2021. 

SB 1677 repeals the requirements that a school district identified by the Coordinating Board and TEA col-
laborate with a college district or other institution of higher education to develop plans to increase the 
school district’s students’ enrollment in higher education. 

GL(LEGAL) RELATIONS WITH BUSINESSES AND THE COMMUNITY 

This legally referenced policy has been updated to reflect amendments to Texas Workforce Commission 
rules related to the Skills Development Fund.  

SB 4 prohibits college districts from entering into certain Contracts with Professional Sports Teams unless 
the agreements include a written verification that the team will play the national anthem at the beginning 
of each preseason, regular season, and postseason game held at the team’s home venue or other facility 
controlled by the team for the event. 

At Restricted Use of Individual-Identifying Information, SB 475 prohibits a college district from using 
global positioning system technology, including contact tracing, or technology designed to obtain bio-
metric identifiers to acquire, retain, or disseminate information that identifies an individual or the individ-
ual’s location. 

Citations have been amended throughout based on changes from HB 3607. 
 









































































































G. Consider Approval of Assessment Technologies Institute, LLC - Examination 
Preparation Services





H. Consider Approval of Permission for Procurement Solution





I. Call Order of Election



 

 
 

 

Dr. Robert J. Exley, Ph.D 
President 

 

 

 
 

MEMORANDUM NO:  9-2022 
 
 
TO: Board of Regents 

                                                             
FROM:  Robert J. Exley, PhD   
 
DATE: January 3, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: Order of General Election 
 

 
The general election will be held on May 7, 2022. The following documents provide in English 
and Spanish the Order of the general election. The following positions are open for election:   
7 (Hertenberger), 8 (Tacquard) and 9 (Stuksa).  
 
It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve the Order to call the General Elections on 
May 7, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RJE:tg 
 









11. President's Report
12. President's Goal #2 Report - Implement the QP on Engaged Advising and Refine 

ACC's Four Pillar Career Pathways Model



 

 
 

 

Dr. Robert J. Exley, Ph.D 
President 

 

 

 
 

MEMORANDUM NO:  16-2022 
 
TO: Board of Regents 

                                                           
FROM:  Robert J. Exley, PhD   
 
DATE: January 6, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: President’s Goal #2 Report – Implement the QEP “Success Through Engaged  
 Advising” and Refine ACC’s Four Pillar Career Pathways Model 
 
 

 
Summary 
From the first day on the job, I realized the importance of our Quality Assurance Plan as the 
fundamental strategy for successfully implementing the Texas Guided Pathways model. The 
QEP’s focus on advising through a guided pathways model is the fundamental strategy that 
directs our unwavering commitment towards the success of our students.  As I learn more about 
the good work that has gone into the development and implementation of both the QEP and 
Guided Pathways, it becomes increasingly clear how critical this work is as we move forward.  
 
The College remains actively engaged with three key initiatives: 1) 30X60 Texas, 2) Texas 
Pathways to Success and Retention, and 3) Houston GPS. As President, I am engaged with each 
of these initiatives with an emphasis on executive leadership through personal involvement 
within the college, the region, and statewide. 
 
The reassignment and utilization of college resources for our QEP – Success Through Engaged 
Advising – is a sound investment which focuses on our core goal of student achievement during 
their time with us and once they transfer to a 4-year institution or enter the workforce. Presently, 
our Pathways Success Coaches, Pathways Advisors, and Pathways Faculty Mentors, are doing an 
excellent job engaging our students in the process of “choosing a path”, “staying on the path”, 
and “completing their path” throughout their time at the College. Additionally, our faculty 
members, through the Pathways Faculty Mentoring Program, have developed and implemented a 
mentoring component designed to further engage students within their specific chosen career 
pathway.  
 
We are now entering the next key phase of the QEP which involves assessing the effectiveness 
of our QEP and Pathways work on student success. Data is being gathered on key success 
measures and performance indicators for each of the expected QEP Outcomes. In addition, the 
College’s Leadership Team is actively evaluating organizational structures, related program and 
process efficiencies, and the overall effectiveness of strategies designed to support the goals and 
outcomes of the QEP.  



 
 

In short, under the leadership of Dr. Jessica Ranero-Ramirez, who leads the Guided Pathways 
Core Team, and the QEP Standing Implementation Committee implementation of our QEP and 
the integration of our Career Pathways Model is well underway. I am grateful for the work done 
by the previous and current QEP and Guided Pathways leaders, as well as the leadership of so 
very many of our employees. In very simple terms, ACC is ‘All-In’ with supporting and guiding 
our students along their chosen path to success! 
 
Key College Actions Collectively and Individually 

1. Ongoing training for ACC Success Coaches, Pathways Advisors, and Faculty Mentors 
2. QEP Implementation Team Meetings 
3. Pathways Core Team Meetings 
4. Texas Pathways Institute #4 – Onboarding Reimagined – Attended with the ACC Team 
5. Houston GPS Governing Council Meetings 
6. Houston GPS Equity Leadership Forum – Participant with executive leaders from all 

participating institutions  
 

Outcomes for Success Through Engaged Advising (ACC Quality Assurance Plan) 

• Outcome 1. Students will choose – clarify – a career pathway at entry. (Pathways Success 
Coach) 

• Outcome 2. Students will engage – enter the path – in Pathway Mentorship Experiences 
and advising. (Staff Pathways Advisor) 

• Outcome 3. Students will be timely – stay on the path & ensure learning – in the 
completion of their pathway.  (Pathways Faculty Mentor) 

• Outcome 4. The institutional perception of the role of advising will change. 
 

Four Pillars of the Guided Pathways Model 
• Clarify the Path (creating clear pathways to employment and further education) 
• Enter the Path (help students choose and enter their pathway) 
• Stay on the Path (help students stay on their path) 
• Ensure Learning (follow through and ensure improved student results) 

 
This report is for information only.  
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Management Letter 
December 8, 2021 

To the Board of Regents of 
Alvin Community College: 

The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statement on Auditing Standards No. 115, 
Communicating Internal Control Related Matters Identified in an Audit (SAS 115) provides guidance to auditors 
on communicating internal control matters to management and the governing body, board of directors, or 
equivalent body.   

It is important to note when reviewing findings reported within this letter that classification of findings are based 
on the definitions required by SAS 115, as further discussed below.  Please note that these classifications are 
based on the potential impact to the financial statements, not necessarily the likelihood of actual loss to the 
College.  Accordingly, the College’s assessment of the “significance” or ranking of severity will likely be 
substantially different based on a number of factors including, but not limited to, its assessment of risk and the 
cost benefit of making the change.  

Our report is as follows: 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the business-type activities of Alvin 
Community College (the “College”) as of and for the year ended August 31, 2021, in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the College’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
College’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s 
internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 
There is a new pronouncement we wanted to bring to your attention.   

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.   

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  
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Our findings and additional comments are as follows: 

CURRENT YEAR MATTER 

New Pronouncement  

2021.001 – IMPLEMENTATION OF GASB STANDARD NO. 87 – LEASES 

Background 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 87 (GASB 87), Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Leases, is effective for the year ending August 31, 2022 and, accordingly, the College has less than 
one year to implement GASB 87. GASB 87 essentially requires that all leases that finance the right to use an 
underlying asset should be reported on the balance sheet for both the lessor and lessee.   Unlike many new 
accounting standards, GASB 87 may require preplanning and changes in the way the College does business. 
Implementation of GASB 87 will generally require centralized lease document management; in-depth review of 
lease documents; recording and tracking of multiple data points per lease, which may necessitate new software 
based on the volume of leases; and development of new controls, reconciliations, and policies and procedures.      

Recommendation 

The College needs to begin making initial assessments immediately to determine the lead time and resources 
needed.  The College needs to identify all leases as both the lessor (leasing to someone-landlord-receivable) and 
lessee (leasing from someone-tenant-payable) in which the term initially exceeded 12 months.   Based on the 
aggregate value of leases and materiality, the College should determine, a cutoff for exclusion of insignificant 
leases. If the College’s number of leases approaches 10, it may be beneficial for the College to procure and 
implement software to aid in the task.   The College should establish the goal of being fully implemented 60 days 
prior to year end to provide for a sufficient buffer to safeguard against delay in issuing the College’s August 31, 
2022 financial statements. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Regents, and 
others within the College, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

We would like to thank the Board of Regents and the College’s management for their cooperation during the 
course of our audit.  Please feel free to contact us at your convenience to discuss this report or any other concerns 
that you may have. 

Belt Harris Pechacek, LLLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
Houston, Texas 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Board of Regents of 
Alvin Community College: 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the discretely 
presented component unit of Alvin Community College (the “College”), as of and for the years ended August 31, 
2021 and 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the College’s basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.    

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.   

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the College’s preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control.  Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions.  
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Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component unit of the 
College as of August 31, 2021 and 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, 
its cash flows thereof for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis, the schedules of the College’s proportionate share of the net pension and other 
postemployment benefit liability, and the schedules of contributions, identified as Required Supplementary 
Information on the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in 
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
Required Supplementary Information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information  
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the College’s basic financial statements.  The organizational data, supplemental schedules (Schedules A 
through D), and the statistical information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not required 
parts of the basic financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Schedule E) and 
Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards (Schedule F) are presented for purposes of additional analysis as 
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the Texas Higher Education Coordinating 
Board’s Annual Financial Reporting Requirements for the Texas Public Community and Junior Colleges and are 
also not required parts of the basic financial statements. 
 
Schedules A through F are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
In our opinion, Schedules A through F are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 
 
The organizational data and statistical information have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 8, 2021 on 
our consideration of the College’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the College’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

Belt Harris Pechacek, LLLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
Houston, Texas 
December 8, 2021  
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This section of the Annual Financial Report (AFR) of Alvin Community College (the “College”) presents 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of the College’s financial activity during the fiscal years ended 
August 31, 2021 and 2020, with particular focus on current events, legislation, and other various conditions. 
Please read this MD&A in conjunction with the College’s basic financial statements and the notes to the basic 
financial statements.  Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of the information included in this section 
of the AFR rests with the College. 
 
Financial Highlights for Fiscal Year 2021 
 
The following factors had a significant effect on the College’s financial status for fiscal year 2021: 
 

 There was a decrease in headcount of 8.2 percent in fiscal year 2021 compared to the previous year’s 
headcount and a decrease in contact hours of 11.7 percent. This led to a decrease in tuition of 
$1,028,677. 
 

 The College Board of Regents passed a combined tax rate of $0.183433 which was the rollback rate. 
The Maintenance and Operations tax rate decreased from $0.171438 to $0.170579 or 0.50 percent. 
The Debt Service tax rate decreased from $0.014424 to $0.012864 or 12.13 percent. Overall tax 
collections increased by $2,105,293 from $21,093,241 in fiscal year 2019-2020 to $23,198,534 in 
fiscal year 2020-2021. 

 
 There was a salary schedule adjustment in fiscal year 2020-2021 of 2 percent. Compared to the prior 

fiscal year, salary and wage expenses decreased by approximately $261,479 in fiscal year 2020-2021. 
 
 The 2020-2021 Maintenance and Operations budget was $36,685,421 which was an increase of 

$2,151,853 over the 2019-2020 budget. 
 

Financial Highlights for Fiscal Year 2020 
 
The following factors had a significant effect on the College’s financial status for fiscal year 2020: 
 

 There was an increase in headcount of 2.7 percent in fiscal year 2020 compared to the previous year’s 
headcount and a decrease in contact hours of 0.5 percent. This led to an increase in tuition of 
$318,220. 
 

 The College Board of Regents passed a combined tax rate of $0.185862 which was the rollback rate. 
The Maintenance and Operations tax rate decreased from $0.171802 to $0.171438 or 0.21 percent. 
The Debt Service tax rate decreased from $0.015973 to $0.014424 or 9.70 percent. Overall tax 
collections increased by $2,187,561 from $18,905,680 in fiscal year 2018-2019 to $21,093,241 in 
fiscal year 2019-2020. 

 
 There was a salary schedule adjustment in fiscal year 2019-2020 of 2 percent. Compared to the prior 

fiscal year, salary and wage expenses increased by approximately $399,232 in fiscal year 2019-2020. 
 
 The 2019-2020 Maintenance and Operations budget was $34,533,568 which was an increase of 

$1,611,362 over the 2018-2019 budget. 
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Overview of Financial Statements 
 
The College qualifies as a special purpose government engaged in business-type activities and the basic financial 
statements are prepared on that basis. The basic financial statements include the Statements of Net Position; the 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position; and the Statements of Cash Flows. These basic 
financial statements should be read with the notes to the basic financial statements and with various supplemental 
schedules required by the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board. The Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) reporting model focuses on the College as a whole. The College’s basic financial statements are 
designed to emulate corporate presentation models whereby all College activities are reported in one column. 
 
Under GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus – An Amendment of GASB Statements 
No. 14 and No. 34, the Alvin Community College Foundation (the “Foundation”) is considered a component unit 
of the College for fiscal years 2021 and 2020 and, as such, is discretely presented in the College’s basic financial 
statements. Complete financial statements of the Foundation can be obtained from their offices. 
 
Statements of Net Position 
 
The Statements of Net Position present the assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and net 
position of the College as of August 31, 2021 and 2020. It is a point-in-time financial statement. The purpose of 
the Statements of Net Position is to provide the readers with a snapshot of the financial condition of the College 
on August 31, 2021 and 2020. It presents end-of-year data for current and noncurrent assets, deferred outflows, 
current and noncurrent liabilities, deferred inflows, and net position. From the information shown, readers are able 
to determine the assets that are available to continue operations, how much the College owes, net position, and its 
availability to carry out the College’s mission. 
 

Current assets $ 17,214,614 $ 26,473,091 $ (9,258,477) $ 30,237,612 $ (3,764,521)
Noncurrent assets:

Investments 13,250,000 13,650,000     (400,000)       12,450,000   1,200,000     
Capital assets, net of
   accumulated depreciation 45,576,905 30,953,322 14,623,583 26,464,717 4,488,605

Total Assets 76,041,519 71,076,413 4,965,106 69,152,329 1,924,084
                                      

Deferred Outflows of Resources 13,406,937 10,291,044 3,115,893 7,667,549     2,623,495

Current liabilities 8,514,533 7,916,579 597,954 7,822,446 94,133
Noncurrent liabilities 65,620,465 66,163,656 (543,191) 65,188,341 975,315

Total Liabilities 74,134,998 74,080,235 54,763 73,010,787 1,069,448
                                      

Deferred Inflows of Resources 8,780,440 8,620,989       159,451 10,166,776   (1,545,787)    
                                      

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 24,526,020 19,387,122 5,138,898 17,657,132 1,729,990
Restricted

Expendable student aid 1,805,309       2,068,934 (263,625) 109,879 1,959,055
Unrestricted (19,798,311)    (22,789,823)    2,991,512 (24,124,696) 1,334,873

Total Net Position $ 6,533,018 $ (1,333,767) $ 7,866,785 $ (6,357,685) $ 5,023,918

                                      

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

As of August 31, 2021-2019

2021 2020
(Decrease)
2021-2020

Increase

2019

Increase
(Decrease)
2020-2019
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Fiscal Year 2021 Compared to 2020 
 
Current assets decreased $9,258,477 primarily due to a decrease in restricted cash and cash equivalents as a result 
of the use of proceeds from the Series 2018 Tax Notes (the “Tax Notes”) for capital projects. This was partially 
offset by an increase in accounts receivable related to grant amounts awarded to the College compared to the prior 
year.  Noncurrent assets increased $14,223,583 due primarily to an increase in construction in progress. 
 
Current liabilities increased $597,954 primarily due to an increase in accounts payable as a result of an increase in 
retainage payables for construction. Noncurrent liabilities decreased $543,191 due mainly to a decrease in 
outstanding bonds payable.  
 
Fiscal Year 2020 Compared to 2019 
 
Current assets decreased $3,764,521 primarily due to a decrease in restricted cash and cash equivalents as a result 
of the use of proceeds from the Tax Notes. This was partially offset by an increase in accounts receivable and 
prepaids compared to the prior year. Noncurrent assets increased $5,688,605 due primarily to an increase in 
construction in progress, as well as the College investing in long-term certificates of deposit. 
 
Current liabilities increased $94,133 primarily due to an increase in accounts payable as a result of an increase in 
goods and services received but not paid for at year end. Noncurrent liabilities increased $975,315 due mainly to 
an increase in the net other postemployment benefits liability. 
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Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
 
The purpose of the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position is to present the revenues 
earned by the College, both operating and nonoperating; the expenses incurred, operating and nonoperating; and 
any other revenues, expenses, gains, and losses received or spent by the College. Generally, operating revenues 
are received for providing goods and services to the students of the College. Operating expenses are those paid to 
acquire or produce the goods and services provided in return for the operating revenues, and to carry out the 
College’s mission. Nonoperating revenues and expenses are funds received or used for which goods and services 
are not provided. 
 

Operating Revenues:
Tuition and fees,

net of discounts $ 8,147,486        $ 9,176,163 $ (1,028,677)      $ 8,857,943 $ 318,220
Auxiliary enterprises, 

net of discounts 1,496,980        1,438,144 58,836             1,581,929 (143,785)
Nongovernmental grants

and contracts 29,156             256,900 (227,744)         18,064 238,836
State grants and contracts 688,804           769,188 (80,384)           617,808 151,380
Federal grants and contracts 1,377,325        1,617,662 (240,337)         1,722,095 (104,433)

Total Operating Revenues 11,739,751      13,258,057      (1,518,306)      12,797,839      460,218           
Less Operating Expenses 51,990,383 48,200,635 3,789,748 43,404,802 4,795,833

Operating (Loss) (40,250,632)    (34,942,578)    (5,308,054)      (30,606,963)    (4,335,615)      

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
State appropriations 12,397,886 12,290,722 107,164 11,637,388 653,334
Property tax revenue 23,198,534 21,093,241 2,105,293 18,905,680 2,187,561
Federal revenue, nonoperating 13,139,443 6,758,351 6,381,092 5,248,502 1,509,849
Investment income 89,447 549,582 (460,135) 918,389 (368,807)
Interest and fiscal agent fees (1,146,286) (1,207,617) 61,331 (1,274,737) 67,120
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets -                      -                      -                      (10,095)           10,095             
Other nonoperating revenues 438,393 482,217 (43,824) 668,710 (186,493)

Total Nonoperating Revenues, Net 48,117,417      39,966,496      8,150,921        36,093,837      3,872,659        
Change in Net Position 7,866,785        5,023,918        2,842,867        5,486,874        (462,956)         

Beginning net position (1,333,767)      (6,357,685)      5,023,918        (11,844,559)    5,486,874        
Ending Net Position $ 6,533,018        $ (1,333,767)      $ 7,866,785        $ (6,357,685)      $ 5,023,918        

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND  CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Years Ended August 31, 2021-2019

2020-2019

Increase
(Decrease)

2020 2021-2020 2019

Increase
(Decrease)

2021

 
 

Fiscal Year 2021 Compared to 2020 
 
Total revenues (operating and nonoperating) for the fiscal year 2021 were $61,003,454.  Operating revenues 
decreased by $1,518,306 largely due to a decrease in tuition and fees primarily related to decreases in in-district 
and out-of-district tuition payments. Nonoperating revenues increased $8,089,590 primarily due to an increase in 
property tax revenues and federal revenue. Property tax revenue increased as the result of an increase in the 
assessed values of properties and increases in returns on the College’s investments. Federal revenue increased due 
to an increase in federal grant awards received related to the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
Total expenses (operating and nonoperating) increased $3,728,417, or 7.5 percent, compared to the prior year. 
This increase was primarily related to grant expenses related to the COVID-19 pandemic.  
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Fiscal Year 2020 Compared to 2019 
 
Total revenues (operating and nonoperating) for the fiscal year 2020 were $54,432,170.  Operating revenues 
increased by $460,218 largely due to an increase in tuition and fees and nongovernmental grants and contracts. 
The increase in tuition and fees was mostly due to increases in in-district tuition payments and both state funded 
and nonstate funded continuing education. The increase in nongovernmental grants and contracts was mainly due 
to grant funding from the Texas Pioneer Foundation. Nonoperating revenues increased $3,805,539 primarily due 
to an increase in property tax revenues and federal revenue. Property tax revenue increased as the result of an 
increase in the assessed values of properties and increases in returns on the College’s investments. Federal 
revenue increased significantly due to a new federal grant received for the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
Total expenses (operating and nonoperating) increased $4,718,618, or 9.6 percent, compared to the prior year. 
This increase was primarily related to grant expenses related to the COVID-19 pandemic.  
 

Federal, State and Other Grants
$15,234,728 

25%

Auxiliary Enterprises
$1,496,980 

3%

Taxes
$23,198,534 

38%

Tuition and Fees, Net
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Federal, State and Other 
Grants

$9,402,101 
17%

Auxiliary Enterprises
$1,438,144 

3%

Taxes
$21,093,241 

39%

Tuition and Fees, Net
$9,176,163 

17%

State Appropriations
$12,290,722 

22%

Other
$482,217 

1%

Investment Income
$549,582 
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Revenues by Source and Percentage
For the Year Ended August 31, 2020

 

2019
Operating Expenses:

Instruction $ 17,443,296 $ 18,021,555 $ (578,259) $ 16,850,990 $ 1,170,565
Institutional support 6,787,722 5,940,291 847,431 5,516,568 423,723
Academic support 7,070,549 6,852,610 217,939 6,286,310 566,300
Operation and 
   maintenance of plant 3,931,836 3,775,153 156,683 3,500,201 274,952
Auxiliary enterprises 1,680,420 1,861,358 (180,938) 1,996,449 (135,091)
Student services 4,233,402 4,124,900 108,502 3,839,196 285,704
Scholarships and
   fellowships 9,384,976 6,204,189 3,180,787 3,969,815 2,234,374
Depreciation 1,328,011 1,290,724 37,287 1,274,510 16,214
Public service 130,171 129,855 316 170,763 (40,908)

     Total $ 51,990,383 $ 48,200,635 $ 3,789,748 $ 43,404,802 $ 4,795,833

                                        

Years Ended August 31, 2021-2019

2020 2021-20202021
(Decrease)

OPERATING EXPENSES

Increase

2020-2019
(Decrease)
Increase

 

Operating expenses are primarily presented by functional categories, which represent the types of programs and 
services provided.  Nonoperating expenses consist of interest and fiscal agent fees from capital-related debt 
service of $1,146,286 and $1,207,617 for the years ended August 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  
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The following are graphic illustrations of operating expenses by functional category and percentage of total 
operating expenses for the years ended August 31, 2021 and 2020. 
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2021

2020

2019

Capital Assets 

Capital assets not depreciated:
Land $ 494,128  $ 494,128  $ - $ 494,128  $ -  
Construction in process 20,479,202  5,043,762  15,435,440  17,263  5,026,499  

 Total 20,973,330  5,537,890  15,435,440  511,391  5,026,499  

Other capital assets:
Buildings and improvements 35,812,051 35,794,384 17,667  35,794,384 -  
Facilities and improvements 4,846,884 4,749,412 97,472 4,674,820 74,592
Telecommunications equipment 2,115,660 2,021,828 93,832  1,947,483 74,345  
Furniture and equipment 7,392,620 7,087,078 305,542 6,489,410 597,668  
Library books 353,164 351,523 1,641 345,298 6,225
   Total 50,520,379 50,004,225 516,154 49,251,395 752,830

Less accumulated depreciation (25,916,804) (24,588,793) (1,328,011) (23,298,069) (1,290,724)
$ 45,576,905 $ 30,953,322 $ 14,623,583 $ 26,464,717 $ 4,488,605

20202021

Increase

CAPITAL ASSETS ACTIVITY
Years Ended August 31, 2021-2019

Increase
(Decrease)

20192021-2020
(Decrease)
2020-2019

Net Capital Assets
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Fiscal Year 2021 Compared to 2020 
 
As of August 31, 2021, the College had $71,493,709 invested in capital assets, $25,916,804 in accumulated 
depreciation, and $45,576,905 in net capital assets. Significant additions during the fiscal year included a new 
automotive lift system, as well as band hall storage improvements. 
 
Fiscal Year 2020 Compared to 2019 
 
As of August 31, 2020, the College had $55,542,115 invested in capital assets, $24,588,793 in accumulated 
depreciation, and $30,953,322 in net capital assets. Significant additions during the fiscal year included new 
learning system equipment, as well as ultrasound machines and other equipment for the nursing school. 
 
As required, detailed capital asset disclosures are presented in note 7 to the basic financial statements. 
 
Long-Term Debt 
 
The principal balance of the bonds was $26,515,000 and $28,625,000 as of August 31, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. 
 
As required, detailed debt disclosures are presented in note 8 to the basic financial statements. 
 
Contacting the College’s Financial Management 
 
This financial report is designed to provide the College’s taxpayers, students, investors, and creditors with a 
general overview of the College’s finances and to demonstrate the College’s accountability for the money it 
receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional information, contact the Business Office at 
3110 Mustang Road, Alvin, Texas 77511. 
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Exhibit 1

Assets
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 591,336                $ 1,608,810
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 8,162,618             19,987,530
Accounts receivable, net 7,334,609             3,405,823             
Inventories 217,360                240,303                
Prepaids 908,691                1,230,625             

Total Current Assets 17,214,614           26,473,091           
Noncurrent Assets:

Investments 13,250,000           13,650,000           
Capital assets, net:

Nondepreciable 20,973,330           5,537,890             
Depreciable 24,603,575           25,415,432           

Total Noncurrent Assets 58,826,905           44,603,322           
Total Assets 76,041,519           71,076,413           

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows - pensions 3,651,781             4,339,605
Deferred outflows - OPEB 9,755,156             5,951,439             

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 13,406,937           10,291,044           
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,050,852             1,345,456
Funds held for others 47,654                  46,535                  
Unearned revenues 3,903,568             4,113,549             
Compensated absences 302,459                301,039                
Bonds payable, net of premiums - current portion 2,210,000             2,110,000             

Total Current Liabilities 8,514,533             7,916,579             
Noncurrent Liabilities:

Compensated absences 163,455                227,667
Net pension liability 9,854,249             9,596,705
Net OPEB liability 28,599,258           26,895,554           
Bonds payable, net of premiums 27,003,503           29,443,730

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 65,620,465           66,163,656           
Total Liabilities 74,134,998           74,080,235           

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows - pensions 1,499,947             1,911,006
Deferred inflows - OPEB 7,280,493             6,709,983             

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 8,780,440             8,620,989             
Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 24,526,020           19,387,122           
Restricted for expendable student aid 1,805,309             2,068,934
Unrestricted (19,798,311)         (22,789,823)         

Total Net Position (Schedule D) $ 6,533,018             $ (1,333,767)           

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.                                                 

20202021

Alvin Community College
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

August 31, 2021 and 2020

21
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Exhibit 1A

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 174,981            $ 197,476
Investments 4,375,272         3,521,793
Inventory 5,251                5,251
Prepaids 3,900                2,200                

4,559,404 3,726,720

Liabilities:
Accounts payable 4,006 21,162              

Total Liabilities 4,006 21,162              

Net Assets:
Without donor restrictions 179,644 165,462
With donor restrictions

Purpose restrictions 3,064,280 2,228,622
Perpetual in nature 1,311,474 1,311,474

$ 4,555,398 $ 3,705,558

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.                                         
 

August 31, 2021 and 2020
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Alvin Community College Foundation

Total Assets

Total Net Assets

2021 2020
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Exhibit 2

Operating Revenues:
Tuition and fees, net of discounts of $3,410,273 for 2021 and
 $2,938,660 for 2020 $ 8,147,486         $ 9,176,163         
Federal grants and contracts 1,377,325         1,617,662         
State grants and contracts 688,804            769,188            
Nongovernmental grants and contracts 29,156              256,900            
Auxiliary enterprises, net of discounts of $142,500 for 2021 and
  $246,332 for 2020 1,496,980         1,438,144         

11,739,751       13,258,057       
                     

Operating Expenses:
Instruction 17,443,296       18,021,555       
Public service 130,171            129,855            
Academic support 7,070,549         6,852,610         
Student services 4,233,402         4,124,900         
Institutional support 6,787,722         5,940,291         
Operation and maintenance of plant 3,931,836         3,775,153         
Scholarships and fellowships 9,384,976         6,204,189         
Auxiliary enterprises 1,680,420         1,861,358         
Depreciation 1,328,011         1,290,724         

51,990,383       48,200,635       
(40,250,632)      (34,942,578)      

                     
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):

State appropriations 12,397,886       12,290,722       
Property tax revenue 21,566,730       19,453,051       
Debt service ad valorem taxes 1,631,804         1,640,190         
Federal revenue, nonoperating 13,139,443       6,758,351         
Investment income 89,447              549,582            
Interest on capital-related debt (1,146,286)        (1,207,617)        
Other nonoperating revenues 438,393            482,217            

48,117,417       39,966,496       
                     

7,866,785         5,023,918         
Beginning net position (1,333,767)        (6,357,685)        

$ 6,533,018         $ (1,333,767)        

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
                                        

Ending Net Position

Alvin Community College
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

For the Years Ended August 31, 2021 and 2020

Total Operating Revenues (Schedule A)

Total Operating Expenses (Schedule B)
Operating (Loss)

Total Nonoperating Revenues, Net (Schedule C)

20202021

Change in Net Position

25
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Exhibit 2A

With Donor
Restrictions 2021 2020

Revenues
  Support and revenues:

   Local Support:
       Contributions and grants $ -                     $ 129,009 $ 129,009         $ 176,937         
       Gala income, net 62,299 -                     62,299           82,811           
       Interest and dividend income -                     70,197 70,197           73,065           
       Dolphin athletics, net -                     2,600 2,600             1,950             
      ACC Feed the Hungry, net -                     -                     -                     599                
      Investment gains -                     783,138 783,138         253,309         
      Unrestricted income 8,927 -                     8,927             4,023             
      Other income 6,455 -                     6,455             1,030             

Total Local Support 77,681           984,944         1,062,625      593,724         

Net assets released from restrictions:
     Restrictions satisfied by payments 149,286 (149,286)        -                     -                     

Total Support and Revenues 226,967         835,658         1,062,625      593,724         

Expenses
   Program services:

  Scholarships 117,116 -                     117,116         76,751           
  Awards 31,258 -                     31,258           41,824           

Total Program Services 148,374         -                     148,374         118,575         

   Support services:
   Fundraising:
       Gala expenses 848 -                     848                35,073           
       Dolphin Athletics expenses 912                -                     912                -                     
       ACC Feed the Hungry expenses -                     -                     -                     2,500             

Total Fundraising 1,760             -                     1,760             37,573           

    Management and general:
       Professional services 36,427 -                     36,427           22,970           
       Operating expenses and supplies 23,054 -                     23,054           8,890             
       Other 3,170 -                     3,170             37,552           

Total Management and General 62,651           -                     62,651           69,412           
Total Expenses 212,785         -                     212,785         225,560         

14,182           835,658         849,840         368,164         

Beginning net assets 165,462         3,540,096      3,705,558      3,337,394      
Ending Net Assets $ 179,644         $ 4,375,754      $ 4,555,398      $ 3,705,558      

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Alvin Community College Foundation
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Years Ended August 31, 2021 and 2020

Change in Net Assets

Restrictions
Without Donor Total
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Exhibit 3

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from students and other customers $ 10,252,008 $ 10,692,130
Receipts of grants and contracts (2,441,043) 1,638,067
Payments to or on behalf of employees (32,356,934) (32,406,199)
Payments to suppliers for goods or services (9,137,037) (9,608,096)
Payments of scholarships (9,384,976) (6,204,189)

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Receipts of State appropriations 12,397,886 12,290,722
Receipts of maintenance and operations ad valorem taxes 21,566,730 19,453,051
Receipts from nonoperating Federal revenue 13,139,443 6,758,351
Other 438,393 482,217

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Receipts from debt service ad valorem taxes 1,631,804 1,640,190
Purchases of capital assets (15,951,594)      (5,779,329)
Payments on principal debt (2,110,000) (1,990,000)
Interest payments on principal debt (1,376,513) (1,498,876)

Net Cash (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of investments (23,635,000)      (26,600,000)      
Receipts from sale of investments 24,035,000       25,400,000       
Receipts from investment income 89,447 549,582

Net Cash (Used) by Investing Activities

(12,842,386) (5,182,379)
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 21,596,340 26,778,719

Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 8,753,954 $ 21,596,340
                                          

Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 591,336 $ 1,608,810
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 8,162,618 19,987,530       

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 8,753,954 $ 21,596,340
                                          

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Alvin Community College

For the Years Ended August 31, 2021 and 2020

20202021

(43,067,982) (35,888,287)

38,984,34147,542,452

(7,628,015)(17,806,303)

(650,418)489,447

Net Cash (Used) by Operating Activities

(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

28



Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Operating (loss) $ (40,250,632) $ (34,942,578)
Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss) to net cash (used)

by operating activities:
Depreciation expense 1,328,011 1,290,724
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Receivables, net (3,928,786) (927,860)
Inventories 22,943 53,813
Prepaids 321,934 (543,811)
Deferred outflows (3,115,893) (2,623,495)        
Deferred inflows 159,451 (1,545,787)        
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 705,396 319,553
Funds held for others 1,119 9,371
Deferred revenues (209,981) (317,970)
Net pension liability 257,544            44,501              
Net OPEB liability 1,703,704 3,181,265         
Compensated absences (62,792) 113,987

$ (43,067,982) $ (35,888,287)
                                          

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

2021 2020

Net Cash (Used) by Operating Activities

For the Years Ended August 31, 2021 and 2020

Alvin Community College
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS, Continued

29
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Exhibit 3A

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Change in net assets $ 849,840 $ 368,164
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Investment (gains) (783,138)        (253,309)
Interest (earnings) (70,197)          (73,065)
(Increase) decrease in current assets:
     Accounts receivable -                      450
     Prepaids (1,700) (2,200)            
Increase (decreas) in current liabilities
     Accounts payable (17,156) (24,574)

(22,351) 15,466

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchase of investments (167,378) (85,050)
Proceeds from sale of investments 167,234 92,979

(144) 7,929

(22,495) 23,395
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 197,476 174,081

$ 174,981 $ 197,476
                                      

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents

20202021

Alvin Community College Foundation
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

For the Years Ended August 31, 2021 and 2020

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities
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NOTE 1–Reporting Entity 
 
Alvin Community College (the “College”) was established in 1948, in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Texas, (the “State”) to serve the educational needs of the City of Alvin and the surrounding communities. The 
College is considered to be a special purpose, primary government according to the definition in Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity. While the College 
receives funding from local, State, and Federal sources, and must comply with the spending, reporting, and record 
keeping requirements of these entities, it is not a component unit of any other governmental entity. 
 
GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus – An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14 
and No. 34, modifies certain requirements for inclusion of component units in the financial reporting entity. For 
organizations that previously were required to be included as component units by meeting the fiscal dependency 
criterion, a financial benefit or burden relationship also would need to be present between the primary government 
and that organization for it to be included in the reporting entity as a component unit. GASB Statement No. 61 has 
been applied as required in the preparation of these basic financial statements and, accordingly, the Alvin 
Community College Foundation (the “Foundation”) is considered a component unit of the College as of August 
31, 2021 and 2020. The Foundation is reported in separate financial statements because of the difference in its 
reporting model, as further discussed below. 
 
The Foundation is a separate nonprofit organization, with the sole purpose of supporting the educational and other 
activities of the College. The Foundation reports its financial results under the standards of the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board. As such, certain revenue recognition criteria and presentation features are different 
from GASB revenue recognition criteria and presentation features. No modifications have been made to the 
Foundation’s financial information in the College’s financial reporting entity for these differences. The College 
furnished certain services, such as office space, supplies, and staff assistance, to the Foundation during the years 
ended August 31, 2021 and 2020. The costs of these services were not significant to the College. 
 
NOTE 2–Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Reporting Guidelines 
 
The significant accounting policies followed by the College in preparing these basic financial statements are in 
accordance with the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board’s (THECB) Annual Financial Reporting 
Requirements for Texas Public Community and Junior Colleges. The College applies all applicable GASB 
pronouncements. The College is reported as a special purpose government engaged in business-type activities.  
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
The basic financial statements of the College have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting whereby all 
revenues are recorded when earned and all expenses are recorded when they have been reduced to a legal or 
contractual obligation to pay.  
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Net Position 
 
Net position is classified as follows: 
 

Net investment in capital assets: This represents the College’s total investment in capital assets, net of 
outstanding debt obligations related to those capital assets. To the extent debt has been incurred but not 
yet expended for capital assets, such amounts are not included as a component of net investment in capital 
assets. 
 
Restricted net position – expendable: Restricted expendable net position includes resources in which the 
College is legally or contractually obligated to spend resources in accordance with restrictions imposed by 
external third parties. 
 
Restricted net position – nonexpendable: Restricted nonexpendable net position is subject to externally 
imposed provisions that it be maintained permanently by the College. 
 
Unrestricted net position: Unrestricted net position represents resources derived from student tuition and 
fees, State allocations, and sales and services of educational departments and auxiliary enterprises. These 
resources are used for transactions relating to the educational and general operations of the College, and 
may be used at the discretion of the governing board to meet current expenses for any purpose. These 
resources also include auxiliary enterprises, which are substantially self-supporting activities that provide 
services for students, faculty, and staff. 

 
Operating and Nonoperating Revenue and Expense Policy 
 
The College distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the College’s principal ongoing operations 
and are the result of exchange transactions with those who purchase, use, or directly benefit from the goods or 
services of the College. Operating revenues are reported gross of related expenses and net of any discount or sales 
allowance. The principal operating revenues are tuition and related fees (net of discounts); sales and services of 
auxiliary enterprises (net of discounts); and Federal, State, and local grants and contracts. 
 
Nonoperating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of nonexchange transactions. Certain 
significant revenue streams relied upon for operations are recorded as nonoperating revenue including State 
appropriations, Title IV financial aid, property taxes, and investment income. 
 
Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital 
assets. Nonoperating expenses consist of interest and fiscal agent fees from capital-related debt.  
 
Budgetary Data 
 
Each community college district in Texas is required by law to prepare an annual operating budget of anticipated 
revenues and expenditures for the fiscal year beginning September 1. The College’s Board of Regents (the 
“Board”) adopts the budget, which is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. A copy of the approved budget 
must be filed with the THECB, Legislative Budget Board, Legislative Reference Library, and Governor’s Office 
of Budget and Planning by December 1. 
 
 
 
 



Alvin Community College 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

For the Years Ended August 31, 2021 and 2020 
 

35 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The College’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term 
investments with maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.  
 
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the statements of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a 
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of 
resources (expense/expenditure) until then. In addition to liabilities, the statements of financial position will 
sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, 
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will 
not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  
 
Deferred outflows/inflows of resources are amortized as follows: 

 
• Deferred outflows/inflows from pension/other postemployment benefits (OPEB) activities are amortized 
over the average of the expected service lives of pension/OPEB plan members, except for the net 
differences between the projected and actual investment earnings on the pension/OPEB plan assets, which 
are amortized over a period of five years. 
 
• For employer pension/OPEB plan contributions that were made subsequent to the measurement date 
through the end of the College’s fiscal year, the amount is deferred and recognized as a reduction to the 
net pension/OPEB liability during the measurement period in which the contributions were made. 
 
• A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its 
reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or 
refunding debt. 

 
At the fund level, the College has only one type of item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of 
accounting, that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported 
only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from property 
taxes. This amount is deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amount becomes 
available. 
 
Investments 
 
Investments, except for certain investment pools, commercial paper, money market funds, and investment 
contracts, are reported at fair value. The investment pool operates in accordance with appropriate state laws and 
regulations and is reported at amortized cost. Money market funds, which are short-term highly liquid debt 
instruments that may include U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and commercial paper that have a remaining 
maturity of one year or less upon acquisition, are reported at amortized cost. Investments in nonparticipating 
interest-earning contracts, such as certificates of deposit, are reported at cost. 
 
Inventories 
 
Inventories consist of bookstore stock and food service items. Inventories are valued at cost and charged to 
expenses as sold. 
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Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition 
value at the date of donation. The College capitalizes all furniture and equipment with a unit cost equal to or 
greater than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Renovations of $100,000 or greater to 
buildings and facilities and land improvements that significantly increase the value or extend the useful life of the 
structure are capitalized. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend assets’ lives are charged to operating expense in the year in which the expense is incurred. 
 
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets and is not 
allocated to the functional expense categories. The following lives are used: 
 
          Estimated 
 Asset Description       Useful Life 

Buildings and improvement      50  years 
Facilities and improvements      20  years 
Library books        15  years 
Furniture and equipment       10  years 
Telecommunications equipment        5  years 

 
Collections 
 
The College has not capitalized its collection of art as it is considered immaterial to the College’s financial 
position. 
 
Unearned Revenues 
 
Unearned revenues, primarily consisting of tuition and fees, relate to academic terms in the next fiscal year and, 
as such, have been deferred. 
 
Tuition Discounting 
 
Texas Public Education Grants – Certain tuition amounts are required to be set aside for use as scholarships by 
qualifying students. This set-aside, called the Texas Public Education Grant, is shown with tuition and fee revenue 
amounts as a separate set-aside amount (Texas Education Code §56.033). When the award for tuition is used by 
the student, the amount is recorded as tuition and a corresponding amount is recorded as a tuition discount. If the 
amount is disbursed directly to the student, the amount is recorded as a scholarship expense. 
 
Title IV Higher Education Act Program Funds (“Title IV”) – Certain Title IV funds are received by the College to 
pass through to the student. These funds are initially received by the College and recorded as restricted revenue. 
When the student is awarded and uses these funds for tuition and fees, the amounts are recorded as revenue and a 
corresponding amount is recorded as a tuition discount. If the amount is disbursed directly to the students, the 
amount is recorded as a scholarship expense. 
 
Other tuition discounts – The College awards tuition and fee scholarships from institutional funds to qualifying 
students. When these amounts are used for tuition and fees, the amounts are recorded as tuition and fee revenue 
and a corresponding amount is recorded as a tuition discount. If the amount is disbursed directly to the students, 
the amount is recorded as a scholarship expense. 
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Bond Premiums and Issuance Costs 
 
Premiums received are amortized over the term of the related bond. Costs incurred in connection with bond 
issuances are expensed as incurred. 
 
Pensions 
 
The fiduciary net position of the Teacher Retirement System of Texas (TRS) has been determined using the flow 
of economic resources measurement focus and full accrual basis of accounting.  This includes for purposes of 
measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions, pension expense, and information about assets, liabilities, and additions to/deductions from TRS’s 
fiduciary net position.  Benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due 
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
Other Postemployment Benefits 
 
The fiduciary net position of the Texas Employees Group Benefits Program (GBP) has been determined using the 
flow of economic resources measurement focus and full accrual basis of accounting. This includes for purposes of 
measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB, OPEB expense, and information about assets, liabilities, and additions to/deductions from the GBP 
fiduciary net position. Benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit 
terms. There are no investments as this is a pay-as-you-go plan and all cash is held in a cash account. 
 
Estimates 
 
The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported 
amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
The College is exempt from income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 115, Income of States, 
Municipalities, etc., although unrelated business income may be subject to income taxes under Internal Revenue 
Code Section 511 (a) (2) (8), Imposition of Tax on Unrelated Business Income of Charitable, etc., Organizations. 
The College had no unrelated business income tax liability for the years ended August 31, 2021 and 2020 and, 
therefore, has not recorded a liability for income taxes. 
 
Reclassifications 
 
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified for comparative purposes to conform to the presentation in the 
current year financial statements. 
 
Net Position Flow Assumption 
 
Sometimes the College will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or 
grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted net position 
and unrestricted net position in the financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which 
the resources are considered to be applied. It is the College’s practice to consider restricted net position to have 
been depleted before unrestricted net position is applied. 
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NOTE 3–Authorized Investments 
 

The Board of the College has adopted a written investment policy regarding the investments of its funds as 
defined in the Public Funds Investment Act (the “Act”) (Chapter 2256.001 Texas Government Code). The 
investments of the College are in compliance with the Board investment policy and the Act. The College is 
authorized to invest in obligations and instruments as follows: (1) obligations of the United States and its 
agencies, (2) direct obligations of the State or its agencies, (3) obligations of political subdivisions rated not less 
than “A” by a national investment rating firm, (4) certificates of deposit, and (5) other instruments and obligations 
authorized by statute. 
 
NOTE 4–Deposits and Investments 

 
Deposits 
 
Custodial credit risk – Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that, in the event of a 
bank failure, the College’s deposits may not be returned to it. The College’s investment policy requires pledging 
of collateral for all bank balances in excess of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) limits at a minimum 
of 102 percent of market value. As of August 31, 2021 and 2020, the College’s cash and cash equivalents 
balances were either insured or collateralized, and thus not exposed to custodial credit risk. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents reported on the Statements of Net Position consist of the items reported below at 
August 31: 
 

Cash and cash equivalents:
   Bank deposits - demand deposits $ 584,292 $ 1,592,361
   Petty cash 7,044 16,449

          Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 591,336               $ 1,608,810            

                                                

20202021

 
Investments 
 
As of August 31, 2021, the College had the following investments: 

Weighted Average

Investment Type Maturity (Years)
Certificates of deposit $ 13,250,000      0.35
TexSTAR 8,162,618        0.14

Total Fair Value $ 21,412,618      

Portfolio weighted average maturity                     0.27

Fair Value

 
 

As of August 31, 2021 and 2020, the College held certificates of deposit of $13,250,000 and $13,650,000 
respectively.  For the current fiscal year, the full amount of $13,250,000 was classified as noncurrent investments.  
 
Interest rate risk – Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of 
an investment. In accordance with its investment policy, the College limits its exposure to interest rate risk by 
structuring its investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations, 
thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on the open market prior to maturity and investing operating funds 
primarily in shorter-term securities, money market mutual funds, or similar investment pools. Unless matched to a 
specific cash flow, the College may not directly invest in securities maturing more than three years from the date 
of purchase, with repurchase agreements limited to a maturity no longer than 120 days from the date of purchase. 
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Credit risk – The College limits its exposure to credit risk, the risk that the insurer of the debt security will not pay 
its par value upon maturity, by limiting investments to the safest types of securities; prequalifying the financial 
institutions, brokers dealers, intermediaries, and advisers with whom the College does business; and diversifying 
the investment portfolio so that potential losses on individual securities will be minimized. In addition, the 
College’s investment policy requires pledging of collateral for all securities at a minimum of 102 percent of 
market value. 
 
Concentration risk – The College limits its exposure to concentration risk, the risk of loss attributable to the 
magnitude of investment in a single issuer, through portfolio diversification. The College’s investment policy has 
the following maximum limits, by authorized instrument, for the College’s total portfolio: U.S. Treasury 
securities – 100 percent, certificates of deposit – 100 percent, money market mutual funds – 75 percent, mutual 
funds – 50 percent, agencies and instrumentalities – 75 percent, repurchase agreements (with the exception of 
flexible repurchase agreements) – 50 percent, authorized investment pools – 100 percent, commercial paper – 25 
percent, and flexible repurchase agreements - 100 percent. 
 
TexSTAR 
 
The Texas Short-Term Asset Reserve Fund (TexSTAR) is a local government investment pool organized under 
the authority of the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791, Texas Government Code, and the Act.  TexSTAR 
was created in April 2002 by contract among its participating governmental units and is governed by a board of 
directors.  JPMorgan Fleming Asset Management (USA), Inc. and First Southwest Asset Management, Inc. act as 
co-administrators, providing investment management services, participant services, and marketing.  JPMorgan 
Chase Bank and/or its subsidiary, J.P. Morgan Investor Services, Inc., provide custodial, transfer agency, fund 
accounting, and depository services. 
 
TexSTAR is measured at amortized cost. TexSTAR’s strategy is to seek preservation of principal, liquidity, and 
current income through investment in a diversified portfolio of short-term marketable securities.  The College has 
no unfunded commitments related to TexSTAR.  TexSTAR has a redemption notice period of one day and may 
redeem daily.  TexSTAR’s authorities may only impose restrictions on redemptions in the event of a general 
suspension of trading on major securities markets, general banking moratorium, or national or state emergency 
that affects TexSTAR’s liquidity.  
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NOTE 5–Disaggregation of Accounts Receivable 
 
Accounts receivable were as follows at August 31: 
 

   Student receivable $ 1,061,778        $ 1,735,867        
   Taxes receivable 501,469           502,356           
   Interest receivable 11,991             27,613             
   Federal receivable 5,802,925        1,123,589        
   State receivable 66,549             209,483           
   Sponsor receivable 331,689           143,285           
   ACC Foundation 4,006 21,162             
      Total accounts receivable 7,780,407        3,763,355        
   Less allowance for doubtful accounts (445,798)         (357,532)         

      Total Accounts Receivable, Net $ 7,334,609        $ 3,405,823        

                    

20202021

 
NOTE 6–Disaggregation of Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 
 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities were as follows at August 31: 

 

Accrued payroll $ 6,367               $ 8,395               

Vendors payable 2,044,485        1,308,695        

Sales tax payable -                      28,366             

     Total Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities $ 2,050,852        $ 1,345,456        

                                        

2021 2020
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NOTE 7–Capital Assets 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended August 31, 2021 was as follows: 
 

Nondepreciable:
   Land $ 494,128          $ -                      $ -                      $ 494,128          
   Construction in process 5,043,762       15,435,440     -                      20,479,202     

      Subtotal 5,537,890       15,435,440     -                      20,973,330     

Other capital assets:
   Buildings and improvements 35,794,384     17,667            -                      35,812,051     
   Facilities and improvements 4,749,412       97,472            -                      4,846,884       
   Furniture and equipment 7,087,078       305,542          -                      7,392,620       
   Telecommunications equipment 2,021,828       93,832            -                      2,115,660       
   Library books 351,523          1,641              -                      353,164          

      Subtotal 50,004,225     516,154          -                      50,520,379     
                   

Less accumulated depreciation:
   Buildings and improvements 15,028,242     618,590          -                      15,646,832     
   Facilities and improvements 2,639,706       135,993          -                      2,775,699       
   Furniture and equipment 4,793,536       471,313          -                      5,264,849       
   Telecommunications equipment 1,844,406       92,222            -                      1,936,628       
   Library books 282,903          9,893              -                      292,796          

      Total accumulated depreciation 24,588,793     1,328,011       -                      25,916,804                        
      Net Capital Assets $ 30,953,322     $ 14,623,583     $ -                      $ 45,576,905     

Balance
September 1,

2020

Balance
August 31,

2021
Deletions/

AdjustmentsAdditions

 
Capital asset activity for the year ended August 31, 2020 was as follows: 

 
Balance Balance

Nondepreciable:
   Land $ 494,128           $ -                      $ -                      $ 494,128           
   Construction in process 17,263             5,026,499        -                      5,043,762        

      Subtotal 511,391           5,026,499        -                      5,537,890        

Other capital assets:
   Buildings and improvements 35,794,384      -                      -                      35,794,384      
   Facilities and improvements 4,674,820        74,592             -                      4,749,412        
   Furniture and equipment 6,489,410        597,668           -                      7,087,078        
   Telecommunications equipment 1,947,483        74,345             -                      2,021,828        
   Library books 345,298           6,225               -                      351,523           

      Subtotal 49,251,395      752,830           -                      50,004,225      

Less accumulated depreciation:
   Buildings and improvements 14,388,218      640,024           -                      15,028,242      
   Facilities and improvements 2,512,626        127,080           -                      2,639,706        
   Furniture and equipment 4,350,476        443,060           -                      4,793,536        
   Telecommunications equipment 1,774,882        69,524             -                      1,844,406        
   Library books 271,867           11,036             -                      282,903           

      Total accumulated depreciation 23,298,069      1,290,724        -                      24,588,793      

      Net Capital Assets $ 26,464,717      $ 4,488,605        $ -                      $ 30,953,322      

August 31,
2020

Deletions/
AdjustmentsAdditions

September 1,
2019
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NOTE 8–Long-Term Liabilities 

Long-term liabilities activity for the year ended August 31, 2021 was as follows: 

Balance Balance
September 1, August 31, Current

2020 Additions Payments 2021 Portion
Bonds and Notes:

General obligation refunding
bonds - 2012 $ 7,460,000  $ - $ (1,365,000)  $ 6,095,000  $ 1,430,000  

Tax notes - 2018 21,165,000  - (745,000) 20,420,000  780,000.00  
Deferred amounts:

For premiums 2,928,730  - (230,227) 2,698,503  -  
31,553,730  - (2,340,227) 29,213,503  2,210,000  

Other liabilities:
Net pension liability 9,596,705  257,544  - 9,854,249 -  
Net OPEB liability 26,895,554  1,703,704  - 28,599,258 -  
 Compensated absences 528,706  280,430  (343,222)  465,914 302,459   

 Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 68,574,695  $ 2,241,678  $ (2,683,449)  $ 68,132,924  $ 2,512,459  

Long-term liabilities activity for the year ended August 31, 2020 was as follows: 

Balance Balance
September 1, August 31, Current

2019 Additions Payments 2020 Portion
Bonds:
 General obligation refunding

bonds - 2012 $ 8,690,000  $ - $ (1,230,000)  $ 7,460,000  $ 1,365,000  
 General obligation refunding

bonds - 2013 55,000   - (55,000) -  -  
Tax notes - 2018 21,870,000  - (705,000) 21,165,000  745,000

Deferred amounts: -  
For premiums 3,219,989  - (291,259) 2,928,730  -  

33,834,989  - (2,196,259) 31,553,730  2,110,000  
Other liabilities:

Net pension liability 9,552,204  44,501  - 9,596,705 -  
Net OPEB Liability 23,714,289  3,181,265  - 26,895,554 -  
 Compensated absences 414,719  350,123 (236,136) 528,706  301,039

 Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 67,516,201  $ 3,575,889  $ (2,432,395)  $ 68,574,695  $ 2,411,039  
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NOTE 9–Bonds and Notes Payable 
 
General information related to bonds payable is summarized as follows: 
 
Limited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 
 
 To advance refund $8,750,000 of the limited tax, series 2005 bonds and to pay the costs of issuing the bonds. 
 Issued April 1, 2012. 
 Original amount of issue – $8,690,000, with all authorized bonds issued. 
 Interest rates range from 3.5 percent to 5.0 percent. 
 Due in semiannual installments each February 15 and August 15, with interest payments beginning August 

15, 2012 and principal payments beginning February 15, 2020, and the final installment due February 15, 
2025. 

 Source of revenue for debt service – annual ad valorem taxes. 
 Outstanding bonds payable of $6,095,000 at August 31, 2021. 
 
Tax Notes, Series 2018 
 
 To provide capital for additional construction and improvements around the campus. 
 Issued August 15, 2018. 
 Interest rates range from 3 percent to 5 percent. 
 Due in semiannual installments each February 15 and August 15, with the first principal and interest payment 

being due February 15, 2019. 
 Source of revenue for debt service – annual ad valorem taxes. 
 Outstanding bonds payable of $20,420,000 at August 31, 2021. 
 
Bond and Note Debt Service Requirements 

 
The bond and note debt service requirements for the next five years and five-year increments thereafter are as 
follows: 

 
Fiscal Year

2022 $ 2,210,000          $ 1,211,775          $ 3,421,775          
2023 2,320,000          1,104,150          3,424,150          
2024 2,420,000          1,002,937          3,422,937          
2025 2,515,000          903,300             3,418,300          
2026 955,000             828,625             1,783,625          

2027-2031 5,560,000          3,356,250          8,916,250          
2032-2036 7,140,000          1,776,750          8,916,750          
2037-2038 3,395,000          171,875             3,566,875          

Total $ 26,515,000        $ 10,355,662        $ 36,870,662        

                      

TotalInterestPrincipal
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Arbitrage Liability 
 
The Tax Reform Act of 1986 instituted certain arbitrage consisting of complex regulations with respect to 
issuance of tax-exempt bonds after August 31, 1986. Arbitrage regulations deal with the investment of tax-exempt 
bond proceeds at an interest yield greater than the interest yield paid to bondholders. Generally, all interest paid to 
bondholders can be retroactively rendered taxable if applicable rebates are not reported and paid to the Internal 
Revenue Service (IRS) at least every five years for applicable bond issues. Accordingly, there is a risk that if such 
calculations are not performed, or are not performed correctly, a substantial liability to the College could result. 
The College periodically engages an arbitrage consultant to perform the calculations in accordance with IRS rules 
and regulations and the arbitrage liability is adjusted accordingly. 
 
NOTE 10–Employee Retirement Plans 
 
The College’s employees may participate in one of three retirement plans. Faculty, administrators, counselors, 
and librarians may enroll in either TRS or the Optional Retirement Plan (ORP). Secretarial and clerical employees 
participate in TRS and part-time employees not enrolled in either TRS or ORP participate in the Alvin 
Community College Money Purchase Plan (the “Money Purchase Plan”). The total payroll for all College 
employees was $23,445,858 and $23,752,596 for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
 
Teacher Retirement System 

 
Plan Description 
 
The College participates in a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension that has a special funding 
situation. The plan is administered by TRS. It is a defined benefit pension plan established and administered in 
accordance with the Texas Constitution, Article XVI, Section 67 and Texas Government Code, Title 8, Subtitle 
C. The pension trust fund is a qualified pension trust under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. The 
Texas Legislature (the “Legislature”) establishes benefits and contribution rates within the guidelines of the Texas 
Constitution. TRS’s Board of Trustees does not have the authority to establish or amend benefit terms. 
 
All employees of public, state-supported educational institutions in the State who are employed for one-half or 
more of the standard workload and who are not exempted from membership under Texas Government Code, Title 
8, Section 822.002 are covered by TRS. 
 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
Detailed information about TRS’s fiduciary net position is available in a separately issued Annual Comprehensive 
Financial Report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be 
obtained on the Internet at https://www.trs.texas.gov/Pages/about publications.aspx; by writing to TRS at 1000 
Red River Street, Austin, TX, 78701-2698, or by calling (512) 542-6592. 
 
Benefits Provided 
 
TRS provides service and disability retirement, as well as death and survivor benefits, to eligible employees (and 
their beneficiaries) of public and higher education in Texas. The pension formula is calculated using 2.3 percent 
(multiplier) times the average of the five highest annual creditable salaries times years of credited service to arrive 
at the annual standard annuity except for members who are grandfathered, the three highest annual salaries are 
used. The normal service retirement is at age 65 with 5 years of credited service or when the sum of the member’s 
age and years of credited service equals 80 or more years. Early retirement is at age 55 with 5 years of service 
credit or earlier than 55 with 30 years of service credit. There are additional provisions for early retirement if the 
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sum of the member’s age and years of service credit total at least 80, but the member is less than age 60 or 62 
depending on date of employment, or if the member was grandfathered in under a previous rule. There are no 
automatic post-employment benefit changes, including automatic cost-of-living adjustments (COLAs). Ad hoc 
post-employment benefit changes, including ad hoc COLAs can be granted by the Legislature as noted in the Plan 
Description above. 
 
Texas Government Code section 821.006 prohibits benefit improvements if, as a result of the particular action, 
the time required to amortize TRS’s unfunded actuarial liabilities would be increased to a period that exceeds 31 
years or, if the amortization period already exceeds 31 years, the period would be increased by such action.  
Actuarial implications of the funding provided in the manner are determined by TRS’s actuary.  
 
In May 2019, the 86th Texas Legislature approved the TRS Pension Reform Bill (SB12) that provides for gradual 
contribution increase from the State, participating employers, and active employees to make TRS actuarially 
sound.  This action causing TRS to be actuarially sound allowed the Legislature to approve funding for a 
thirteenth check in September 2019.  All eligible members retired as of December 31, 2018 received an extra 
annuity check in either the matching amount of their monthly annuity or $2,000, whichever was less. 
 
Contributions 
 
Contribution requirements are established or amended pursuant to Article 16, section 67 of the Texas Constitution 
which requires the Legislature to establish a member contribution rate of not less than 6% of the member’s annual 
compensation and a state contribution rate of not less than 6% and not more than 10% of the aggregate annual 
compensation paid to members of TRS during the fiscal year. 
 
Employee contribution rates are set in state statute, Texas Government Code 825.402. SB12 of the 86th Texas 
Legislature amended Texas Government Code 825.402 for member contributions and increased employee and 
employer contribution rates for fiscal years 2020 through 2025.   
 

Public Education Active

Fiscal Year State Employer* Employee

2020 7.50% 1.50% 7.70%

2021 7.50% 1.60% 7.70%

2022 7.75% 1.70% 8.00%

2023 8.00% 1.80% 8.00%

2024 8.25% 1.90% 8.25%

2025 8.25% 2.00% 8.25%

Contribution Rates
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Member 7.7% 7.7%

NECE (State) 7.5% 7.5%

Employers 7.5% 7.5%

Employer contributions $ 759,157             $ 780,823             

Member contributions $ 1,341,039          $ 1,360,910          

NECE on-behalf contributions $ 545,600             $ 1,250,705          

Measurement 
Year (2020)

Fiscal                 
Year (2021)

Contribution Rates

2020 2021

 

Contributors to TRS include members, employers, and the State as the only nonemployer contributing entity 
(NECE). The State is the employer for senior colleges, medical schools, and state agencies, including TRS. In 
each respective role, the State contributes to TRS in accordance with state statutes and the General Appropriations 
Act. 
 
As the NECE for public education and junior colleges, the State contributes to TRS an amount equal to the 
current employer contribution rate times the aggregate annual compensation of all participating members of TRS 
during that fiscal year reduced by the amounts described below, which are paid by the employers. Employers 
(public schools, junior colleges, other entities, or the State as the employer for senior universities and medical 
schools) are required to pay the employer contribution rate in the following instances: 
 

 On the portion of the member’s salary that exceeds the statutory minimum for members entitled to the 
statutory minimum under Section 21.402 of the Texas Education Code. 
 

 During a new member’s first 90 days of employment. 
 

 When any part or all of an employee’s salary is paid by federal funding sources, a privately sponsored 
source, from noneducational, and general or local funds. 
 

 When the employing district is a public junior college or junior college district, the employer shall 
contribute to TRS an amount equal to 50% of the state contribution rate for certain instructional or 
administrative employees and 100% of the state contribution rate for all other employees. 

 
In addition to the employer contributions listed above, there is an additional surcharge an employer is subject to: 
 

 All public schools, charter schools, and regional educational service centers must contribute 1.5 percent 
of the member’s salary beginning in fiscal year 2020, gradually increasing to 2 percent in fiscal year 
2025.  
 

 When employing a retiree of the TRS, the employer shall pay both the member contribution and the state 
contribution as an employment after retirement surcharge.  
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Actuarial Assumptions 
 

The total pension liability (TPL) in the August 31, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions: 
 

Valuation date August 31, 2019 rolled forward to August 31, 2020

Actuarial cost method Individual entry age normal

Asset valuation method Market value

Single discount rate 7.25%

Long-term expected investment rate of return 7.25%
Municipal bond rate as of August 2020 2.33%. Source for the rate is the Fixed Income 

Market Data/Yield Curve/Data Municipal Bonds 
with 20 years to maturity that include only federally 
tax-exempt municipal bonds as reported in Fidelity 

Index's "20-Year Municipal GO AA Index."

Inflation 2.30%

Salary increases, including inflation 3.05% to 9.05%, including inflation

Benefit changes during the year None

Ad hoc postemployment benefit changes None

 
The actuarial methods and assumptions used in the determination of the TPL are the same assumptions used in the 
actuarial valuation as of ending August 31, 2019.  For a full description of these assumptions, please see the TRS 
actuarial valuation report dated November 14, 2019. 
 
Discount Rate 
 
A single discount rate of 7.25% was used to measure the TPL. The single discount rate was based on the expected 
rate of return on plan investments of 7.25%.  The projection of cash flows used to determine this single discount 
rate assumed that contributions from active members, employers, and the NECE will be made at the rates set by 
the Legislature during the 2019 session.  It is assumed that future employer and state contributions will be 8.50% 
of payroll in fiscal year 2020 gradually increasing to 9.55% of payroll over the next several years. This includes 
all employer and state contributions for active and rehired retirees.  
 
Based on those assumptions, TRS’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all future benefit 
payments of current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on TRS investments was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the TPL. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on TRS investments is 7.25%.  The long-term expected rate of return on 
TRS investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimates ranges of expected 
future real rates of return (expected returns, net of TRS investment expense and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the 
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.   
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Best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class included in TRS’s target asset allocation 
as of August 31, 2020 are summarized below: 
 

Asset Class
Global Equity

U.S. 18.00% 3.90% 0.99%
Non-U.S. Developed 13.00% 5.10% 0.92%
Emerging Markets 9.00% 5.60% 0.83%
Private Equity 14.00% 6.70% 1.41%

Stable Value
Government Bonds 16.00% -0.70% -0.05%
Stable Value Hedge Funds 5.00% 1.90% 0.11%

Real Return
Real Estate 15.00% 4.60% 1.01%
Energy, Natural Resources, and Infrastructure 6.00% 6.00% 0.42%

Risk Parity
Risk Parity 8.0% 3.0% 0.3%

Leverage
Cash 2.0% -1.5% 0.0%
Asset Allocation Leverage -6.0% -1.3% 0.1%

Inflation Expectation 2.0%
Volatility Drag(3) -0.7%

Total 100.00% 33.30% 7.32%

Teacher Retirement System of Texas

Asset Allocation and Long-Term Expected Real Rate of Return

As of August 31, 2020

(3)  The volatility drag results from the conversion between arithmetic and geometric mean returns.

(2)  Capital Market Assumptions come from Aon Hewitt (as of 08/31/2020).
(1)  Target allocations are based on the FY2020 policy model.

Target 
Allocation (1)

Long-Term 
Expected 

Arithmetic 
Real Rate of 
Return (2)

Expected 
Contributions 
to Long-Term 

Portfolio 
Returns

 
Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis 
 
The following schedule shows the impact of the net pension liability (NPL) if the discount rate used was 1% less 
than and 1% greater than the discount rate that was used (7.25%) in measuring the NPL: 
 

College's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 15,195,075        $ 9,854,249            $ 5,514,944          

                                            

1%  Decrease in 
Discount Rate 

(6.25% )

1%  Increase in 
Discount Rate 

(8.25% )
Discount Rate 

(7.25% )
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Pension Liability, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
 
At August 31, 2021, the College reported a liability of $9,854,249 for its proportionate share of the TRS’s NPL. 
This liability reflects a reduction for State pension support provided to the College. The amount recognized by the 
College as its proportionate share of the NPL, the related State support, and the total portion of the NPL that was 
associated with the College were as follows: 
 

College's proportionate share of the collective net pension liability $ 9,854,249                

State's proportionate share that is associated with the College 7,082,185                

Total $ 16,936,434              

 
The NPL was measured as of August 31, 2019 and rolled forward to August 31, 2020 and the TPL used to 
calculate the NPL was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The College’s proportion of the NPL 
was based on the College’s contributions to TRS relative to the contributions of all employers to TRS for the 
period September 1, 2019 through August 31, 2020. 
 
At August 31, 2021, the College’s proportion of the collective NPL was 0.0183992%, which was a decrease of 
0.000062% from its proportion measured as of August 31, 2020. 
 
Changes Since the Prior Actuarial Valuation 

 
There were no changes in assumptions since the prior measurement date.  
 
For the year ended August 31, 2021, the District recognized pension expense of $851,830 and revenue of 
$851,830 for support provided by the State. 
 
At August 31, 2021, the College reported its proportionate share of the TRS’s deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:  
 

Difference between expected and actual economic experience $ 17,993               $ 275,006             

Changes in actuarial assumptions 2,286,536          972,219             

Net difference between projected and actual investment earnings 199,491             -                        

Changes in proportion and difference between the employer's

contributions and the proportionate share of contributions 366,938             252,722             

Contributions paid to TRS subsequent to the measurement date 780,823             -                        

Total $ 3,651,781          $ 1,499,947          

                                        

Deferred

Outflows of

Resources

Deferred 

Inflows of

Resources
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The net amounts of the College’s balances of deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will 
be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

 

2022 $ 176,468                

2023 539,897                

2024 536,616                

2025 197,577                

2026 (76,034)                 

Thereafter (3,513)                   

Total $ 1,371,011             

                        

Pension Expense
Fiscal Year Ended 

August 31

 
Optional Retirement Plan 
 
Plan Description 
 
The State has also established an ORP for institutions of higher education. Participation in an ORP is in lieu of 
participation in TRS. The ORP provides for the purchase of annuity contracts and operates under the provisions of 
Texas Constitution, Article XVI, Sec. 67 and Texas Government Code, Title 8, Subtitle C. 
 
Funding Policy 
 
Contribution requirements are not actuarially determined but are established and amended by the Legislature. The 
percentage of participant salaries contributed by the State and each participant was 6.6% of annual compensation 
in fiscal year 2020 and 2021. The College also makes additional contributions of 0.9% of annual compensation in 
fiscal year 2020 and 2021 for employees who were employed after September 1, 1995. For employees who were 
employed as of September 1, 1995, the College contributed 1.9% for fiscal years 2021 and 2020 of annual 
compensation. Benefits are fully vested after one year plus one day of employment. Because these are individual 
annuity contracts, neither the State nor the College has an additional or unfunded liability for this program. SB 
1812, effective September 1, 2013, limits the amount of the State’s contribution to 50 percent of eligible 
employees in the reporting district. 
 
The ORP retirement expense to the State for the College was $111,659, $127,649, and $142,362 for fiscal years 
2021, 2020, and 2019, respectively. These amounts represent the portion of expended appropriations made by the 
Legislature on behalf of the College. 
 
The total payroll for all College employees was $23,445,858, $23,752,596, and $23,118,852 for fiscal years 2021, 
2020, and 2019, respectively. The total payroll of employees covered by the ORP was $3,385,604, $3,884,209, 
and $4,328,967  for fiscal years 2021, 2020, and 2019, respectively.  
 
Alvin Community College Money Purchase Plan 
 
The Money Purchase Plan is a defined contribution plan created in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code 
Section 401(a) and is available to eligible, part-time employees of the College. Under the Money Purchase Plan, 
employees may contribute 6.2% of their total gross earnings and the College contributes 1.3% of the participant’s 
total gross earnings. Benefits are immediately vested. The total payroll of employees covered by the Money 
Purchase Plan was $1,594,072, and $1,743,682 for the years ended August 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
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Contributions made by the College during the years ended August 31, 2021 and 2020 were approximately 
$20,723 and $22,668, respectively. 
 
NOTE 11–Postemployment Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits 
 
Employees Retirement System of Texas 
 
Plan Description 

 
The College participates in a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, OPEB plan with a special funding situation.  The 
GBP is administered by the Employees Retirement System of Texas (ERS).  The GBP provides certain 
postemployment health care, life, and dental insurance benefits to retired employees of participating universities, 
community colleges, and State agencies in accordance with Chapter 1551, Texas Insurance Code.  Almost all 
employees may become eligible for those benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the State 
and retire with at least 10 years of service to eligible entities.  Surviving spouses and dependents of these retirees 
are also covered.  Benefit and contribution provisions of the GBP are authorized by State law and may be 
amended by the Legislature.  
 
OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
Detailed information about the GBP’s  fiduciary  net  position  is  available in the separately issued ERS Annual 
Comprehensive Financial Report that  includes  financial  statements, notes to the financial statements, and 
Required Supplementary  Information.  That  report  may  be  obtained  on  the Internet  at  
https://ers.texas.gov/About-ERS/Reports-and-Studies/ Reports - on - Overall - ERS - Operations - and -Financial -
Management; by writing to ERS at 200 East 18th  Street,  Austin,  TX  78701;  or  by  calling  (877) 275-4377.  
The fiduciary net position of GBP has been determined using  the  same  basis  used  by  the  OPEB plan. 
 
Benefits Provided 
 
Retiree health benefits offered through the GBP are available to most State retirees and their eligible dependents.  
Participants need at least 10 years of service credit with an agency or institution that participates in the GBP to be 
eligible for GBP retiree insurance.  The GBP provides self-funded group health (medical and prescription drug) 
benefits for eligible retirees under HealthSelect.  The GBP also provides a fully insured medical benefit option for 
Medicare-primary participants under the HealthSelect Medicare Advantage Plan and life insurance benefits to 
eligible retirees via a minimum premium funding arrangement.  The authority under which the obligations of the 
GBP members and employers are established and/or may be amended is Chapter 1551, Texas Insurance Code.   
 
Contributions  
 
Section 1551.055 of Chapter 1551, Texas Insurance Code, provides that contribution requirements of GBP 
members and the participating employers are established and may be amended by the ERS Board of Trustees (the 
“ERS Board”). The employer and member contribution rates are determined annually by the ERS Board based on 
the recommendations of ERS staff and its consulting actuary.  The contribution rates are determined based on (i) 
the benefit and administrative costs expected to be incurred, (ii) the funds appropriated, and (iii) the funding 
policy established by the Legislature in connection with benefits provided through the GBP. The Board revises 
benefits when necessary to match expected benefit and administrative costs with the revenue expected to be 
generated by the appropriated funds. 
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The following table summarizes the maximum monthly employer contribution toward eligible retirees’ health and 
basic life premium.  Retirees pay any premium over and above the employer contribution.  The College does not 
contribute toward dental or optional life insurance. Surviving spouses and their dependents do not receive any 
employer contribution.  As the NECE, the State pays part of the premiums for the junior and community colleges.  
  

Retiree Only $ 625

Retiree and Spouse $ 1,341

Retiree and Children $ 1,104

Retiree and Family $ 1,820

Maximum Montly Employer Contribution 
Fiscal Year 2021

 
Contributions of premiums to the GBP for the current and prior fiscal year by source are summarized in the 
following table: 
 

Employer contributions $ 748,369,212             $ 401,284,833          

Member contributions 230,151,101             209,836,664          

NECE on-behalf contributions 37,736,903               20,182,872            

Total $ 1,016,257,216          $ 631,304,369          

2020 2019

Premium Contributions by Source

Group Benefits Program Plan

For the Years Ended August 31, 2020 and 2019

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Alvin Community College 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

For the Years Ended August 31, 2021 and 2020 
 

53 

Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of August 31, 2020 using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:  
 

Valuation date August 31, 2020

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Amortization method Level percentage of pay, open

Remaining amortization period 30 years
Asset valuation method Marked to Market. Future gains and 

losses each recognized over closed 
five-year period, with allowance of 

direct offsetting of deferrals by 
subsequent gains or losses. Discount rate 2.20%

Salary increases 2.30% to 9.05%, including inflation
Aggregate payroll growth 2.70%

Inflation 2.30%

Ad hoc postemployment benefit changes None

Healthcare cost trend rates:

Medical (HealthSelect)
8.80% for FY2022, 5.25% for FY2023, 
5.00% for FY2024, 4.75% for FY2025, 
4.60% for FY2026 decreasing 10 basis 
points per year to an ultimate rate of 

4.30% for FY2029 and later years.

Medicare (HealthSelect Medicare 
Advantage)

10.00% for FY2022 and FY2023, 
decreasing 10 basis points per year to 

5.00% for FY2028 and 4.30% for 
FY2029 and later years.

 
Many of the actuarial assumptions used in this valuation were based on the results of actuarial experience studies 
performed by the ERS and TRS retirement plan actuaries for the period September 1, 2019, through August 31, 
2020 for higher education members. 
  

 

Investment Policy 
 
The GBP is a pay-as-you-go plan and does not accumulate funds in advance of retirement.  The ERS Board 
adopted the amendment to the investment policy in August 2017 to require that all funds in the GBP be invested 
in short-term fixed income securities and specify that the expected rate of return on these investments is 2.4 
percent.  
 
Discount Rate  
 
Because the GBP does not accumulate funds in advance of retirement, the discount rate that was used to measure 
the total OPEB liability is the municipal bonds rate.  The discount rate used to determine the total OPEB liability 
as of the beginning of the measurement year was 3.96 percent.  The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB 
liability as of the end of the measurement year was 2.20 percent, which amounted to a decrease of 1.76 percent.  
The source of the municipal bond rate was the Bond Buyer Index of general obligation bonds with 20 years to 
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maturity and mixed credit quality.  The bond’s average credit quality is roughly equivalent to Moody’s Investors 
Service’s ‘Aa2’ rating and Standard & Poor’s ‘AA’ rating.  Projected cash flows into the GBP are equal to 
projected benefit payments out of the GBP. Because the GBP operates on a pay-as-you-go basis and is not 
intended to accumulate assets, there is no long-term expected rate of return on GBP assets and, therefore, the 
years of projected benefit payments to which the long-term expected rate of return is applicable is zero years.  

Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis 

The following schedule shows the impact on the College’s proportionate share of the collective net OPEB liability 
if the discount rate used was 1 percent less than and 1 percent greater than the discount rate that was used in 
measuring the net OPEB Liability.   

College's proportionate share of

 the net OPEB liability $ 33,992,237  $ 28,599,260  $ 24,374,345  

1%  Decrease in 1%  Increase in

Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate

(1.20% ) (2.20% ) (3.20% )

Hea
lthcare Trend Rate Sensitivity Analysis 

The initial healthcare trend rate is 7.3 percent and the ultimate rate is 4.3 percent.  The following schedule shows 
the impact on the College’s proportionate share of the collective net OPEB liability if the healthcare cost trend 
rate used was 1 percent less than and 1 percent greater than the healthcare cost trend rate that was used in 
measuring the net OPEB Liability. 

College's proportionate share of

 the net OPEB liability $ 23,935,699  $ 28,599,260  $ 34,712,700  

1%  Increase in

Healthcare Cost Healthcare Cost Healthcare Cost

Trend Rate Trend Rate Trend Rate

Current1%  Decrease in

OP
EB Liability 

At August 31, 2021, the College reported a liability of $28,599,260 for its proportionate share of the GBP’s net 
OPEB liability. This liability reflects a reduction for State support provided to the College for OPEB. The amount 
recognized by the College as its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability, the related State support, and the 
total portion of the net OPEB liability that was associated with the College were as follows: 

College's proportionate share of the collective net OPEB liability $ 28,599,260  

State's proportionate share that is associated with the College 18,977,820  

Total $ 47,577,080  

The net OPEB liability was measured as of August 31, 2020 and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net 
OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The College’s proportion of the net 
OPEB liability was based on the College’s contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the contributions of all 
employers to the plan for the period September 1, 2019 through August 31, 2020.  
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At the measurement date of August 31, 2020, the College’s proportion of the collective net OPEB liability was 
0.0816389%, which was an increase of 0.0038221% compared to the proportion measured as of August 31, 2019.  
For the fiscal year ended August 31, 2021, the College recognized OPEB expense of $1,368,816 and revenue of 
$1,368,816 for support provided by the State. 
 
Changes Since the Prior Actuarial Valuation 

 
The following were changes to the actuarial assumptions or other inputs that affected measurement of the total 
OPEB liability since the prior measurement period: 
 

 Demographic assumptions (including rate of retirement, termination, mortality, and assumed salary 
increases for select classes of State Agency employees), assumed aggregate payroll increases, and the 
assumed rate of general inflation have been updated to reflect assumptions recently adopted by the ERS 
Board. 
 

 Assumed Per Capita Health Benefit Costs and assumed Health Benefit Cost and Retiree Contribution 
trends have been updated to reflect recent experience and its effects on short-term expectations. 

 
 The percentage of current retirees and their spouses not yet eligible to participate in the HealthSelect 

Medicare Advantage Plan and future retirees and their spouses who will elect to participate in the GPB 
plan at the earliest date at which coverage can commence.  
 

 The percentage of future female retirees assumed to be married and electing coverage for their spouse. 
 

 The proportion of future retirees assumed to cover dependent children has been updated to reflect recent 
plan experience and expected trends. 
 

 The discount rate was changed from 2.97% to 2.20% as a result of requirements by GASB Statement No. 
74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pensions, to utilize the yield or 
index rate for 20-year, tax exempt general obligation municipal bonds rate ‘AA/Aa’ (or equivalent) or 
higher in effect on the measurement date. 

 
There were no changes in benefit terms since the prior measurement date.  
 
At August 31, 2021, the College reported its proportionate share of the GBP’s collective deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 
 

Net difference between projected and actual investment earnings $ 8,535                 $ -                        

Changes in assumptions 1,655,698          6,161,962          

Difference between expected and actual experience -                        1,118,531          

Effect of change in proportion and contributions difference 5,536,670          -                        

Contributions paid to GBP subsequent to the measurement date 2,554,253          -                        

Total $ 9,755,156          $ 7,280,493          

                                          

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred

Inflows of

Resources
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The net amounts of the College’s balances of deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB will be 
recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 
 

2022 $ (1,230,449)            

2023 (410,261)               

2024 581,599                

2025 774,073                

2026 205,448                

Thereafter -                            

Total $ (79,590)                 

                        

OPEBFiscal Year Ended 
August 31 Expense

 
 

NOTE 12–Compensated Absences 
 
Compensated absences represent the liability associated with vacation benefits and compensatory time earned but 
not yet taken by employees of the College. The expense associated with vacation benefits and compensatory time 
benefits earned is recognized in the periods in which the associated employee services are rendered. Full-time 
employees earn annual leave at the rate of eight hours per month (September through May). No employee may 
accrue more than 192 hours of vacation benefits and, upon termination, an employee is paid for vacation benefits 
and accrued compensatory time (if compensatory time is applicable). As of August 31, 2021 and 2020, the 
College had an accrued vacation and compensated time liability of $465,914 and $528,706, respectively. 
 
Sick leave is earned at the rate of ten hours per month with a limit of 720 hours. It is paid to an employee who 
misses work because of illness. Unused accrued sick leave is forfeited upon termination of employment with the 
College. Therefore, no accrued liability has been recorded for sick leave. 
 
NOTE 13–Contract and Grant Awards 
 
Contract and grant awards are accounted for in accordance with the requirements of accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. Revenues are recognized on Exhibit 2 and Schedule A. 
Contract and grant awards for which funds are expended, but not collected, are reported as receivables on Exhibit 
1. Contract and grant awards that are not yet funded and for which the College has not yet performed services are 
not included in the basic financial statements. Contract and grant award funds already committed, e.g., multi-year 
awards, or funds awarded during fiscal years 2021 and 2020 for which monies have not been received nor funds 
expended totaled $4,291,904 and $6,864,001, respectively. Of these amounts, $4,291,904 and $6,809,560 were 
from Federal contract and grant awards and $0 and $54,441 were from State contract and grant awards for fiscal 
years 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
 
NOTE 14–Property Taxes 
 
The College’s ad valorem property tax is levied each October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 
1 for all real and business personal property located in the tax area of the College. Property taxes are recorded on 
the accrual basis of accounting. 
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At August 31: 
 

Assessed valuation of the tax district $ 14,216,441,229        $ 12,699,707,978        
Less exemptions (1,654,944,085)        (1,467,122,613)        

   Net Assessed Valuation of the Tax District $ 12,561,497,144        $ 11,232,585,365        

For fiscal year 2021:
   Tax rate per $100 valuation authorized $ 0.500000 $ 0.500000 $ 1.000000
   Tax rate per $100 valuation assessed $ 0.170579 $ 0.012864 $ 0.183443

For fiscal year 2020:
   Tax rate per $100 valuation authorized $ 0.500000 $ 0.500000 $ 1.000000
   Tax rate per $100 valuation assessed $ 0.171438 $ 0.014424 $ 0.185862

2021 2020

Total
Debt

Service
Maintenance
& Operations

 

Taxes levied for the years ended August 31, 2021 and 2020 were $23,022,344 and $20,848,634, respectively. 
Taxes are due upon receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February 1 of the year following 
the year in which imposed. 
 
Under GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, ad valorem 
taxes are imposed nonexchange revenue. Assets from imposed nonexchange transactions are recorded when the 
entity has an enforceable legal claim to the assets or when the entity receives resources, whichever comes first. 
The enforceable legal claim date for ad valorem taxes is the assessment date. Accordingly, the College has 
recognized all assessed taxes and recorded a receivable for uncollected taxes. 
 
For the year ended August 31, 2021:

Taxes collected:
   Current taxes collected $ 21,245,745 $ 1,602,218 $ 22,847,963        
   Delinquent taxes collected 185,757 18,236 203,993             
   Penalties and interest collected 135,228 11,350 146,578             

      Total Taxes Collected $ 21,566,730               $ 1,631,804                 $ 23,198,534        

                                                          
For the year ended August 31, 2020:

   Current taxes collected $ 19,045,031 $ 1,602,356 $ 20,647,387        
   Delinquent taxes collected 227,145 21,890 249,035             
   Penalties and interest collected 180,875 15,944 196,819             

      Total Taxes Collected $ 19,453,051               $ 1,640,190                 $ 21,093,241        

Total

Debt

Service

Maintenance

& Operations

Total
Debt

Service
Maintenance
& Operations

Ta
x collections for both years ended August 31, 2021 and 2020 were 99 percent of the current tax levy. Allowances 
for uncollectible taxes are based upon historical experience in collecting property taxes. The use of tax proceeds is 
restricted to maintenance and operations and debt service. 
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NOTE 15–Contingent Liabilities 
 
Legal Matters 
 
The College is involved in various legal proceedings arising from its operations. While the ultimate liability with 
respect to litigation against the College cannot be reasonably estimated at this time, management of the College 
believes that the outcome of these proceedings, individually and in the aggregate, will have no material effect on 
the College’s financial position. 
 
State and Federally Assisted Programs 
 
The College participates in a number of State and Federally assisted programs. These programs are subject to 
program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. Accordingly, the College’s compliance with 
applicable grant requirements will be finally determined at some future date. The amount of expenditures, if any, 
which may be disallowed by the grantor agencies cannot be determined at this time, although management of the 
College expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 
 
NOTE 16–Risk Management 
 
The College is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the College maintains general liability insurance through a 
commercial insurance company. Workers’ compensation coverage is obtained through the Deep East Texas Self-
Insurance Fund program. This interlocal agreement permits public entities to enter into agreements with other 
public entities in the interest of cooperatively sharing resources for their mutual benefit. The College has no 
additional risk beyond the amount of the monthly premiums. The College has not significantly reduced insurance 
coverage or had settlements which exceeded coverage amounts for the past three years. 
 
NOTE 17–Alvin Community College Foundation 
 
The Foundation is a separate nonprofit organization, with the sole purpose of supporting the educational and other 
activities of the College. The Foundation remitted restricted and unrestricted funds of $148,374 and $118,575 to 
the College for the years ended August 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The College furnished certain services, 
such as office space, supplies, and staff assistance, to the Foundation during the years ended August 31, 2021 and 
2020. The costs of these services were not significant to the College.  
 
NOTE 18–Contingency 
 
The continued spread of the COVID-19 pandemic has given a rise in uncertainties that may have a significant 
negative impact on the operating activities and results of the College. The occurrence and extent of such impact 
will depend on future developments, including (i) the duration and spread of the virus, (ii) government quarantine 
measures, (iii) the effects on the financial markets, and (iv) the effects on the economy overall, all of which are 
uncertain. 
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College's proportion of the net pension liability 0.0183992% 0.0184612% 0.0173543% 0.0180199%

College's proportionate share 
    of the net pension liability $ 9,854,249 $ 9,596,705 $ 9,552,204 $ 5,761,792

State's proportionate share of the net pension
 liability associated with the College 7,082,185 6,493,802 6,638,482 3,445,635

Total $ 16,936,434 $ 16,090,507 $ 16,190,686 $ 9,207,427

College's covered payroll $ 17,416,095 $ 15,879,248 $ 14,693,013 $ 13,845,409

College's proportionate share of the net pension 
 liability as a percentage of its covered payroll 56.58% 60.44% 65.01% 41.62%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
     total pension liability 75.54% 75.24% 73.74% 82.17%

* Only seven years' worth of information is currently available.

Notes to Required Supplementary Information:

1. Changes in Assumptions: There were no changes in assumptions or other inputs that affected measurement of
    the total pension liability (TPL) during the measurement period.

20182019
Measurement Year*

2. Changes in Benefits: There were no changes of benefit terms that affected measurement of the TPL during the measurement 
period.

Alvin Community College
SCHEDULE OF THE COLLEGE'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE

OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
TEACHER RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF TEXAS (TRS)

For the Year Ended August 31, 2021

20172020
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0.0174550% 0.0179298% 0.0192277%

$ 6,596,001 $ 6,337,945 $ 5,135,984

4,058,819 4,361,258 3,574,251

$ 10,654,820 $ 10,699,203 $ 8,710,235

$ 13,103,730 $ 13,147,582 $ 12,097,591

50.34% 48.21% 42.45%

78.00% 78.43% 83.25%

20142015
Measurement Year*

2016
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0.0865474% 0.0778168% 0.0800138% 0.0823892%

$ 28,599,260  $ 26,895,554  $ 23,714,289  $ 28,072,469  

18,977,820  20,783,555  17,463,813  19,717,014  

$ 47,577,080  $ 47,679,109  $ 41,178,102  $ 47,789,483  

$ 18,403,129  $ 17,769,223  $ 17,378,476  $ 15,866,657  

155% 151% 136% 177%

0.32% 0.17% 1.27% 2.04%

* Only four years' worth of information is currently available.

1.

2.

3.

For the Year Ended August 31, 2021

Alvin Community College
SCHEDULE OF THE COLLEGE'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE

OF THE NET OPEB LIABILITY
EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF TEXAS (ERS)

20172018

Changes in assumptions for the measurement year ended August 31, 2020 include (a) discount rate decreased from 2.97% to 
2.20%, (b) percentage of current retirees and their spouses not yet eligible to participate in the HealthSelect Medicare Advantage 
Plan and future retirees and their spouses who will elect to participate in the GRP at the earliest date at which coverage can 
commence, (c) percentage of future female retirees assumed to be married and electing coverage for their spouse, (d) proportion 
of future retirees assumed to cover dependent children have been updated to reflect recent plan experience and expected trends 
and (e) assumptions for Assumed Per Capita Health Benefit Costs and Health Benefit Cost and Retireee Contribution trends.

2020

   OPEB liability
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

State's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset) 
associated with the College

Total

College's covered payroll

College's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 
   as a percentage of its covered payroll

Measurement Year*

College's proportion of the net OPEB liability (asset)

College's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 
(asset)

Changes in benefits: There were no changes of benefit terms that affected measurement of the total OPEB liability during the 
measurement period.

Benefit payments include expenses directly related to the payment of benefits and are net of member contributions and federal 
revenues.

2019
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Contractually required contribution $ 780,823         $ 763,820         $ 763,820         $ 633,412         

Contributions in relations to the
contractually required contribution 780,823         763,820         763,820         633,412         

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - $ - 

College's covered payroll $ 17,674,157    $ 17,416,095    $ 17,416,095    $ 15,879,248    

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll 4.42% 4.39% 4.39% 3.99%

2019 2018
Fiscal Year

20202021

Alvin Community College

For the Year Ended August 31, 2021
Last 10 Fiscal Years

TEACHER RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF TEXAS (TRS)
SCHEDULE OF COLLEGE CONTRIBUTIONS
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$ 580,282         $ 589,585         $ 554,591         $ 530,909         $ 487,477         $ 594,269         

580,282         589,585         554,591         530,909         487,477         594,269         

$ -                    $ -                    $ -                    $ -                    $ -                    $ -                    

$ 14,693,013    $ 13,845,409    $ 13,103,730    $ 13,147,582    $ 12,097,591    $ 9,120,208      

3.95% 4.26% 4.23% 4.04% 4.03% 6.52%

201220132017 2016 2015 2014
Fiscal Year
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Statutorily or contractually required College
contributions $ 2,554,252   $ 2,454,201   $ 2,345,186   $ 2,324,369   

Contributions recognized by OPEB in
relation to statutorily or contractually
required contributions 2,554,252   2,454,201   2,345,186   2,324,369   

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -                  $ -                  $ -                  $ -                  

College's covered payroll $ 18,385,556 $ 18,403,129 $ 17,769,223 $ 17,378,476 

Contributions as a percentage of covered
payroll 13.89% 13.34% 13.20% 13.37%

* Only five years' worth of information is currently available.

2020 2019 20182021

Alvin Community College
SCHEDULE OF COLLEGE CONTRIBUTIONS

EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF TEXAS (ERS)
For the Year Ended August 31, 2021

Fiscal Year*
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$ 771,844      

771,844      
$ -                  

$ 15,866,657 

4.86%

Fiscal Year*
2017
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Schedule A

Tuition
State funded courses:

In-district resident tuition $ 2,214,108       $ -                      $ 2,214,108       $ -                      
Out-of-district resident tuition 4,329,351       -                      4,329,351       -                      
TPEG - credit (set aside) * 206,166          -                      206,166          -                      
Nonresident tuition 356,841          -                      356,841          -                      

State funded continuing education 973,620          -                      973,620          -                      
TPEG - noncredit (set aside) * 57,652            -                      57,652            -                      
Nonstate funded continuing education 128,180          -                      128,180          -                      

Total Tuition 8,265,918       -                      8,265,918       -                      

Fees
General fees 1,432,304       -                      1,432,304       -                      
Student service fees -                      -                      -                      230,962          
Laboratory fees 204,243          -                      204,243          -                      
Building use fees 445,156          -                      445,156          -                      
Technology fees 746,113          -                      746,113          -                      
Security fees -                      -                      -                      232,263          
Other fees 800                 -                      800                 -                      

Total Fees 2,828,616       -                      2,828,616       463,225          

Scholarship Allowances and Discounts
Remissions and exemptions - State (1,337,287)     -                      (1,337,287)     -                      
Remissions and exemptions - local -                      -                      -                      (5,849)            
TPEG allowances (263,818)        -                      (263,818)        -                      
Federal grants to students (1,635,735)     -                      (1,635,735)     -                      
Other (167,584)        -                      (167,584)        -                      

Total Scholarship Allowances
   and Discounts (3,404,424)     -                      (3,404,424)     (5,849)            

Total Net Tuition and Fees 7,690,110       -                      7,690,110       457,376          

For the Year Ended August 31, 2021

Alvin Community College
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING REVENUES

(With Memorandum Totals For the Year Ended August 31, 2020)

2021
Educational Activities

RestrictedUnrestricted Total
Auxiliary

Enterprises
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$ 2,214,108       $ 2,438,847       
4,329,351       4,519,426       

206,166          224,320          
356,841          378,090          
973,620          964,041

57,652            56,411            
128,180          221,847

8,265,918       8,802,982       

1,432,304       1,226,229       
230,962          254,610          
204,243          237,418          
445,156          495,476          
746,113          839,047          
232,263          258,116

800                 945                 

3,291,841       3,311,841       

(1,337,287)     (1,390,678)     
(5,849)            (7,611)            

(263,818)        (280,731)        
(1,635,735)     (1,123,125)     

(167,584)        (136,515)        

(3,410,273)     (2,938,660)     

8,147,486       9,176,163       

2020

2021

Total
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Schedule A

Other Operating Revenues
Federal grants and contracts $ -                      $ 1,377,325       $ 1,377,325       $ -                      
State grants and contracts -                      688,804          688,804          -                      
Nongovernmental grants
   and contracts -                      29,156            29,156            -                      

Total Other Operating Revenues -                      2,095,285       2,095,285       -                      

Auxiliary Enterprises
Bookstore -                      -                      -                      1,378,289       
Scholarships allowances
   and discounts -                      -                      -                      (142,500)        

Net b'ookstore -                      -                      -                      1,235,789       

Child care center -                      -                      -                      257,143          
Food services -                      -                      -                      1,510              
Fitness center -                      -                      -                      2,538              

Total Net Auxiliary Enterprises -                      -                      -                      1,496,980       

Total Operating Revenues (Exhibit 2) $ 7,690,110       $ 2,095,285       $ 9,785,395       $ 1,954,356       

* In accordance with Texas Education Code 56.033, $263,818 and $280,731 of tuition was set aside for
   Texas Public Education Grants (TPEG) during fiscal years 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Alvin Community College
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING REVENUES, Continued

For the Year Ended August 31, 2021
(With Memorandum Totals For the Year Ended August 31, 2020)

Educational Activities Auxiliary
Unrestricted Restricted Total Enterprises

2021
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$ 1,377,325       $ 1,617,662       
688,804          769,188          

29,156            256,900          

2,095,285       2,643,750       

1,378,289       1,427,671       

(142,500)        (246,332)        

1,235,789       1,181,339       

257,143          236,282          
1,510              5,131              
2,538              15,392            

1,496,980       1,438,144       

$ 11,739,751     $ 13,258,057     

2020Total

2021
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Schedule B

Unrestricted - Educational Activities
Instruction $ 11,357,330     $ -                      $ 1,905,625       $ 863,774          
Public service 12,334            -                      2,295              113,380          
Academic support 3,217,769       -                      539,900          2,238,883       
Student services 2,772,358       -                      465,165          468,973          
Institutional support 3,335,071       -                      573,620          2,294,328       
Operation and maintenance of plant 1,165,820       -                      367,921          2,398,095       

Total Unrestricted - Educational Activities 21,860,682     -                      3,854,526       8,377,433       

Restricted - Educational Activities
Instruction 445,840          1,991,160       92,136            787,431          
Public service -                      2,162              -                      -                      
Academic support 296,584          564,137          69,403            143,873          
Student services 44,142            486,048          -                      (3,284)            
Institutional support -                      584,703          -                      -                      
Scholarships and fellowships -                      -                      -                      9,384,976       

Total Restricted Educational Activities 786,566          3,628,210       161,539          10,312,996     

Total Educational Activities 22,647,248     3,628,210       4,016,065       18,690,429     

Auxiliary enterprises 609,357          -                      188,087          882,976          

Depreciation expense - buildings and other real 
estate improvements -                      -                      -                      754,584

Depreciation expense - equipment and furniture -                      -                      -                      573,427

Total Operating Expenses $ 23,256,605     $ 3,628,210       $ 4,204,152       $ 20,901,416     

2021

SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES BY OBJECT
Alvin Community College

For the Year Ended August 31, 2021
(With Memorandum Totals For the Year Ended August 31, 2020)

Educational Activities

and Wages State Local Expenses
Salaries Benefits Other
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$ 14,126,729     $ 14,703,040
128,009          119,341

5,996,552       5,786,610
3,706,496       3,577,217
6,203,019       5,433,183
3,931,836       3,775,153

34,092,641     33,394,544     

3,316,567       3,318,515
2,162              10,514

1,073,997       1,066,000
526,906          547,683
584,703          507,108

9,384,976       6,204,189

14,889,311     11,654,009     

48,981,952     45,048,553     

1,680,420       1,861,358

754,584          767,104
573,427          523,620

$ 51,990,383     $ 48,200,635     
                   

2021

Total 2020
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Schedule C

Nonoperating Revenues
State appropriations:

Education and general State support $ 7,774,481        $ -                      $ -                      $ 7,774,481        
State group insurance -                       1,726,468       -                      1,726,468        
State retirement matching -                       2,896,937       -                      2,896,937        

Total state appropriations 7,774,481        4,623,405       -                      12,397,886      

Taxes for maintenance and operations 21,566,730      -                      -                      21,566,730      
Taxes for debt service -                       1,631,804       -                      1,631,804        
Federal revenue, nonoperating -                       13,139,443     -                      13,139,443      
Investment income 28,918             52,108            8,421              89,447             
Other nonoperating revenues 438,393           -                      -                      438,393           

Total Nonoperating Revenues 29,808,522      19,446,760     8,421              49,263,703      

Nonoperating Expenses
Interest and fiscal agent fees 1,146,286        -                      -                      1,146,286        

Total Nonoperating Expenses 1,146,286        -                      -                      1,146,286        

Nonoperating Revenues, Net $ 28,662,236      $ 19,446,760     $ 8,421              $ 48,117,417      

Alvin Community College
SCHEDULE OF NONOPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

For the Year Ended August 31, 2021
(With Memorandum Totals For the Year Ended August 31, 2020)

Unrestricted Restricted Enterprises Total
Auxiliary

2021

76



$ 7,774,939
1,726,468
2,789,315

12,290,722      

19,453,051
1,640,190
6,758,351

549,582
482,217

41,174,113                                                                                                                                             

1,207,617

1,207,617        

$ 39,966,496      

2020
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Schedule D

Current
Unrestricted $ (19,798,311)    $ - $ - $ - 
Student aid - 1,805,309 - - 

Plant
Investment in plant - - - 24,526,020           

Total Net Position, August 31, 2021 (19,798,311)    1,805,309      - 24,526,020 

Total net position, August 31, 2020 (22,789,823)    2,068,934      - 19,387,122 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position $ 2,991,512       $ (263,625)       $ - $ 5,138,898             

Alvin Community College

Nonexpendable
Net of Depreciation

For the Year Ended August 31, 2021
SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION BY SOURCE AND AVAILABILITY

Capital Assets
Detail by Source

and Related DebtUnrestricted Expendable
Restricted
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$ (19,798,311)   $ (19,798,311)   $ -                      
1,805,309       1,805,309       -                      

24,526,020     -                      24,526,020     

6,533,018       (17,993,002)   24,526,020     

(1,333,767)     -                      4,891,131       

$ 7,866,785       $ (17,993,002)   $ 19,634,889     

No

Available for Current
Operations

Total

Detail by Source

Yes
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH  
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Regents of 
Alvin Community College: 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities and the 
discretely presented component unit of Alvin Community College (the “College”), as of and for the year ended 
August 31, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the College’s basic 
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 8, 2021. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the College’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the College’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified.  
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the College’s financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance 
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Texas Public Funds Investment Act 

We have performed tests designed to verify the College’s compliance with the requirements of the Texas Public 
Funds Investment Act (the “Act”). During the year ended August 31, 2021, the results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance with the Act. However, providing an opinion on compliance with the Act was not an 
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the College’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

Belt Harris Pechacek, LLLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
Houston, Texas 
December 8, 2021 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Board of Regents of 
Alvin Community College: 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Alvin Community College’s (the “College”) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each 
of the College’s major federal programs for the year ended August 31, 2021.  The College’s major federal 
programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs.   

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the College’s major federal programs based 
on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted our audit of compliance in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those 
standards, the Uniform Guidance that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material 
effect on a major federal program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
College’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary 
in the circumstances.   

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the College’s compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the College complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred 
to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended 
August 31, 2021. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of the College is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our audit of 
compliance, we considered the College’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that 
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control over 
compliance.  
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a 
timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not 
been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose 
 

 
Belt Harris Pechacek, LLLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
Houston, Texas 
December 8, 2021 
 



Alvin Community College 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

For the Year Ended August 31, 2021 
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None Noted. 
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Alvin Community College 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Year Ended August 31, 2021 
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A.  SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 
 
Financial Statements 
 

1. The auditors’ report expresses an unmodified opinion on the basic financial statements of the College. 
 

2. No significant deficiencies in internal control were disclosed by the audit of the basic financial 
statements. 

 
3. No instances of noncompliance material to the basic financial statements were disclosed during the 

audit. 
 

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs were disclosed by the 
audit. 

 
5. The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federal award programs expresses an unmodified 

opinion. 
 

6. Major programs included: 
   
Name of Federal Program 

Federal AL  
Number 

Student Financial Assistance Cluster:     
   Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund Grant  

COVID-19 Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act – Student 
Aid 

 
84.425E 

COVID-19 Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act – 
Institutional 

 
84.425F 

COVID-19 Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations 
Act – Student Aid 

 
84.425E 

COVID-19 Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations 
Act – Institutional 

 
84.425F 

COVID-19 America Rescue Plan – Student Aid 84.425E 
COVID-19 America Rescue Plan – Institutional 84.425F 

   Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 84.007 
   Federal Work-Study Program 84.033 
   Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063 
   Federal Direct Student Loans 84.268 

 
7. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000. 

 
8. The College was classified as a low-risk auditee in the context of the Uniform Guidance. 

 
9. The College was not classified as a low-risk auditee in the State of Texas Single Audit Circular. 

 
B. FINDINGS – BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT 
 
None 
 
C.  FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS– FEDERAL AWARDS 
 
None 



Schedule E

Federal Pass-Through
AL Grantor's

Number Number

National Science Foundation
Pass-Through From:

University of Houston:
IUSE: HER: From Discovery to Market 47.076 R-18-0008 $ 4,064

4,064
U.S. Department of Education

Direct Programs:
Student Financial Assistance Cluster:

Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund Grant
COVID-19 Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic

Security Act - Student Aid 84.425E P425E202972 715,649
COVID-19 Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic 

Security Act - Institutional 84.425F P425F203672 359,563
COVID-19 Coronavirus Response and Relief

Supplemental Appropiations Act - Student Aid 84.425E P425E410203 1,138,749
COVID-19 Coronavirus Response and Relief

Supplemental Appropriations Act - Institutional 84.425F P425F410204 3,598,040
COVID-19 America Rescue Plan - Student Aid 84.425E P425E513211 691,617
COVID-19 America Rescue Plan - Institutional 84.425F P425F513212 1,868,026

Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 84.007 P007A203951 174,758
Federal Work-Study Program 84.033 P033A203951 34,976
Federal Pell Grant Program - 20-21 84.063 P063P202256 3,791,698
Federal Direct Student Loans - 20-21 84.268 P268K212256 759,707

Higher Education Institutional Aid (STEM Grant) 84.031C P031C160219 741,470
TRIO Cluster:

TRIO Upward Bound 84.047 P047A170605 309,692
Pass-Through From:

Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board:
Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 84.048 2142020271 20001 167,736

14,351,681

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Pass-Through From:

Texas Department of Public Saftey

Public Assistance Grant - Hurricane Harvey 97.036 FEMA-5332-DR-TX 6,661 
6,661

Alvin Community College
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended August 31, 2021

     Total U.S. Department of Education

     Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security

  Program Title
Federal Grantor/Pass Through Grantor/

     Total National Science Foundation

Expenditures and
Pass-Through
Disbursements
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Schedule E

U.S. Department of Labor
Pass-Through From:

Texas Workforce Commission:
Wagner Peyser 17.207 2818WPB002 11,421
Wagner Peyser 17.207 2820WPB001 141,146
Building Construction Trades Training Demonstration Project 17.258 2819WOS001 1,795

154,362

     Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 14,516,768
Total Federal Revenues $ 14,516,768

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of Federal and State awards.

     Total U.S. Department of Labor

Alvin Community College
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS, Continued

For the Year Ended August 31, 2021
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Schedule F

Grant
 Contract

Number

Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board:
Educational Aide 9146540M $ 5,731                
Nursing Shortage Reduction Grant FY2019 9142111M 38,716              
Nursing Shortage Reduction Grant under 70 FY2019 9141538M 53,347              
Texas College Work Study 9145159M 9,167                
TEOG formerly Texas Grant II 9050007G 237,200            

344,161            

Texas Workforce Commission:
Skills Development Fund Cluster:

Industrial Consortium 2819SDF006 223,594            
Childcare Grant 2921CCR007 53,659              
JET Grant Nursing 2820JET002 67,390              

344,643            

$ 688,804            

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of Federal and State awards.

Total Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board

Total Expenditures of State Awards

Alvin Community College
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS

For the Year Ended August 31, 2021

ExpendituresGrantor Agency/Program Title

Total Texas Workforce Commission
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Alvin Community College 
NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES 

OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS 
For the Year Ended August 31, 2020 

 

93 

1. FEDERAL ASSISTANCE RECONCILIATION 
 

Federal revenues:

Federal grants and contracts - per Schedule A $ 1,377,325         

Federal revenue, nonoperating - per Schedule C 13,139,443       
$ 14,516,768       Total Federal Revenues

 
 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES USED IN PREPARING THE SCHEDULES 
 

The schedules of expenditures of Federal and State awards (the “Schedules”) present the activity of 
Federal and State financial assistance programs of the College for the year ended August 31, 2021.  
Federal financial assistance received directly from Federal agencies is included in these Schedules.  
  
Expenditure reports to funding agencies are prepared on the award period basis.  The expenditures 
reported previously represent funds which have been expended by the College for the purposes of the 
award during fiscal year 2021.  The expenditures reported previously may not have been reimbursed 
by the funding agencies as of the end of fiscal year 2021.  Separate accounts are maintained for the 
different awards to aid in the observance of limitations and restrictions imposed by the funding 
agencies.  The College has followed all applicable guidelines issued by various entities in the 
preparation of the Schedules. 
 
The College has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the 
Uniform Guidance. 

 
3. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE REPORTS 
 

Differences between amounts reflected in the financial reports filed with grantor agencies for the 
programs and in the Schedules are due to different program year ends and accruals that will be 
reflected in the next report filed with the grantor agencies. 
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STATISTICAL INFORMATION
(Unaudited)

These statistical tables provide selected financial and demographic information.
The statistical tables are for informational purposes only and are not audited.
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SS-1

Primary government
Net investment in capital assets $ 24,526           $ 19,387           $ 17,657           $ 16,433           
Restricted - expendable 1,805             2,069             110                73                  
Unrestricted (19,798)          (22,790)          (24,125)          (28,351)          

$ 6,533             $ (1,334)            $ (6,358)            $ (11,845)                    Net Position

2018

       Total Primary Government

20192021 2020

Alvin Community College
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT

Last 10 Years
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

For the Fiscal Years Ended August 31,
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$ 15,105           $ 14,177           $ 14,102           $ 14,382           $ 14,160           $ 14,325           
191                243                244                325                320                320                

(29,713)          1,890             58                  (413)               5,122             5,934             

$ (14,417)          $ 16,310           $ 14,404           $ 14,294           $ 19,602           $ 20,579           

20162017 2015 2013
For the Fiscal Years Ended August 31,

20122014
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Operating Revenues:
Tuition and fees (net of discounts) $ 8,147           $ 9,176           $ 8,858           $ 9,377           
Governmental grants and contracts

Federal grants and contract 1,377           1,618           1,722           1,414           
State grants and contracts 689              769              618              296              

Nongovernmental grants and contracts 29                257              18                15                
Sales and services of educational revenues

Auxiliary enterprises 1,497           1,438           1,582           1,737           
11,739         13,258         12,798         12,839         

Nonoperating Revenues:
State appropriations 12,398         12,291         11,637         11,121         
Ad valorem taxes 23,199         21,093         18,906         16,892         
Federal revenue, nonoperating 13,139         6,758           5,249           4,942           
Investment income 89                550              918              222              
Other nonoperating revenues 438              482              668              676              

49,263         41,174         37,378         33,853         

$ 61,002         $ 54,432         $ 50,176         $ 46,692         

 

Operating Revenues:
Tuition and fees (net of discounts) 13.36% 16.86% 17.65% 20.08%
Governmental grants and contracts

Federal grants and contract 2.26% 2.97% 3.43% 3.03%
State grants and contracts 1.13% 1.41% 1.23% 0.63%
Local grants and contracts 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Nongovernmental grants and contracts 0.05% 0.47% 0.04% 0.03%
Sales and services of educational revenues

Auxiliary enterprises 2.45% 2.64% 3.15% 3.72%
19.24% 24.36% 25.51% 27.50%

Nonoperating Revenues:
State appropriations 20.32% 22.58% 23.19% 23.82%
Ad valorem taxes 38.03% 38.75% 37.68% 36.18%
Federal revenue, nonoperating 21.54% 12.42% 10.46% 10.58%
Gifts 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Investment income 0.15% 1.01% 1.83% 0.48%
Other nonoperating revenues 0.72% 0.89% 1.33% 1.45%

80.76% 75.64% 74.49% 72.50%

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Alvin Community College                        SS-2

2019

Total Primary Government Program Revenues

Total Nonoperating Revenues

 For the Fiscal Years Ended August 31,

Total Operating Revenues

2020 2019

 For the Fiscal Years Ended August 31,

Total Operating Revenues

REVENUES BY SOURCE

2018
(amounts expressed in thousands)

2021

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2020

(amounts expressed in percentages)
2021 2018

Total Nonoperating Revenues

Total Primary Government Program Revenues
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10,952         9,966           $ 10,107$       $ 10,253         $ 9,096           $ 9,482           

827              302              297              423              420              399              
1,833           1,045           1,678           1,861           266              1,690           

34                62                34                12                5                  1                  

1,611           1,942           1,901           1,919           1,986           1,756           
15,257         13,317         14,017         14,468         11,773         13,328         

9,319           9,403           9,299           9,208           8,360           9,128           
16,280         15,735         14,644         13,109         12,274         11,887         

5,247           4,841           4,230           4,424           4,942           5,423           
102              47                23                18                16                17                
607              720              699              612              677              692              

31,555         30,746         28,895         27,371         26,269         27,147         

$ 46,812         $ 44,063         $ 42,912         $ 41,839         $ 38,042         $ 40,475         

23.40% 22.62% 23.55% 24.51% 23.91% 23.43%

1.77% 0.69% 0.69% 1.01% 1.10% 0.99%
3.92% 2.37% 3.91% 4.45% 0.70% 4.18%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.07% 0.14% 0.08% 0.03% 0.01% 0.00%

3.44% 4.41% 4.43% 4.59% 5.22% 4.34%
32.59% 30.22% 32.66% 34.58% 30.95% 32.93%

19.91% 21.34% 21.67% 22.01% 21.98% 22.55%
34.78% 35.71% 34.13% 31.33% 32.26% 29.37%
11.21% 10.99% 9.86% 10.57% 12.99% 13.40%

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.22% 0.11% 0.05% 0.04% 0.04% 0.04%
1.30% 1.63% 1.63% 1.46% 1.78% 1.71%

67.41% 69.78% 67.34% 65.42% 69.05% 67.07%

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

 For the Fiscal Years Ended August 31,

20142017

2013 2012

(amounts expressed in thousands)

 For the Fiscal Years Ended August 31,

2016

(amounts expressed in percentages)

2013 2012

2016 2015

2015

2017 2014
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Operating Expenses:

Instruction $ 17,443         $ 18,022         $ 16,851         $ 17,669         
Public service 130              130              171              173              
Academic support 7,071           6,853           6,286           6,523           
Student services 4,233           4,125           3,839           3,916           
Institutional support 6,788           5,940           5,516           5,675           
Operation and maintenance of plant 3,932           3,775           3,500           2,972           
Scholarships and fellowships 9,385           6,204           3,970           4,541           
Auxiliary enterprises 1,680           1,861           1,996           2,297           
Depreciation 1,328           1,291           1,275           1,206           

51,990         48,201         43,404         44,972         

Nonoperating Expenses:
Interest on capital-related debt 1,146           1,208           1,275           729              
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets -                   -                   10                (40)               

1,146           1,208           1,285           689              

$ 53,136         $ 49,409         $ 44,689         $ 45,661         

 
Operating Expenses:

Instruction 32.83% 36.48% 37.71% 38.70%
Public service 0.24% 0.26% 0.38% 0.38%
Academic support 13.31% 13.87% 14.07% 14.29%
Student services 7.97% 8.35% 8.59% 8.58%
Institutional support 12.77% 12.02% 12.34% 12.43%
Operation and maintenance of plant 7.40% 7.64% 7.83% 6.51%
Scholarships and fellowships 17.66% 12.56% 8.88% 9.95%
Auxiliary enterprises 3.16% 3.77% 4.47% 5.03%
Depreciation 2.50% 2.61% 2.85% 2.64%

97.84% 97.56% 97.12% 98.49%

Nonoperating Expenses:
Interest on capital-related debt 2.16% 2.44% 2.85% 1.60%
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 0.00% 0.00% 0.02% -0.09%

2.16% 2.44% 2.88% 1.51%

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Alvin Community College                         SS-3

2018

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2020
(amounts expressed in thousands)

2021 2019

 For the Fiscal Years Ended August 31,

PROGRAM EXPENSES BY FUNCTION

Total Nonoperating Expenses

Total Nonoperating Expenses

Total Operating Expenses

2021 2020

Total Operating Expenses

2019 2018

Total Expenses

(amounts expressed in percentages)
 For the Fiscal Years Ended August 31,

Total Expenses

100



$ 18,241         $ 17,067         $ 17,959         $ 17,506         $ 15,217         $ 15,687         
188              173              167              162              165              155              

5,531           5,991           4,793           4,696           4,545           3,818           
3,390           2,704           2,596           2,527           2,459           2,518           
5,348           4,967           6,291           4,823           3,849           3,763           
3,154           2,756           3,204           3,110           3,939           4,306           
5,156           4,707           4,008           4,437           4,962           5,264           
2,040           2,083           2,135           2,118           2,117           1,977           
1,209           1,170           1,145           1,138           1,147           1,138           

44,257         41,618         42,298         40,517         38,400         38,626         

463              497              496              539              619              670              
49                43                -                   -                   -                   -                   

512              540              496              539              619              670              

$ 44,769         $ 42,158         $ 42,794         $ 41,056         $ 39,019         $ 39,296         

40.74% 40.48% 41.97% 42.64% 39.00% 39.92%
0.42% 0.41% 0.39% 0.39% 0.42% 0.39%

12.35% 14.21% 11.20% 11.44% 11.65% 9.72%
7.57% 6.41% 6.07% 6.16% 6.30% 6.41%

11.95% 11.78% 14.70% 11.75% 9.86% 9.58%
7.05% 6.54% 7.49% 7.58% 10.10% 10.96%

11.52% 11.17% 9.37% 10.81% 12.72% 13.40%
4.56% 4.94% 4.99% 5.16% 5.43% 5.03%
2.70% 2.78% 2.68% 2.77% 2.94% 2.90%

98.86% 98.72% 98.84% 98.69% 98.41% 98.29%

1.03% 1.18% 1.16% 1.31% 1.59% 1.71%
0.11% 0.10% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
1.14% 1.28% 1.16% 1.31% 1.59% 1.71%

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

2014

 For the Fiscal Years Ended August 31,
(amounts expressed in thousands)

2016

 For the Fiscal Years Ended August 31,

2017

(amounts expressed in percentages)
2013 2012

2013 20122015

20142017 2016 2015
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SS-4

Academic 
Year
(Fall)

2020 $ 47              $ 94              $ 7                $ 30              $ 90              $ 30              $
2019 $ 46              $ 92              $ 7                $ 30              $ 90              $ 30              $
2018 $ 46              $ 92              $ 7                $ 30              $ 89              $ 30              $
2017 $ 46              $ 92              $ 7                $ 30              $ 60              $ 30              $
2016 $ 45              $ 90              $ 7                $ 30              $ 60              $ 22              $
2015 $ 45              $ 90              $ 5                $ 30              $ 60              $ 22              $
2014 $ 44              $ 88              $ 5                $ 30              $ 60              $ 22              $
2013 $ 44              $ 88              $ 5                $ 30              $ 60              $ 22              $
2012 $ 42              $ 84              $ 5                $ 30              $ 45              $ 22              $
2011 $ 42              $ 84              $ 5                $ 30              $ 45              $ 22              $

Academic 
Year
(Fall)

2020 $ 143            $ 143            $ 7                $ 30              $ 90              $ 30              $
2019 $ 140            $ 140            $ 7                $ 30              $ 90              $ 30              $
2018 $ 140            $ 140            $ 7                $ 30              $ 89              $ 30              $
2017 $ 140            $ 140            $ 7                $ 30              $ 60              $ 30              $
2016 $ 140            $ 140            $ 7                $ 30              $ 60              $ 22              $
2015 $ 140            $ 140            $ 5                $ 30              $ 60              $ 22              $
2014 $ 134            $ 134            $ 5                $ 30              $ 60              $ 22              $
2013 $ 134            $ 134            $ 5                $ 30              $ 60              $ 22              $
2012 $ 130            $ 130            $ 5                $ 30              $ 45              $ 22              $
2011 $ 130            $ 130            $ 5                $ 30              $ 45              $ 22              $

Note:  Includes basic enrollment tuition and fees but excludes course based fees such as laboratory fees.

Out-of- General 
Activity District
Student 

 
Registration

Technology 

  

 

Fees per Semester Credit Hour (SCH) Fees per Semester

Registration
Technology Activity 

Student Non-Resident Non-Resident General 

  
Resident

Fees per Semester Credit Hour (SCH)

Non-Resident Non-Resident

Service Fee
Fee(per Student)Tuition Tuition Fee

In-District
Fee

Alvin Community College
TUITION AND FEES
Last Ten Academic Years 

Resident
Fees per Semester

Fee
Tuition Service FeeTuition

Out of State International Fee (per Student) Fee
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30              $ 15              $ 10              $ 853            $ 1,417         1.48% 1.76%
30              $ 15              $ 10              $ 841            $ 1,393         0.12% 0.07%
30              $ 15              $ 10              $ 840            $ 1,392         3.58% 2.13%
30              $ 15              $ 10              $ 811            $ 1,363         3.84% 3.18%
20              $ 15              $ 10              $ 781            $ 1,321         1.83% 1.07%
20              $ 15              $ 10              $ 767            $ 1,307         1.59% 1.87%
20              $ 15              $ 10              $ 755            $ 1,283         0.00% 0.00%
20              $ 15              $ 10              $ 755            $ 1,283         5.45% 5.16%
20              $ 15              $ 10              $ 716            $ 1,220         0.00% 0.00%
20              $ 15              $ 10              $ 716            $ 1,220         117.38% 117.08%

SCH

30              $ 15              $ 10              $ 2,005         $ 2,005         1.86% 1.86%
30              $ 15              $ 10              $ 1,969         $ 1,969         0.05% 0.05%
30              $ 15              $ 10              $ 1,968         $ 1,968         1.50% 1.50%
30              $ 15              $ 10              $ 1,939         $ 1,939         0.94% 0.94%
20              $ 15              $ 10              $ 1,921         $ 1,921         0.73% 0.73%
20              $ 15              $ 10              $ 1,907         $ 1,907         3.92% 3.92%
20              $ 15              $ 10              $ 1,835         $ 1,835         0.00% 0.00%
20              $ 15              $ 10              $ 1,835         $ 1,835         3.56% 3.56%
20              $ 15              $ 10              $ 1,772         $ 1,772         0.00% 0.00%
20              $ 15              $ 10              $ 1,772         $ 1,772         101.96% 101.96%

Security 
In-District

LRC

Cost for 12
SCH

Increase

Non-Resident
Fees per Semester

Cost for 12
SCH

District
Out-of-Bursar

FeeFee

Increase
from Prior

Year
In-District Out-of-District

Year

Increase 
from Prior 

BursarLRC SCHSecurity 

Increase 

Year Year
Cost for 12 from Prior from Prior Cost for 12

Resident
Fees per Semester

Fee

InternationalFee Fee Fee Non-Resident International Non-Resident
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SS-5

 
 

Fiscal Year

2020-21 $ 14,216,441    $ 1,654,944      $ 12,561,497    88.36%
2019-20 $ 12,699,708    $ 1,467,123      $ 11,232,585    88.45%
2018-19 $ 11,170,890    $ 1,170,942      $ 9,999,948      89.52%
2017-18 $ 10,011,248    $ 736,327         $ 9,274,921      92.65%
2016-17 $ 8,979,798      $ 545,730         $ 8,434,068      93.92%
2015-16 $ 8,146,011      $ 532,166         $ 7,613,845      93.47%
2014-15 $ 7,776,726      $ 645,321         $ 7,131,405      91.70%
2013-14 $ 7,072,385      $ 566,309         $ 6,506,076      91.99%
2012-13 $ 6,657,772      $ 598,418         $ 6,059,354      91.01%
2011-12 $ 6,526,053      $ 1,187,556      $ 5,338,497      81.80%

Source:  Local Appraisal District
Notes:  Property is assessed at full market value.
             (a) per $100 Taxable Assessed Valuation

Alvin Community College

Assessed Taxable Ratio of Taxable

ASSESSED VALUE AND TAXABLE ASSESSED VALUE OF PROPERTY
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Amounts expressed in thousands)

of Property Exemptions Value (TAV) Assessed Value 
Valuation Less Assessed Assessed Value to
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$ 0.170579       $ 0.012864       $ 0.183443       
$ 0.171438       $ 0.014424       $ 0.185862       
$ 0.171802       $ 0.015973       $ 0.187775       
$ 0.163608       $ 0.017142       $ 0.180750       
$ 0.172848       $ 0.018896       $ 0.191744       
$ 0.182979       $ 0.021030       $ 0.204009       
$ 0.173798       $ 0.025687       $ 0.199485       
$ 0.176540       $ 0.023216       $ 0.199756       
$ 0.175119       $ 0.024637       $ 0.199756       
$ 0.173798       $ 0.025687       $ 0.199485       

Maintenance &

Direct Rate

Debt Service Total
(a) (a) (a)

Operations
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SS-6

Fiscal Year

2020-21 $ 12,398 $               7,048 $ 1,759 1,374
2019-20 $ 12,291 $               7,072 $ 1,738 1,470
2018-19 $ 11,637 $               7,209 $ 1,614 1,446
2017-18 $ 11,121 $               7,859 $ 1,415 1,431
2016-17 $ 9,319 $               8,144 $ 1,144 1,477
2015-16 $ 9,403 $               7,767 $ 1,211 1,364
2014-15 $ 9,299 $               7,211 $ 1,290 1,290
2013-14 $ 9,208 $               7,568 $ 1,217 1,368
2012-13 $ 8,360 $               7,400 $ 1,130 1,354
2011-12 $ 9,128 $               7,562 $ 1,207 1,396

Notes:
FTSE is defined as the number of full time students plus total hours taken by
part-time students divided by 12.

(a) Source CBM 004

Appropriation (a) Hours (a)
State FTSE Appropriation

per FTSE
Contact

Appropriation per FTSE

Alvin Community College
STATE APPROPRIATION PER FULL-TIME STUDENT

EQUIVALENTS AND CONTACT HOUR
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Appropriation per
Contact Hour

AcademicState
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510 1,884             $ 6.58                   
663 2,133             $ 5.76                   
699 2,145             $ 5.43                   
734 2,165             $ 5.14                   
799 2,276             $ 4.09                   
780 2,144             $ 4.39                   
775 2,065             $ 4.50                   
777 2,253             $ 4.09                   
818 2,408             $ 3.47                   
857 2,472             $ 3.69                   

Total Contact
(a) Hours

Contact Hours
Contact Hour

Appropriation per

Appropriation per Contact Hour

Voc/Tech State 
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SS-7

Ineos USA LLC petrochemical $ 1,193,405     $ 477,624        $ 374,362       
Ineos Olefins & Polymers petrochemical 539,853        824,208        520,187       
Denbury Onshore LLC  oil and gas 

exploration 
138,981        184,942        235,113       

Ascend Performance Materials manufacturing 101,627        91,688          97,119         
Equistar Chemicals LP  petrochemical -                    -                    -                  
Novus International Inc  agriculture -                    -                    -                  
Schlumberger Well Svcs  oilfield services -                    35,498          41,730         
Center Point Energy  utility 70,333          63,628          57,560         
Huntsman Petrochemical Corp  petrochemical -                    -                    -                  
Cyanco International  manufacturing 45,191          50,213          50,977         
Amreit SPF Shadow Creek LP  investment 65,673          73,132          86,133         
UVN-TIC LLC ETAL  real estate 37,000          -                    -                  
Pearland Investments LTD PRT  real estate -                    -                    -                  
Pearland Town Center LP  investment 81,505          81,692          95,033         
Team Services Inc. manufacturing -                    -                    -                  
Pearland Multifamily DST real estate -                    -                    -                  
Shadow Creek Apartments LLC real estate 36,600          40,800          35,989         
Dune Operating Company oil & gas -                    -                    -                  
12400 Shadow Creek Parkway LLC real estate -                    -                    -                  
Discovery Shadow Creek Owner real estate -                    -                    -                  
Shadow Kirby LTD real estate -                    -                    -                  
Weatherford US LP oil and gas -                    -                    -                  
Energyquest Inc. utility -                    -                    -                  
BNSF Railway Co. transportation -                    -                    -                  
Texas New Mexico Power Co. utility -                    -                    -                  
Argent Energy utility -                    -                    -                  
Rice-Tec Inc. agriculture -                    -                    -                  
Shadow Creek Phase II real estate -                    -                    -                  
MAR Shadow Creek LP real estate 58,300          70,000          58,900         
MRP Radius Shadow Creek LLC real estate -                    -                    -                  
Schlumberger Technology Corp. production 46,516          -                    -                  
DD SCR V LLC investment -                    37,506          33,419         
DD SCR VI LLC investment 39,820          43,741          47,557         
W-F&B 11900 Shadow Creek Owner VIII LP real estate 39,300          47,416          36,247         
Goodgarden Owner GP investment 41,000          45,400          39,850         
Brazoria-SCR Assoc LLC & SC Assoc real estate 37,300          42,500          36,070         
Southfork Lake LLC real estate 37,097          39,558          35,900         
Pearland IL Group LP real estate -                    -                    -                  
Seaway Crude Pipeline Company LLC production 61,948          55,236          51,111         
SPUS8 Shadow Creek real estate 36,700          41,633          35,903         
Team Industrial Services Inc manufacturing -                    -                    35,579         
2500 Business Center Owner LP real estate 40,000          51,179          -                  

Totals $ 2,748,149     $ 2,397,594     $ 2,004,739    

Total Taxable Assessed Value $ 12,561,497   $ 11,232,585   $ 9,999,948    

2021

Fiscal Year
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Alvin Community College
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS

Last Ten Tax Years

Type of BusinessTaxpayer 2020 2019
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$ 46,257         $ 415,081       $ 426,518       $ 469,884       $ 401,327       $ 401,327       $ 371,419       
479,619       -                                     -                    -                    -                    -                    - 
179,570       168,085              139,588        250,781        381,509        381,509        302,544 

91,141         95,638                  76,124          75,566          77,754          77,754          77,403 
-                  -                                     -                    -                    -                    -          16,484 

40,002         41,308                  46,146          49,544          46,013          46,013          49,610 
46,117         47,116                  48,297          51,229          51,529          51,529          33,614 
51,952         47,427                  45,146          41,579          42,514          42,514          41,357 

-                  -                           22,131          29,086          41,872          41,872          47,690 
52,284         53,625                  53,625          53,625          61,875          61,875          40,500 
66,511         83,833                  68,227          48,319          48,188          48,188          47,959 

-                  35,450                  32,195                    -                    -                    -                    - 
-                  -                                     -                    -                    -                    -                    - 

92,489         89,000                  80,701          70,769          69,086          69,086          66,757 
37,162         30,878                  29,351          29,334          22,377          22,377          50,523 
30,000         33,624                  30,574          39,771          24,206          24,206                    - 
32,500         35,971                  35,219          29,900          23,746          23,746                    - 

-                  -                                     -                    -                    -                    -                    - 
-                  -                           35,701          29,000          27,100          27,100          27,100 

35,126         37,578                  34,401          27,934          26,780          26,780          25,330 
-                  -                           33,000          28,500          25,000          25,000          25,000 
-                  -                           23,680          23,805          23,971          23,971          30,530 
-                  -                                     -                    -                    -                    -                    - 
-                  -                                     -                    -                    -                    -          19,015 
-                  -                           23,092                    -          20,910          20,910          19,196 
-                  -                                     -                    -                    -                    -          18,209 
-                  -                                     -                    -                    -                    -          17,033 
-                  -                                     -                    -          20,605          20,605                    - 

57,306         57,481                  53,085          44,000                    -                    -                    - 
-                  -                                     -          24,155                    -                    -                    - 
-                  -                                     -          27,041          21,926          21,926                    - 

37,000         46,406                            -                    -                    -                    -                    - 

35,250         38,420                            -                    -                    -                    -                    - 
38,500         38,141                            -                    -                    -                    -                    - 
35,843         36,453                            -                    -                    -                    -                    - 
34,245         -                                     -                    -                    -                    -                    - 

-                  25,500                            -                    -                    -                    -                    - 
-                  -                                     -                    -                    -                    -                    - 
-                  -                                     -                    -                    -                    -                    - 
-                  -                                     -                    -                    -                    -                    - 
-                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

$ 1,518,874    $ 1,457,015    $ 1,336,801    $ 1,443,822    $ 1,458,288    $ 1,458,288    $ 1,327,273    

$ 9,274,921    $ 8,434,068    $ 7,613,845    $ 7,131,405    $ 6,506,076    $ 6,059,354    $ 5,338,497    

Fiscal Year
(amounts expressed in thousands)

2018 20122015 2013201420162017

109



SS-7

Ineos USA LLC petrochemical 9.50% 4.25% 3.74%
Ineos Olefins & Polymers petrochemical 4.30% 7.34% 5.20%
Denbury Onshore LLC  oil and gas exploration 1.11% 1.65% 2.35%
Ascend Performance Materials manufacturing 0.81% 0.82% 0.97%
Equistar Chemicals LP  petrochemical 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Novus International Inc  agriculture 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Schlumberger Well Svcs  oilfield services 0.00% 0.32% 0.42%
Center Point Energy  utility 0.56% 0.57% 0.58%
Huntsman Petrochemical Corp  petrochemical 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Cyanco International  manufacturing 0.36% 0.45% 0.51%
Amreit SPF Shadow Creek LP  investment 0.52% 0.65% 0.86%
UVN-TIC LLC ETAL  real estate 0.29% 0.00% 0.00%
Pearland Investments LTD PRT  real estate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Pearland Town Center LP  investment 0.65% 0.73% 0.95%
Team Services Inc. manufacturing 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Pearland Multifamily DST real estate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Shadow Creek Apartments LLC real estate 0.29% 0.36% 0.36%
Dune Operating Company oil and gas 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
12400 Shadow Creek Parkway LLC real estate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Discovery Shadow Creek Owner real estate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Shadow Kirby LTD real estate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Weatherford US LP oil & gas 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Energyquest Inc. utility 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
BNSF Railway Co. transportation 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Texas New Mexico Power Co. utility 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Argent Energy utility 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Rice-Tec Inc. agriculture 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Shadow Creek Phase II real estate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

 MAR Shadow Creek LP real estate 0.46% 0.62% 0.59%
MRP Radius Shadow Creek LLC real estate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Schlumberger Technology Corp. exploration/production 0.37% 0.00% 0.00%
DD SCR V LLC investment 0.00% 0.33% 0.33%
DD SCR VI LLC investment 0.32% 0.39% 0.48%
W-F&B 11900 Shadow Creek Owner VIII LP real estate 0.31% 0.42% 0.36%
Goodgarden Owner GP investment 0.33% 0.40% 0.40%
Brazoria-SCR Assoc LLC & SC Assoc real estate 0.30% 0.38% 0.36%
Southfork Lake LLC real estate 0.30% 0.35% 0.36%
Pearland IL Group LP real estate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Seaway Crude Pipeline Company LLC exploration/production 0.49% 0.49% 0.51%
SPUS8 Shadow Creek real estate 0.29% 0.37% 0.36%
Team Industrial Services Inc manufacturing 0.00% 0.00% 0.36%
2500 Business Center Owner LP real estate 0.32% 0.46% 0.00%

21.88% 21.34% 20.05%

Taxpayer Type of Business 2021 20192020
Fiscal Year

Alvin Community College
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS (CONTINUED)

Last Ten Tax Years
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0.50% 4.92% 5.60% 6.59% 6.17% 6.62% 6.96%
5.17% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
1.94% 1.99% 1.83% 3.52% 5.86% 6.30% 5.67%
0.98% 1.13% 1.00% 1.06% 1.20% 1.28% 1.45%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.31%
0.43% 0.49% 0.61% 0.69% 0.71% 0.76% 0.93%
0.50% 0.56% 0.63% 0.72% 0.79% 0.85% 0.63%
0.56% 0.56% 0.59% 0.58% 0.65% 0.70% 0.77%
0.00% 0.00% 0.29% 0.41% 0.64% 0.69% 0.89%
0.56% 0.64% 0.70% 0.75% 0.95% 1.02% 0.76%
0.72% 0.99% 0.90% 0.68% 0.74% 0.80% 0.90%
0.00% 0.42% 0.42% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
1.00% 1.06% 1.06% 0.99% 1.06% 1.14% 1.25%
0.40% 0.37% 0.39% 0.41% 0.34% 0.37% 0.95%
0.32% 0.40% 0.40% 0.56% 0.37% 0.40% 0.00%
0.35% 0.43% 0.46% 0.42% 0.36% 0.39% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00% 0.47% 0.41% 0.42% 0.45% 0.51%
0.38% 0.45% 0.45% 0.39% 0.41% 0.44% 0.47%
0.00% 0.00% 0.43% 0.40% 0.38% 0.41% 0.47%
0.00% 0.00% 0.31% 0.33% 0.37% 0.40% 0.57%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.36%
0.00% 0.00% 0.30% 0.00% 0.32% 0.35% 0.36%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.34%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.32%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.32% 0.34% 0.00%
0.62% 0.68% 0.70% 0.62% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.34% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.38% 0.34% 0.36% 0.00%
0.40% 0.55% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.38% 0.46% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.42% 0.45% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.39% 0.43% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.37% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.30% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

16.38% 17.28% 17.56% 20.25% 22.41% 24.07% 24.86%

201220132018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Fiscal Year
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Fiscal Year 
Ended August 

31

Total Tax 
Levy             
(a)

Collections 
Current Levy 

(b) Percentage           

 Current 
Collections 

of Prior 
Levies (b) 

Total 
Collections (c)      

Percentage of 
Current Levy 

2021 $ 23,022        $ 22,848            99.24% $ -                  $ 22,848            99.24%
2020 $ 20,849        $ 20,647            99.03% $ -                  $ 20,647            99.03%
2019 $ 18,777        $ 18,579            98.95% $ -                  $ 18,579            98.95%
2018 $ 16,768        $ 16,586            98.91% $ 107             $ 16,693            99.55%
2017 $ 16,173        $ 15,994            98.89% $ 42               $ 16,036            99.15%
2016 $ 15,537        $ 15,377            98.97% $ 17               $ 15,394            99.08%
2015 $ 14,516        $ 14,341            98.79% $ 15               $ 14,356            98.90%
2014 $ 12,986        $ 12,832            98.81% $ 4                 $ 12,836            98.84%
2013 $ 12,119        $ 12,040            99.35% $ (2)                $ 12,038            99.33%
2012 $ 11,764        $ 11,710            99.54% $ 1                 $ 11,711            99.55%

 
 

Alvin Community College
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

(amounts expressed in thousands)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(c) Ties to sum of M&O and Debt Service taxes on Exhibit 2     

Source:  Local Tax Assessor/Collector and District records
(a) As of August 31
(b) Property tax only - does not include penalties and interest
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General Bonded Debt:
General obligation bonds $ 6,095             $ 7,460             $ 8,745             $ 9,955            
Less:  Funds restricted for debt service (1,632)            (1,640)            (1,609)            (1,603)           
Net general bonded debt 4,463             5,820             7,136             8,352            

Notes 20,420           21,165           21,870           22,565          
Capital leases -                     -                     -                     -                    

$ 24,883           $ 26,985           $ 29,006           $ 30,917          

General Bonded Debt Ratios:
As a percentage of Taxable Assessed Value

(TAN) 0.04% 0.07% 0.09% 0.11%

Total Outstanding Debt Ratios:
Per capita $ 829                $ 900                $ 27                  $ 31                 
Per student $ 3,555             $ 3,855             $ 4,144             $ 4,417            
As a percentage of Taxable Assessed Value

(TAV) 198.09% 240.24% 290.06% 0.33%

           full-time-equivalent enrollment.
Note: Ratios calculated using population and TAV from current year. Debt per student calculated using 

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Total Outstanding Debt

2019

Alvin Community College

Last Ten Fiscal Years
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT

20182021

 For the Fiscal Years Ended August 31,

2020
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$ 11,125           $ 12,255           $ 13,350           $ 14,380           $ 15,305           $ 16,160           
(1,603)            (1,624)            (1,585)            (1,523)            (1,513)            (1,528)            
9,522             10,631           11,765           12,857           13,792           14,632           

-                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
12                  23                  34                  44                  -                     -                     

$ 9,534             $ 10,654           $ 11,799           $ 12,901           $ 13,792           $ 14,632           

0.14% 0.16% 0.20% 0.23% 0.25% 0.27%
            

$ 35                  $ 39                  $ 42                  $ 46                  $ 50                  $ 52                  
$ 1,372             $ 1,636             $ 1,705             $ 1,864             $ 1,935             $ 2,036             

0.11% 0.14% 0.17% 0.20% 0.23% 0.25%

               

2016
(amounts expressed in thousands)

 For the Fiscal Years Ended August 31,

20122013201420152017
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Taxable Assessed Value $ 12,561,497   $ 11,232,585   $ 9,999,948     $ 9,274,921      

General Obligation Bonds:
Statutory tax levy limit for debt service 62,807          56,163          50,000          46,375           
Less:  Funds restricted for repayment of 

general obligation bonds (1,632)           (1,640)           (1,609)          (1,603)            
61,175          54,523          48,391          44,772           

Current Year Debt Service Requirements 2,110 1,990 1,905 1,596
Excess of Statutory Limit for Debt Service

over Current Requirements $ 59,065          $ 52,533          $ 46,486          $ 43,176           

Net Current Requirements as a % of 
Statutory Limit 0.03% 0.04% 0.04% 0.03%

Note: Texas Education Code Section 130.122 limits the debt service tax levy of community colleges to $0.50 per 
           $100 of taxable assessed valuation.

Total Net General Obligation Debt

2021 2020 2019 2018

Alvin Community College
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(amounts expressed in thousands)
 For the Fiscal Years Ended August 31,

116



$ 8,434,068      $ 7,615,957      $ 7,131,405      $ 6,506,076      $ 6,059,354      $ 5,888,930      

42,170           38,080           35,657           32,530           30,297           29,445           

(1,603)            (1,624)            (1,585)            (1,523)            (1,513)            (1,528)            
40,567           36,456           34,072           31,007           28,784           27,917           

1,595 1,595 1,567 1,501 1,443 1,405

$ 38,972           $ 34,861           $ 32,505           $ 29,506           $ 27,341           $ 26,512           

0.04% 0.04% 0.04% 0.05% 0.05% 0.05%

2017 2016 2015 2014 20122013
(amounts expressed in thousands)

 For the Fiscal Years Ended August 31,
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Fiscal
Year
2021 372,031 $ (a) $ (a) 6.9%
2020 374,264 $ 18,104,830       $ 48,374                3.5% *
2019 370,200 $ 17,487,902       $ 47,239                4.5%
2018 362,457 $ 16,645,867       $ 45,925                5.3%
2017 354,195 $ 15,528,652       $ 43,842                5.2%
2016 346,312 $ 15,537,867       $ 44,867                5.0%
2015 338,124 $ 13,504,267       $ 42,519                6.1%
2014 330,242 $ 13,788,051       $ 41,751                7.1%
2013 324,769 $ 13,104,592       $ 40,351                7.1%
2012 319,973 $ 12,550,313       $ 39,315                8.7%

Sources:
Population from U.S. Bureau of the Census
Personal income from U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis
Unemployment rate from Texas Workforce Commission (Annual when possible)

Notes:
(a)  Not yet available
* Updated from last year

Unemployment
District

Alvin Community College
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS - TAXING DISTRICT

Last Ten Calendar Years

District Income (a)

District
Personal 

District
Personal 
Income

RatePopulation (in Thousands) Per Capita
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Alvin Independent School District 2,520 2.60%
Empereon Constar 700 0.72%
Alvin Community College 545 0.56%
Wal-Mart Associates 520 0.54%
Ascend Performance Materials 470 0.48%
INEOS Olefins & Polymers USA 440 0.45%
Ron Carter Automotive 320 0.33%
Rice-Tec          300 0.31%
Team 257 0.26%
City of Alvin 247 0.25%
BeAed  200 0.21%
Diversified Ceramics 91 0.09%

6,610 6.81%

Source:
(1) Alvin Economic Development
(2) US Census - Brazoria County Total Employment

Note:
Percentages are calculated using the midpoints of the ranges.

Alvin Community College
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

Employer Employees (1) Employment (2)

Current Fiscal Year
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2021 2020

Faculty
Full-Time 104 113 114 111
Part-Time 326 362 401 345

Total 430                475                515                456                  

Faculty
Full-Time 24.2% 23.8% 22.1% 24.3%
Part-Time 75.8% 76.2% 77.9% 75.7%

Staff and Administrators
Full-Time 187 196 185 180
Part-Time 145 69 85 102

Total 332                265                270                282                  

Staff and Administrators
Full-Time 56.3% 74.0% 68.5% 63.8%
Part-Time 43.7% 26.0% 31.5% 36.2%

FTSE per Full-time Faculty 67.8 62.6 63.2 70.8
FTSE per Full-Time Staff Member 37.7 36.1 39.0 43.7

Average Annual Faculty Salary $ 67,825           $ 61,849           $ 61,421           $ 60,770             

Alvin Community College
FACULTY, STAFF, AND ADMINISTRATORS STATISTICS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2019 2018
Fiscal Year
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113 107 103 111 110 108
203 183 194 170 170 180
316                290                297                281                  280                288                  

35.8% 36.9% 34.7% 39.5% 39.3% 37.5%
64.2% 63.1% 65.3% 60.5% 60.7% 62.5%

177 178 168 166 170 168
58 60 56 55 50 50

235                238                224                221                  220                218                  

75.3% 74.8% 75.0% 75.1% 77.3% 77.1%
24.7% 25.2% 25.0% 24.9% 22.7% 22.9%

72.0 72.6 70.0 68.2 67.2 70.0
46.0 43.6 37.2 45.6 43.5 45.0

$ 68,100           $ 63,608           $ 56,291           $ 55,309 $ 54,308 $ 59,598

20122017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Fiscal Year
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Student Classification
0-30 hours 3,739               66.88% 4,078               68.14%
31-60 hours 1,138               20.35% 1,196               19.98%
> 60 hours 714                  12.77% 711                  11.88%

Total 5,591               100.00% 5,985               100.00%

Semester Hour Load
Less than 3 428                  7.66% 330                  5.51%
3-5 semester hours 1,831               32.75% 1,822               30.44%
6-8 semester hours 1,437               25.70% 1,619               27.05%
9-11 semester hours 1,112               19.89% 1,168               19.52%
12-14 semester hours 623                  11.14% 813                  13.58%
15-17 semester hours 136                  2.43% 194                  3.24%
18 and over 24                    0.43% 39                    0.65%

Total 5,591               100.00% 5,985               100.00%

Tuition Status
Texas Resident (in-District) 2,612               46.72% 2,792               46.65%
Texas Resident (out-of-District) 2,814               50.33% 3,009               50.28%
Non-Resident Tuition 115                  2.06% 130                  2.17%
Tuition Exemption - TX Resident 50                    0.89% 54                    0.90%

Total 5,591               100.00% 5,985               100.00%

Number Percentage
Fall 2019

Alvin Community College

Number Percentage

Fall 2019

Last Five Fall Semesters
ENROLLMENT DETAILS

Fall 2019Fall 2020

Number Percentage

Number Percentage

Number Percentage

Fall 2020
Number Percentage

Fall 2020
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3,814               67.56% 3,859             67.60%
1,065               18.87% 1,030             18.04%

766                  13.57% 820                14.36%
5,645               100.00% 5,709             100.00%

238                  4.22% 283                4.96%
1,640               29.05% 1,722             30.16%
1,582               28.02% 1,596             27.96%
1,087               19.26% 1,200             21.02%

883                  15.64% 708                12.40%
188                  3.33% 180                3.15%

27                    0.48% 20                  0.35%
5,645               100.00% 5,709             100.00%

2,542               45.03% 2,606             45.65%
2,912               51.59% 2,908             50.94%

130                  2.30% 122                2.14%
61                    1.08% 73                  1.28%

5,645               100.00% 5,709             100.00%

Number

Fall 2018
Number

Fall 2017
Number

Fall 2018
Percentage

Number

Fall 2017
NumberPercentageNumber

Fall 2018

Percentage

Percentage
 

Percentage

Percentage
Fall 2017
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Student Classification
Female 2,278               40.74% 3,261               54.49%
Male 3,313               59.26% 2,724               45.51%

Total 5,591               100.00% 5,985               100.00%

Semester Hour Load
White 3,290               47.39% 3,732               49.69%
Hispanic** 2,064               29.73% 2,225               29.63%
African American 866 12.47% 808 10.76%
Asian 428 6.16% 374 4.98%
Foreign 82 1.18% 119 1.58%
Native American 163 2.35% 186 2.48%
Native Hawaiian/ Pacific Islander 9 0.13% 9 0.12%
Unknown 41 0.59% 57 0.76%

Total 6,943               100.00% 7,510               100.00%

Tuition Status
Under 18 2,397               42.87% 2,431               40.62%
18 - 21 1,578               28.22% 1,757               29.36%
22 - 24 379 6.78% 400 6.68%
25 - 35 749 13.40% 811 13.55%
36 - 50 413 7.39% 478 7.99%
51 & over 75 1.34% 108 1.80%

Total 5,591               100.00% 5,985               100.00%

Average Age 22 21.9

**Numbers are skewed because Hispanic is no longer considered a race by the Federal Government.  It is an 
origin, and Hispanic students can declare their origin without declaring a race.

Last Five Fall Semesters
STUDENT PROFILE

Alvin Community College

Number Percentage

Fall 2019

Fall 2019

Fall 2020
Number Percentage

Fall 2020
Number Percentage

Fall 2020
Number Percentage

Fall 2019

Number Percentage

Number Percentage
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3,191               56.53% 3,224             56.47%
2,454               43.47% 2,485             43.53%
5,645               100.00% 5,709             100.00%

3,751               52.88% 4,018             54.22%
2,013               28.38% 1,943             26.22%

709                  10.00% 737                9.94%
350                  4.93% 408                5.51%

94                    1.33% 71                  0.96%
156                  2.20% 137                1.85%

20                    0.28% 26                  0.35%
-                       0.00% 71                  0.96%

7,093               100.00% 7,411             100.00%

2,020               35.78% 2,019             35.37%
1,729               30.63% 1,737             30.43%

443                  7.85% 539                9.44%
847                  15.00% 852                14.92%
508                  9.00% 461                8.07%

98                    1.74% 101                1.77%
5,645               100.00% 5,709             100.00%

22.5 22.3

Fall 2018 Fall 2017

Fall 2018 Fall 2017

Number Percentage Number Percentage

Fall 2018 Fall 2017

Number Percentage Number Percentage

Number Percentage Number Percentage
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1 Lamar University 8 0.93%
2 Prairie View A&M University 10 1.16%
3 Sam Houston State University 64 7.41%
4 Stephen F. Austin State University 31 3.59%
5 Tarleton State University 3 0.35%
6 Texas A&M International University 1 0.12%
7 Texas A&M University 83 9.61%
8 Texas A&M University - Commerce 2 0.23%
9 Texas A&M University - Corpus Christi 7 0.81%

10 Texas A&M University - Kingsville 3 0.35%
11 Texas A&M University - Texarkana 1 0.12%
12 Texas A&M University at Galveston 16 1.85%
13 Texas Southern University 7 0.81%
14 Texas State University 58 6.71%
15 Texas Tech University 29 3.36%
16 Texas Tech University Health Sciences Center 1 0.12%
17 Texas Woman's University 3 0.35%
18 The University of Texas - Rio Grande Valley 5 0.58%
19 The University of Texas at Arlington 18 2.08%
20 The University of Texas at Austin 36 4.17%
21 The University of Texas at Dallas 10 1.16%
22 The University of Texas at San Antonio 41 4.75%
23 The University of Texas at Tyler 4 0.46%
24 The University of Texas Health Science Center at Houston 3 0.35%
25 The University of Texas Health Science Center at San Antonio 1 0.12%
26 The University of Texas Medical Branch at Galveston 16 1.85%
27 The University of Texas Permian Basin 3 0.35%
28 University of Houston 165 19.10%
29 University of Houston - Clear Lake 181 20.95%
30 University of Houston - Downtown 35 4.05%
31 University of Houston - Victoria 3 0.35%
32 University of North Texas 15 1.74%
33 West Texas A&M University 1 0.12%

Total 864 100.00%
 

Students

% of

Students

All Sample
Transfer

Alvin Community College
TRANSFERS TO SENIOR INSTITUTIONS

864 Fall Students as of Fall 2021
(Included only Public Senior Colleges in Texas)

Transfer
All Sample

Total of
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Academic buildings 12 12 12 12
   Square footage (in thousands) 365 365 365 365

Libraries 1 1 1 1
   Square footage (in thousands) 12 12 12 12
   Number of volumes (in thousands) 12 12 12 12

Administrative and support buildings 3 3 3 3
   Square footage (in thousands) 25 25 25 25

Dining facilities 1 1 1 1
   Square footage (in thousands) 5 5 5 5
   Average daily customers 150 150 150 150

Athletic facilities 8 8 8 8
   Square footage (in thousands) 28 28 28 28
   Stadiums - - - - 
   Gymnasiums 1 1 1 1
   Fitness centers 1 1 1 1
   Tennis courts 6 6 6 6

Plant facilities 1 1 1 1
   Square footage (in thousands) 20 20 20 20

Transportation
Cars 6 6 5 5
Light trucks/vans/ambulance 8 8 7 11
Buses 2 2 2 2
Heavy trucks 2 2 2 3

Fiscal Year

Alvin Community College
CAPITAL ASSET INFORMATION

Fiscal Years 2016 to 2021

2019 201820202021
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BELT HARRIS PECHACEK

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of the 
Alvin Community College Foundation: 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Alvin Community College Foundation (the 
“Foundation”) (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of August 31, 
2021 and 2020, and the related statement of activities and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related 
notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is reponsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our 
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Foundation’s preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal control. Accordingly, 
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

1 



2 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Foundation as of August 31, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows 
for the years then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Belt Harris Pechacek, LLLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
Houston, Texas 
December 8, 2021 
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Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 174,981 $ 197,476
Investments 4,375,272 3,521,793
Art inventory 5,251 5,251
Prepaids 3,900 2,200             

Total Assets $ 4,559,404      $ 3,726,720      

Liabilities and Net Assets
Accounts payable $ 4,006 $ 21,162

Total Liabilities 4,006             21,162           

Net assets:
Without donor restrictions 179,644         165,462         
With donor restrictions:

Purpose restrictions 3,064,280      2,228,622
Perpetual in nature 1,311,474      1,311,474

Total Net Assets 4,555,398      3,705,558      

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 4,559,404 $ 3,726,720

See Notes to Financial Statements.

2021 2020

August 31, 2021 and 2020
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Alvin Community College Foundation

5
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2021 2020
Revenues

Support and revenue:
Contributions and grants $ -                     $ 129,009 $ 129,009         $ 176,937         
Gala income 62,299 -                     62,299           82,811           
Dolphin Athletics -                     2,600 2,600             1,950             
ACC Feed the Hungry -                     -                     -                     599                
Interest and dividend income -                     70,197 70,197           73,065           
Investment gains, net -                     783,138 783,138         253,309         
Unrestricted income 8,927 -                     8,927             4,023             
Other income 6,455 -                     6,455             1,030             

Total Local Support 77,681           984,944         1,062,625      593,724         

Net assets released from restrictions:
Restriction satisfied by payments 149,286 (149,286)        -                     -                     

Total Support and Revenues 226,967         835,658         1,062,625      593,724         

Expenses
Program services:

Scholarships 117,116 -                     117,116         76,751           
Awards 31,258 -                31,258           41,824           

Total Program Services 148,374 -                     148,374 118,575

Support services:
Fundraising:

Gala expenses 848 -                848                35,073           
Dolphin Athletics expenses 912                -                912                -                     
ACC Feed the Hungry expenses -                     -                     -                     2,500             

Total Fundraising 1,760 -                     1,760 37,573

Management and general:
Professional services 36,427 -                     36,427           22,970           
Operating expenses and supplies 23,054 -                     23,054           8,890             
Other 3,170 -                     3,170             37,552           

Total Management and General 62,651 -                     62,651 69,412
Total Expenses 212,785         -                     212,785         225,560         

Change in Net Assets 14,182           835,658         849,840         368,164         

Beginning net assets 165,462         3,540,096      3,705,558      3,337,394      
Ending Net Assets $ 179,644         $ 4,375,754      $ 4,555,398      $ 3,705,558      

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Alvin Community College Foundation
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

For the Years Ended August 31, 2021 and 2020

Restrictions Restrictions
Without Donor With Donor Total

7
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Increase in net assets $ 849,840         $ 103,993         

Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Investment (gains), net (783,138)        (253,309)        
Interest earnings (70,197)          (73,065)          
(Increase) decrease in current assets:

Accounts receivable -                     450                
Prepaids (1,700)            (2,200)            

Increase (decrease) in current liabilities:
Accounts payable (17,156)          (24,574)          

Net Cash (Used) by Operating Activities (22,351)          (248,705)        

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of investments (167,378) (85,050)          
Proceeds from sale of investments 167,234         92,979           

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities (144)               7,929             

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (22,495)          23,395           
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 197,476         174,081         

Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 174,981         $ 197,476         
                                    

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Alvin Community College Foundation

20202021

For the Years Ended August 31, 2021 and 2020
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

9
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Alvin Community College Foundation 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Years Ended August 31, 2021 and 2020 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The general purpose financial statements of Alvin Community College Foundation (the “Foundation”) were 
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing not-for-
profit accounting and financial reporting principles.  
 
Reporting Entity  
 
The Foundation is a not-for-profit organization incorporated in the State of Texas in 1974 and exempt from 
federal income taxes pursuant to Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Foundation is governed by 
a Board of Directors (the “Board”) comprised of 29 members. There shall be a total of not more than 30 Directors 
selected in the manner provided by the Articles of the Corporation. Those individuals who shall hold the positions 
of President of Alvin Community College (the “College”) and the Administrator appointed as Executive Director 
shall serve for their tenure at the College in those positions as members of the Board. 
 
Basis of Accounting and Presentation  
 
The financial statements of the Foundation have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles, which require the Foundation to report information regarding its financial position and 
activities according to the net asset classifications noted below.  
 
Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence and nature or absence of 
donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the organization and changes therein are classified and 
reported as follows:  
 

Net assets without donor restrictions – This classification represents net assets that are not subject to 
donor-imposed stipulations. 

 
Net assets with donor restrictions – This classification represents net assets subject to stipulations 
imposed by donors and grantors.  Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will 
be met by actions of the Foundation or by the passage of time.  Other donor restrictions are perpetual in 
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. 

 
Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions.  When a restriction 
expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in 
the Statement of Activities. The Statement of Activities reports all changes in net assets and includes the 
presentation of functional expenses.  

 
Fair Value Considerations 
 
The Foundation uses fair value to measure financial assets and liabilities.  Fair value is defined as the price that 
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants. The fair value hierarchy established and prioritized fair value measurements into three levels based 
on the nature of the inputs. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to inputs based on market data from 
independent sources (observable inputs – Level 1) and the lowest priority to a reporting entity’s internal 
assumptions based upon the best information available when external market data is limited or unavailable 
(unobservable inputs – Level 3). 
 



Alvin Community College Foundation 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Years Ended August 31, 2021 and 2020 
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The fair value option allows entities to choose, at specified election dates, to measure eligible financial assets and 
financial liabilities at fair value that are not otherwise required to be measured at fair value. If an organization 
elects the fair value option for an eligible item, changes in that item’s fair value in subsequent reporting periods 
must be recognized in current earnings. The Foundation did not elect the fair value option for the measurement of 
any eligible assets or liabilities. The Foundation’s remaining financial instruments (primarily cash and cash 
equivalents) are carried in the financial statements at amounts that reasonably approximate fair value. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents  
 
For financial statement purposes, the Foundation considers all highly liquid investment instruments with an 
original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.  
 
Investments and Investment Return 
 
Investments are mostly comprised of endowed funds invested for the purpose of generating income for 
scholarships. Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and investments in debt 
securities are reported at their fair values in the Statement of Financial Position.  Investment return includes 
interest, dividends, capital gain distributions, and realized and unrealized gains and losses. Investment return is 
reported in the Statement of Activities as a change in unrestricted net assets unless the use of the income is limited 
by donor-imposed restrictions. Investment return whose use is restricted by the donor is reported as a change in 
temporarily restricted net assets until expended in accordance with donor-imposed restrictions. 
 
Independent investment departments at local financial institutions manage the investment assets. It is the policy of 
the Board to liquidate donated securities when they are contributed and to transfer the proceeds to an investment 
manager to be included in the management of the Foundation’s portfolio. 
 
Contributions  
 
The Foundation accounts for contributions as net assets with donor restrictions or net assets without donor 
restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.  
 
Support that is restricted by the donor is reported as an increase in net assets with donor restrictions in the 
reporting period in which the support is recognized. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions 
are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the Statement of Activities as net assets 
released from restrictions.  
 
Use of Estimates  
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. 
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.  
 
Income Taxes 
 
The Foundation qualifies as a tax-exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and, 
therefore, has no provision for income taxes.  
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
Cash is held in both interest-bearing and noninterest-bearing demand accounts at financial institutions. Accounts 
at these institutions are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to a limited amount of 
$250,000. As of August 31, 2021 and 2020, the Foundation did not have cash balances that exceeded the FDIC 
limits. 
 
NOTE 3 – INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT RETURN 
 
Investments held as of August 31, 2021 and 2020 are summarized as follows: 
 

US equities $ 1,698,653 $ 2,518,068 $ 1,573,477 $ 1,817,900
International equities 167,616 264,956 165,831 222,461
Taxable fixed income 1,457,752 1,512,635 1,397,735 1,414,960
Mixed assets 65,607 79,613 63,273 66,472

Total $ 3,389,628 $ 4,375,272 $ 3,200,316 $ 3,521,793

Cost Basis Market Value
2021 2020

Cost Basis Market Value

 
The following summarizes the investment return in the Statement of Activities: 
 

Dividends and interest income $ 70,197            $ 73,065            
Investment fees (36,427)           (22,970)
Investment gains, net 783,138          253,309          

Investment Return, Net $ 816,908          $ 303,404          

2021 2020

 
NOTE 4 – FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 
 
FASB ASC 820-10, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (formerly FASB Statement No. 157), establishes 
a single authoritative definition of fair value, sets a framework for measuring fair value, and requires additional 
disclosures about fair value measurements. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the 
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to 
unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820-10 
are described below: 
 

Level 1 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or 
liabilities in active markets that the Foundation has the ability to access.  
 
Level 2 – Inputs to the valuation methodology include: 
 

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets. 
 

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets. 
 
Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability. 
 
Inputs that are derived principally or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or 
other means. 

 
If the asset or liability has a specific (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for 
substantially the full term of the asset or liability. 
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Level 3 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value 
measurement.  

There have been no changes in the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value as of August 
31, 2021 and 2020. 

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable 
value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Foundation believes its valuation methods are 
appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to 
determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the 
reporting date. 

The value of assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis is as follows: 

U.S. equities $ 2,518,068 $ 1,817,900
International equities 264,956 222,461
Taxable fixed income 1,512,635 1,414,960
Mixed assets 79,613 66,472

Total $ 4,375,272 $ 3,521,793

2021 2020

Quoted Market Prices in Active 
Markets (Level 1)

NOTE 5 – ART INVENTORY 

The Foundation is owner of some pieces of art that have been donated through the years to the Foundation. These 
pieces of art are exhibited around the College in different departments. 

The art inventory includes: 

Art:5505 - McKinney Hillhouse $ 500 $ 500

Art:5510 - Nolan Ryan Print 2,500 2,500

Art:5515 - Touchet Exhibit 2,000 2,000

Art:5520 - Touchet Print 250 250

Art:5525 - Ziya Sever 1 1

Total $ 5,251 $ 5,251

2021 2020
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NOTE 6 – NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 
 
At August 31, 2021 and 2020, the Foundation’s net assets with donor restrictions consisted of the following: 

 
2021 2020

Fundraisers $ 11,522 14,022
Adopt-a-Grant 33,716 13,440
Athletics 7,963 3,310
Scholarships and awards 3,011,079 2,197,850
Endowments 1,311,474 1,311,474

Total $ 4,375,754 $ 3,540,096
                                                 

Net assets were released from restrictions by incurring expenses satifying the restricted purposes or by occurrence  
of other events specified by donors as follows: 
 

2021 2020
Scholarships $ 117,116 $ 76,751            
Awards 31,258 41,824            
Dolphin Athletics expenses 912                 -                      

Total $ 149,286 $ 118,575
                         

NOTE 7 – ENDOWMENTS 
 
Endowment funds are invested and managed with interest and dividends used to perpetually fund the scholarship 
or program requested by the donor. An endowment can be established with a gift of $20,000 or more. Each 
endowed scholarship bears the name designated by the donor. The Foundation adopted investment and spending 
policies based on the requirements of the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (the “Act”). As 
a result of the Foundation’s interpretation of the Act, and in accordance with donor restrictions, contributions to 
the endowment funds are classified as net assets with donor restrictions. 
 
From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor restricted endowment funds may fall 
below the level that the donor requires the Foundation to retain as a fund of perpetual donation.  Deficiencies of 
this nature are reported in net assets without donor restrictions as an aggregate deficiency of the fair value of net 
endowment assets over net assets with donor restrictions. 
 
As of August 31, 2021, the Foundation reported total endowment assets of $2,989,831.  Endowment assets that 
are perpetual in nature total $1,311,474 and endowment assets with purpose restrictions total $1,678,357. 
 
As of August 31, 2020, the Foundation reported total endowment assets of $2,408,160.  Endowment assets that 
are perpetual in nature total $1,311,474 and endowment assets with purpose restrictions total $1,096,686. 
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NOTE 8 – AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY 

The following represents the Foundations’s financial assets at August 31, 2021 and 2020: 

Financial assets at year end:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 174,981  $ 197,476  

Investments 4,375,272  3,521,793  
Prepaids 3,900  2,200  

Total financial assets 4,554,153  3,721,469  

Less amounts not available to be used within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions - purpose restrictions 3,064,280  2,228,622  
Net assets with donor restrictions - perpetual in nature 1,311,474  1,311,474  

4,375,754  3,540,096  

$ 178,399  $ 181,373  

2021 2020

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the 
next twelve months

NOTE 9 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Scholarships and awards paid to the College by the Foundation totaled $148,374 and $118,575 during the years 
ended August 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  As of August 31, 2021 and 2020, the amounts due to the College 
were $4,006 and $21,162, respectively. 



16. Consider Approval of Change to CM (Local)Policy to Adopt Change Order 
Threshold of $50,000 or Higher (replacing the current $20,000 threshold) which 
Require Board Action and from $20,000 or Higher and Retroactively Approve 
Change Orders That Are $20,000 or Higher



 

 
 

 

Dr. Robert J. Exley, Ph.D 
President 

 

 

 
 

MEMORANDUM NO:  15-2022 
 
 
TO: Board of Regents 

                                                             
FROM:  Robert J. Exley, PhD 
 
DATE: January 4, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: Consider Approval of Change to CM (Local) Policy to Adopt a Change Order 

Threshold of $50,000 or Higher (replacing the current $20,000 threshold) which 
Require Board Action and Retroactively Approve Change Orders that are $20,000 
to $50,000 

 

 

Part One: Request for Local Policy Change 
As you are aware, the Texas Association of School Boards Policy Manual provides guidance for 
local policy regarding change order approval and authority. The Legal Policy CM provides the 
language relevant to the parameters for contract change orders affecting scope and total contract 
amount. The (Local Policy) CM is the Alvin Board of Regents policy and it sets a dollar amount 
that requires official board approval. I have included the actual language for the Legal Policy 
CM and the Local Policy CM at the conclusion of this memorandum.  
 
The current threshold in Policy CM (Local) for construction change orders is stated as $20,000 
or higher. Following discussion with College Legal Counsel, I am requesting that the Board 
consider raising the threshold which requires official board action from the current $20,000 
amount to $50,000. 
 
Part Two: Request for Retroactive Approval of Change Orders 
Since the beginning of the Tax Maintenance Note projects started in 2018 the College has 
followed the process of sending change orders to the Board of Regents that were $50,000 or 
higher. During this time period this process was followed by the two Directors of Purchasing that 
were employed during this time and also by AGCM Construction Managers.  
A thorough review of all Tax Maintenance Note construction projects revealed three occurrences 
of this type and they are as follow. 
I am showing 3 contracts that fall into this category.  The rest that exceeded $20k worth of 
changes had board pre-approved contingency funds for change orders.  



 
 

Contract /Project Total Amount Date(s) 

AVI-SPL / Nolan Ryan Center Renovation $22,123.49 December 10, 2020 
(contract start date) 

Galt Construction / Roofs Replace and/or Repair $39,409.00 December 19, 2020 
(contract start date) 

Kudela & Weinheimer / Central Courtyard 
Redevelopment 

$20,067.73 May 10, 2021 through 
December 13, 2021 

 

 
Change Order language from (Legal Policy) CM 
If a change in plans or specifications is necessary after the performance of a contract is begun or 
if it is necessary to decrease or increase the quantity of work to be performed or of materials, 
equipment, or supplies to be furnished, the district may approve change orders making the 
changes. The district may grant general authority to an administrative official to approve the 
change orders. 
 

The total contract price may not be increased because of the changes unless additional money for 
increased costs is approved for that purpose from available money or is provided for by the 
authorization of the issuance of time warrants. 
 

A contract with an original contract price of $1 million or more may not be increased by more 
than 25 percent. If a change order for a contract with an original contract price of less than $1 
million increases the contract amount to $1 million or more, the total of the subsequent change 
orders may not increase the revised contract amount by more than 25 percent of the original 
contract price. 
Education Code 44.0411 
 
Change Order Language from (Local Policy) CM adopted on 7/19/2016 
Change orders permitted by law shall be approved prior to executing any changes in the 
approved plans or in the actual construction of the facility. Change orders valued at or above 
$20,000 shall require Board approval. The College President shall be authorized to approve 
change orders of a lesser amount. 
 
It is recommended that the Board approve the change order threshold beyond which requires 
official board approval from the current $20,000 limit to a $50,000 limit and as well as to 
retroactively approve the AVI-SPL Contract change order in the amount of $22,123.49, the Galt 
Construction Contract change order in the amount of $39,409 and the Kudela & Weinheimer 
Contract in the amount of $20,067.73. 
 
RJE:tg 
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19. Adjournment
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